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CHARACTERISTICS OF GEM OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE
"STOCK EXCHANGE" AND THE "GEM" RESPECTIVELY)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate small and mid-sized companies to
which a higher investment risk may be attached than other companies listed on the Stock Exchange.
Prospective investors should be aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies and should

make the decision to invest only after due and careful consideration.

Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally small and mid-sized companies, there is a
risk that securities traded on GEM may be more susceptible to high market volatility than securities
traded on the Main Board and no assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the securities
traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange take no responsibility for the contents
of this report, make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability
whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of

this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of CBK Holdings Limited (the “Company”) collectively
and individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on GEM (the “GEM Listing Rules”) for the purpose of giving information with
regard to the Company. The Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that to the best of
their knowledge and belief the information contained in this report is accurate and complete in all material
respects and not misleading or deceptive, and there are no other matters the omission of which would make

any statement herein or this report misleading.
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Corporate Information
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Chairman’s Statement

S

OVERVIEW

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the
"Directors”) of CBK Holdings Limited (the” Company”),
together with its subsidiaries (collectively known as the
“Group”). | hereby present to the shareholders of the Company
(the “Shareholders”) the audited consolidated results of the
Group for the year ended 31 March 2023 (the "Year” or the
“Reporting Period”) together with the comparative figures
for the corresponding period in 2022 as set out for their
consideration.

BUSINESS REVIEW AND PROSPECTS

In early 2022, the operating environment of catering
industry and our Group was suffered due to stringent dine-
in government restriction and resulted in a new norm of high
takeaway and lower turnover rate. Although the relaxation of
the anti-epidemic restrictions in April 2022, the norm of catering
industry has not much been changing. The Group continuously
seeks to provide better and high-quality experience by
designing and offering more cuisines to customers. However,
such strategic direction was moving in slow pace, due to
constrained by limited financial resources and together with the
concern of overexpanding in weak business environment.

Looking forward, the border re-opening and removal of
government-imposed anti-epidemic measures, Hong Kong
is reconnecting to the world and on the way restoring its
economic environment before outbreak of COVID-19. Based
on this scenario, the management is optimistic to recover the
catering business and restore the profitability of our persistent
far-below performance operations. The management would
also proactively and carefully seek for potential expansion, with
the additional resource obtained in the rights issue exercise,
in order to maintain our profitably and competitiveness in the
market.
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Chairman’s Statement

R

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my sincerest
gratitude to our valued customers, business partners, and
Shareholders for their persistent support, while also expressing
my appreciation to the management team and employees for
their valuable contribution to the development of the Group.

Chow Yik
Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 June 2023
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Financial Highlights
MBRE

CONSOLIDATED RESULTS mE¥EE
2023 2022
20235 20224F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Revenue from continuing operations FBEEER 2 W 30,040 27,302
Loss for the year from FEREEBZFR
continuing operations 518 (24,975) (33,141)
Loss for the year from a ERIEREXB 2 FE
discontinued operation &8 - (35,374)
Loss for the year attributable to RNARIEEANEBLEER
Owners of the Company E518 (22,227) (40,299)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
2023 2022
20234 20224
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Assets BE
Non-current assets ERENEE 11,553 18,548
Current assets MEEE 9,806 18,185
Total assets EEHAR 21,359 36,733
Equity and liabilities EmkaE
Equity attributable to owners of RRAPHER ANEIEER
the Company 3,596 22,820
Non-controlling interests FIEFE R = (5,887) (3,139)
Total (deficits) equity (B4l S5 (2,291) 19,681
Non-current liabilities EREBE 3,408 4,081
Current liabilities mEaE 20,242 12,971
Total liabilities EEA% 23,650 17,052
Total equity and liabilities EahaEAzE 21,359 36,733
Net current (liabilities) assets B (BB EEFE (10,436) 5,214
Net (liabilities) assets (BB EEFE (2,291) 19,681
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEEN WD

BUSINESS REVIEW & PROSPECTS

During the last financial year, the Group has expanded its
food and beverage business prudently. The Group's indirectly
wholly-owned subsidiary had soft-opening of a modern
Japanese izakaya under the brand “Shio” in Central Hong
Kong (“"Central Restaurant”) in January 2022 and signed an
offer letter with Sun Hung Kai Real Estate (Sales and Leasing)
Agency Limited to lease a shop in San Po Kong to operate a
Korean BBQ and hotpot restaurant under the trade name of " —
F2/%" ("San Po Kong Restaurant”) in December 2021 and the
operation was commenced from September 2022. The Group's
indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary also entered a profit-sharing
agreement with an independent third party for offering catering
service in Central in January 2022 (the “Catering Service
Operation”).

However, the outbreak of fifth wave of Novel coronavirus
disease ("COVID-19 pandemic”) since January 2022, the Group
has closed one restaurant under our brand "Fun Fun Fun” in
Tai Wai in March 2022 for cutting the losses. Moreover, after
reviewing the performance of operations, the Company and the
contract party had mutually agreed to enter an early termination
agreement to cease Catering Service Operation in December
2022.

As at 31 March 2023, the Group had operated one Korean
restaurant under the brand “Aidan Café” located at Tai Wai,
Central Restaurant, San Po Kong Restaurant and sale and food
processing factory (“Central Kitchen”).

The deterioration in the Group's catering service results was
mainly attributable to the adverse impact to our business arising
from the outbreak of the fifth wave of COVID-19 pandemic in
Hong Kong as well as stringent in social distancing restrictions
and measures effective in Hong Kong during the year ended 31
March 2023.

Nevertheless, the management of the Group has implemented
cost-saving measures including negotiating with our landlords
for rent concessions and adopting certain sales stimulating
measures including but not limited to increasing marketing
efforts and expanding the take-away product line, to partially
offset the aforesaid adverse impacts.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEE WD AT

Going forward, facing the uncertainty of world economy
recovery, the Group will make consistent efforts to determine
the root causes for the less-than-expected operating
performance of certain restaurants and operations and exert
every effort to improve and optimize the situation. The
management will consider any potential opportunities to
cut loss. However, the Group will take proactive approach
to consider any potential opportunities to rejuvenate the
respective business of our restaurants. After obtaining financial
resource from rights issue of the Company completed on 14
June 2023, the Company will actively solicit any opportunity on
expansion of our catering service business.

The management insists that the customer satisfaction
is leading success of the Group. The Group will strive to
continuously create a better dining experience by designing
and offering more and different cuisines to provide customers
with a comprehensive and high-quality dining experience.

The management will also continue to strive to control the rising
operating cost on manpower, utilities and food.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Continuing operations
Revenue

Our revenue for the year ended 31 March 2023 increased by
approximately HK$2.7 million to approximately HK$30.0 million
(2022: approximately HK$27.3 million). The increase in revenue
this financial year was mainly due to the Group generated
revenue of HK$5.6 million from newly setup food processing
business, which started operation in December 2021 (2022:
approximately HK$2.0 million).

Cost of inventories sold

Our cost of inventories sold for the year ended 31 March 2023
increased by approximately HK$1.5 million to approximately
HK$13.0 million (2022: approximately HK$11.5 million) which is
in line with increase in the revenue.

The cost of inventories sold as a percentage of revenue of
increased by approximately 1.1% to 43.2% for the year ended
31 March 2023 (2022: approximately 42.1%).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEEN WD

Gross profit and gross profit margin

Our gross profit for the year ended 31 March 2023 increased by
approximately HK$1.3 million to approximately HK$17.1 million
(2022: approximately HK$15.8 million).

The gross profit margin for the year ended 31 March 2023
decreased by approximately 1.1% to approximately 56.8% (2022:
approximately 57.9%) which is mainly due to lower gross profit
margin of sales and processing of food started operation in
December 2021 of approximately 20.5% (2022: approximately
22.06%).

Other revenue, other gain and loss

Our other revenue, other gain and loss increased by
approximately HK$0.5 million to approximately HK$1.9 million
for the year ended 31 March 2023 (2022: approximately HK$1.4
million).

Employee benefit expenses

Our employee benefit expenses for the year ended 31
March 2023 decreased by approximately HK$6.3 million to
approximately HK$13.1 million (2022: approximately HK$19.4
million). The decrease was mainly due to one-off payment
made to Mr. Chan Lap Ping (former executive director of the
Company), Mr. Kwok Yiu Chung (ex-chief executive officer of the
Company and general manager of the Group) and Ms. Wong
Wai Fong (former director of the Company) of each HK$2.0
million as discretionary bonus and long services payment
according to their respective services contracts and non-cash
share-based payment of HK$1.1 million relating to share option
granted to three executive directors in last financial year.

Depreciation

Our depreciation for the year ended 31 March 2023 increased
by approximately HK$2.9 million to approximately HK$9.5
million (2022: approximately HK$6.6 million), which was mainly
due to the depreciation of property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets of two new restaurants (Central Restaurant
and San Po Kong Restaurant) and Central Kitchen started
operation on or after December 2021.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEE WD AT

Property rentals and related expenses

Our property rentals and related expenses slightly increased by
approximately HK$0.2 million to approximately HK$1.0 million
for the year ended 31 March 2023 (2022: approximately HK$0.8
million).

Fuel and utility expenses

Our fuel and utility expenses slightly increased by approximately
HK$0.2 million to approximately HK$1.2 million for the year
ended 31 March 2023 (2022: approximately HK$1.0 million).

Administrative expenses

Our administrative expenses increased by approximately HK$0.7
million to approximately HK$14.9 million for the year ended
31 March 2023 (2022: approximately HK$14.2 million) due to
more administrative expenses from two new restaurants started
operation on or after December 2021.

Impairment loss recognised in respect of property, plant
and equipment/right-of-use assets

During the year ended 31 March 2023, the Group recorded an
impairment loss in respect of property, plant and equipment
amounted to approximately HK$2.1 million (2022: approximately
HK$4.5 million) and an impairment loss in respect of right-of-
use assets of approximately HK$0.9 million (2022: approximately
HK$2.9 million) after the assessment by independent
professional valuer on value in use based on the estimated of
future cash flows discounted to its present value using a pre-tax
discount rate of 15.03% (2022: 15.53%).

Loss for the year attributable to owners of our Company

As a result of the cumulative effect of the above factors,
the Group had loss for the year attributable to owners of
our Company of approximately HK$22.2 million for the year
ended 31 March 2023 (2022: approximately HK$40.3 million).
The decrease in loss for the year mainly due to no loss from
discontinued operation of HK$35.4 million recognised in last
financial year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEEN WD

RESULTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

The Group's total assets as at 31 March 2023 decreased by
approximately HK$15.3 million to approximately HK$21.4
million (2022: approximately HK$36.7 million) mainly due to
depreciation of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use
assets, and impairment loss of property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets.

The Group's total liabilities as at 31 March 2023 increased by
approximately HK$6.6 million to approximately HK$23.7 million
(2022: approximately HK$17.1 million) mainly due to outstanding
interest-bearing borrowings of HK$5.0 million raised in current
financial year.

The equity attributable to owners of the Company as at 31
March 2023 decreased by approximately HK$19.2 million to
approximately HK$3.6 million (2022: approximately HK$22.8
million) mainly due to losses recognised in current financial year.

FOREIGN CURRENCY EXPOSURE

During the year ended 31 March 2023, most of the transactions
of the Group are denominated in Hong Kong dollars. The
Group is not exposed to significant foreign exchange exposure.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
As at 31 March 2023, the Group did not have any material
capital commitments.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE, LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL
RESOURCES

The capital of the Group comprised only ordinary shares. On
17 June 2022, the Company has placed a total of 77,748,000
placing shares (the "Placing”). For details, please refer to the

announcements of the Company dated 31 May 2022 and 17
June 2022.
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Moreover, the Company held an extraordinary general meeting
on 18 July 2022 and passed the resolutions on: (i) the share
consolidation on the basis that every thirty (30) issued and
unissued existing shares of par value of HK$0.01 each in the
share capital of the Company has been consolidated into one
(1) consolidated share of par value of HK$0.30 each (“Share
Consolidation”) and change the board lot size for trading
on the Stock Exchange from 12,000 existing shares to 2,000
consolidated shares after Share Consolidation, which became
effective on 20 July 2022; (ii) reduce the issued share capital of
the Company by cancelling the paid up capital to the extent
of HK$0.29 each from the capital and share premium of the
Company towards offsetting the accumulated losses of the
Company which became effective on 29 September 2022
(“Capital Reduction”); and (iii) the authorized but unissued
consolidated shares of par value of HK$0.3 each be sub-
divided into thirty (30) new shares of par value of HK$0.01 each
immediately following the Capital Reduction. For details, please
refer to the announcements of the Company dated 8 June
2022, 18 July 2022, 24 August 2022, 26 September 2022 and
28 September 2022 and the circular of the Company dated 24
June 2022.

As at 31 March 2023, the Group's borrowings comprised
lease liabilities of approximately HK$7.3 million (2022:
approximately HK$8.9 million) and interest-bearing borrowings
of approximately HK$5.0 million (2022: Nil). The Group's gearing
ratio, calculated by dividing total borrowings by total equity,
was not applicable this financial year (2022: 45.5%) due to
total deficits as at 31 March 2023. Details of the going concern
assessment are set out in Note 3 to the consolidated financial
statements.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
As at 31 March 2023, the Group did not have any material
contingent liabilities.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 March 2023, the Group did not have any mortgage or
charge over its assets.
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SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS, MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES
AND AFFILIATED COMPANIES

As at 31 March 2023, the Company did not have significant
investments, material acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries
and associated companies during the year ended 31 March
2023.

FINAL DIVIDEND
The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend
for the year ended 31 March 2023.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Subsequent to 31 March 2023, the Company changed the
board lot size of its shares for trading on the Stock Exchange
from 2,000 shares to 10,000 shares with effect from 9:00 a.m. on
15 June 2023. The Company also held an extraordinary general
meeting (“EGM") and passed the resolutions to implement
rights issue on the basis of five (5) rights shares for every one (1)
share held and at the subscription price of HK$0.265 per rights
share. On 14 June 2023, 77,757,995 rights shares were issued
with net proceeds of approximately HK$19.8 million. For details,
please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 6
March 2023, 3 May 2023, 5 June 2023 and 13 June 2023, the
circular of the Company dated 14 April 2023 and the prospectus
of the Company dated 17 May 2023.

On 23 June 2023, the Group as lessee and an independent third
party as lessor entered into a provisional tenancy agreement in
respect of the lease of an office premise located at Unit 3005,
30/F. of West Tower, Shuk Tak Centre, Nos. 168-200 Connaught
Road Central, Hong Kong for a term of two years from 3 July
2023 to 2 July 2025 (the “Lease”). The aggregate amount
payable under the Lease is approximately HK$2.5 million
(inclusive of air-conditioning charges and management fee). The
transaction constitutes a disclosable transaction under the GEM
Listing Rules. Details of which are set out in the announcement
of the Company dated 23 June 2023.
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Directors and Senior Management
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chow Yik ("Mr. Chow"), aged 42, is the chairman of Board,
an executive director, the chairman of the legal compliance
committee, a member of the remuneration committee and
a member of the nomination committee. He obtained a
bachelor’'s degree in Engineering, majoring in Electronic
and Communication Engineering from the City University of
Hong Kong and is currently studying the Master of Business
Administration programme (“EMBA") at the School of
Economics and Management of Tsinghua University.

From April 2015 to October 2020, Mr. Chow was an executive
director of Kirin Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 8109),
a company listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange, which
principally engaged in the provision of insurance brokerage and
related services, assets management and securities brokerage
service and money lending services in Hong Kong and
multichannel network entertainment services.

During April 2020 to May 2021, Mr. Chow was an executive
director of Aurum Pacific (China) Group Limited (stock code:
8148), a company listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange,
which principally engaged in developing and marketing
of patented server based technology and the provision of
communications software platform and software related
services; money lending business; and game publishing,
development of mobile game and related intellectual property
and platform, mobile applications and data solutions and
provision of IT related solutions.
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Mr. Tsui Wing Tak (“Mr. Tsui”), aged 54, was appointed as
an executive director. He is a fellow member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a Certified
Practising Accountant of CPA Australia. He holds a bachelor’s
degree in Economics from Macquarie University in Australia. He
has over 27 years of extensive experience in corporate finance
and accounting.

From April 2020 to December 2020, Mr. Tsui was an executive
director of Aurum Pacific (China) Group Limited (stock code:
8148), a company listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange,
which principally engaged in developing and marketing
of patented server based technology and the provision of
communications software platform and software related
services; money lending business; and game publishing,
development of mobile game and related intellectual property
and platform, mobile applications and data solutions and
provision of IT related solutions. In August 2020, Mr. Tsui was
appointed as an independent non-executive director of Bingo
Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 8220), a company listed
on the GEM of the Stock Exchange, which principally engaged
in movie production, licensing and derivatives, crossover
marketing and provision of interactive contents and cinema
investment and management.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chan Kwan Yung (“Mr. Chan"), aged 60, possesses over 28
years corporate management especially on sales management.
Mr. Chan also has its own wine trading and wholesaling
business. He received a Diploma of Structural Engineering from
British Columbia Institute of Technology.

Mr. Chong Alex Tin Yam, aged 571, has cultivated nearly 22
years of entertainment, investment and financial advisory
experiences in the Greater China, Japan, South Korea,
Singapore and the United States of America (the “"US") markets.
From 2016 to 2018, he was the chief executive officer and
executive director of Asia Fashion Holdings Limited, a company
listed on the Main Board of the Singapore Stock Exchange in
2008 and delisted in September 2020. From 2013 to 2016, he
was the director of Viriathus Capital LLC overseeing the US
based investment bank’s Asia operation. From 2006 to 2008, he
was a non-executive director of NutryFarm International Limited
(formerly known as LottVision Limited), a company listed on
the Main Board of the Singapore Stock Exchange (SGX:AZT).
He received a Bachelor of Commerce Degree in Finance
with honour from the University of Toronto and is a Certified
Management Accountant (Australia).

Ms. Lau Man Kei (“Ms. Lau”), aged 34, possesses over 11
years of accounting and audit experiences in Hong Kong.
Currently, she is a director of CAN (HK) CPA Limited. From
December 2016 to August 2020, she was the assistant financial
controller of Kirin Group Holdings Limited, a company listed on
the GEM of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 8109). From March
2011 to November 2016, she was senior auditor of SHINEWING
(HK) CPA Limited.

Ms. Lau is a qualified member of both The Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and The Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales. She obtained a Bachelor of
Arts in Accounting from Edinburgh Napier University.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Chan Lap Ping, aged 55, is a management of subsidiaries
of the Company. He joined the Group as general manager in
January 2004. He is primarily responsible for supervising the
day-to-day operations of our restaurants. He has over 20 years
of experience in restaurant operations in Hong Kong, of which
he worked as a manager of various restaurants responsible for
managing day-to-day operation of restaurants.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Chan Chiu Hung Alex (“Mr. Alex Chan"), aged 57, is
the company secretary. He has over 18 years of experience
in managing companies listed in Hong Kong or overseas. He
obtained his bachelor of business administration (honours)
degree in finance from the Hong Kong Baptist University in
1990, and an advance diploma in specialist taxation from the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants in 2012.
Mr. Alex Chan is currently a fellow member of The Chartered
Governance Institute, a fellow member of The Hong Kong
Chartered Governance Institute, a fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, a fellow
member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England
and Wales and a member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Since September 2015, Mr. Alex
Chan has been an independent non-executive director of
Royal Century Resources Holdings Limited (stock code: 8125),
a company listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange. He has
also been an independent non-executive director of Kingkey
Intelligence Culture Holdings Limited (stock code: 550), a
company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, since
March 2016.

Save as disclosed above, each of our Directors and senior
management has not held directorships in the last three years in
other public companies the securities of which are listed on any
securities market in Hong Kong or overseas.

BUSINESS ADDRESS OF THE DIRECTORS

The business address of the Directors is same as the Company's
principal place of business in Hong Kong at Unit 3205, 32/F,
West Tower, Shun Tak Centre, No. 168-200 Connaught Road
Central, Hong Kong.
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Corporate Governance Report
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INTRODUCTION

The Board has adopted various policies to ensure compliance
with the code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code
("CG Code") under Appendix 15 of the GEM Listing Rules. For
the year ended 31 March 2023, the Company has complied with
the code provisions of the CG Code except for the following
deviation from the code provisions:

1. Rule 5.05(1) and 5.28 of the GEM Listing Rules

Reference was made to the announcement of the Company
dated 17 November 2022 in relation to the resignation
of Ms. Wong Syndia D., the Company failed to meet the
requirements of () having at least three independent non-
executive Directors on the Board and (i) the members of
the audit committee of the Company are not less than
three under 5.05(1) and 5.28 of the GEM Listing Rules. The
Company has appointed Ms. Lau Man Kei to fill the casual
vacancies on the Board for the position of independent non-
executive Director on 16 February 2023.

2. Code Provision A.2.1

Code provision A.2.1 stipulated that the roles of chairman
and chief executive should be separate and should not
be performed by the same individual. The post of the
chief executive of the Company has remained vacant
since 23 November 2020 and as at the date of this report.
The duties of chief executive have been performed by
other executive Directors. As there is a clear division of
responsibilities of each Director, the vacancy of the post
of chief executive did not have any material impact on
the operations of the Group. Nevertheless, the Board will
review the current structure from time to time and if a
candidate with suitable knowledge, skill and experience is
identified, the Board will make an appointment to fill the
post of chief executive as appropriate.

The Company will continue to enhance its corporate
governance appropriate to the conduct and growth of its
business and to review its corporate governance from time to
time to ensure they comply with the statutory and the CG Code
and align with the latest developments.
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board’s primary responsibilities are to oversee the
management of the Group, to formulate the Group’s long-term
corporate strategy including the formulation and approval of all
policy matters, internal control and risk management systems,
to evaluate the performance of the Group and to assess the
achievement of targets periodically set by the Board.

In addition, the Board has also established Board Committees
and has delegated to these Board Committees various
responsibilities set out in their terms of reference respectively.

The Board has delegated the authority and responsibility
for implementing day-to-day operations, business strategies
and management of the Group's businesses to the
executive directors, senior management and certain specific
responsibilities to the Board committees.

COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD

As at the date of this annual report, there are two executive
directors, namely Mr. Chow Yik (Chairman), and Mr. Tsui Wing
Tak and three independent non-executive directors (“INEDs"),
namely Mr. Chan Kwan Yung, Mr. Chong Alex Tin Yam and
Ms. Lau Man Kei.

The biographical details of each of the Directors are set out in
the section headed “Directors and Senior Management” of this
annual report.

The INEDs have brought in a wide range of business and
financial expertise and independent judgement to the Board.
Through active participation in the Board meetings and serving
on various Board committees, all INEDs will make various
contributions to the Company.

During the year ended 31 March 2023, the Board has at all
times met the requirements of the GEM Listing Rules relating
to the appointment of at least three INEDs with at least one
of them possessing appropriate professional qualifications
and accounting and related financial management expertise
as required under the GEM Listing Rules except for disclosure
above.
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The Company has received an annual confirmation of
independence in writing from each of the INEDs pursuant to
Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules. Based on such confirmation,
the Company considers that all the INEDs are independent and
have met the independence guidelines as set out in Rule 5.09
of the GEM Listing Rules up to the date of this annual report.

Proper insurance coverage in respect of legal actions against
the Directors' liability has been arranged by the Company.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company adopted a board diversity policy (the “Board
Diversity Policy”) from the date of Listing up to the date of
this corporate governance report. A summary of this Board
Diversity Policy, together with the measurable objectives set
for implementing this Board Diversity Policy, and the progress
made towards achieving those objectives are disclosed as

follows.

The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of having a
diverse Board and sees increasing diversity at the Board level as
an essential element in maintaining the Company’s competitive
advantage. In reviewing and assessing the Board’s composition,
the Board will consider a number of aspects, including but not
limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
professional qualifications, skills, knowledge, and industry and
regional experience.

The Nomination Committee will monitor the implementation
of the Board Diversity Policy and recommend any proposed
changes to the Board for approval. The Nomination Committee
will from time to time review the Board Diversity Policy as
appropriate to ensure its effectiveness.

The Nomination Committee of the Board has reviewed the
Board Diversity Policy to ensure its effectiveness and considered
that the Group achieved the Board Diversity Policy in the year
ended 31 March 2023.
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INEDs

The current INEDs are Mr. Chan Kwan Yung, Mr. Chong Alex Tin
Yam and Ms. Lau Man Kei. The INEDs help the management
to formulate the Group's development strategies, ensure the
Board prepares its financial and other mandatory reports in
strict compliance with required standards, and ensure the
Company maintains appropriate system to protect the interests
of the Company and the shareholders. The Company received
the annual confirmation from the INEDs in respect of their
independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules.
The Company considered all the INEDs to be independent.

CONTINUING PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT
According to the Code Provision A.6.5 of the CG Code,
all Directors shall participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills
to ensure their contribution to the Board remains informed
and relevant. The Company would arrange and/or introduce
some training for the Directors to develop and explore their
knowledge and skills.

The Directors confirmed that they have complied with the
Code Provision A.6.5 of the CG Code on the Directors’ training.
During the year ended 31 March 2023, all the Directors have
participated in continuous professional development and the
relevant details are set out below:

BMYFHITES
BRBIFMITEERRBBEL - HX
EREMBIGHZ L - BYFRITEEE
EREREASBENERKE BRE
SERBERATERAEAET B RE
il 58 B TR - W IR AR R BRFFE E A
I E AR E AR QR BRI & - AR F
EEREBYIFATEFRIBEGEMLETR
RIJ555.0916 3% i &Y F 2 8 3L M FERR BK » AR
NARRERBYFATESHABY
/|\f:to

HEERER
RIBEEEATRINTRIEFEALSE
ERESFSNBEEERR UBER
RS 2 ME M T RESERS
EOEMEBEBATEBEHEESIFLE
Ble RRABEREELH R HEIAET
SRR B R N B 9 L AN B AN R

EERRECHESHNBINETLE
BIRT AR ST AR X BALLG REZE
2023F3ANBUEFE - 2REFC2H
BESEER THHBHMEEER:

Directors Reading materials
B R
Executive directors HITEFE
Mr. Chow Yik (Chairman) B E (FE) v
Mr. Chan Lap Ping BRI e 4
(resigned on 3 January 2023) (R2023F 1 H3H BFE)
Mr. Tsui Wing Tak TRKGHEAE 4
Ms. Ho Oi Kwan A ZEF L
(resigned on 20 December 2022) (R2022F 12 H20H §#F) v
Independent non-executive directors BUIFNTEE
Ms. Wong Syndia D TEHEB L 4
(resigned on 17 November 2022) (R2022F 11517 H BE(F)
Mr. Chan Kwan Yung PREB\EE 4
Mr. Chong Alex Tin Yam HRELRE 4
Ms. Lau Man Kei BgHEL L v

(appointed on 16 February 2023)

(R2023F2H16H EZ(T)
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MEETINGS OF BOARD AND DIRECTORS'
ATTENDANCE RECORDS

Schedules for regular Board meetings are normally agreed with
the Directors in advance. In addition to the above, notice of at
least 14 days is given for a regular Board meeting. For other
Board meetings, reasonable notice is generally given.

Draft agenda of each Board meeting is usually sent to all
Directors together with the notice in order to give them an
opportunity to include any other matters in the agenda for
discussion in the meeting.

Board papers together with all appropriate, complete and
reliable information are sent to all Directors at least 3 days
before each Board meeting to provide them with materials
relating to the transactions to be discussed in the meeting in
order to enable them to make informed decisions. The Board
and each Director also have separate and independent access
to the senior management whenever necessary.

The Chairman, other Directors and other relevant senior
management normally attend regular Board meetings and,
where necessary, other Board and committee meetings to
advise on business developments, financial and accounting
matters, statutory compliance, corporate governance and other
major aspects of the Group.

The Company Secretary is responsible to keep minutes of all
Board and committee meetings. Draft minutes are normally
circulated to Directors for comments within a reasonable time
after each meeting and the final version is open for Directors’
inspection.

According to current Board practice, any material transaction,
which involves a conflict of interest for substantial shareholders
or a director, will be considered and dealt with by the Board at
a duly convened Board meeting. The M&A contains provisions
requiring directors to abstain from voting and not to be counted
in the quorum at meetings for approving transactions in which
such directors or any of their associates have a material interest.
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During the year ended 31 March 2023, ten Board meetings, one & £2023F3A31H IFFE ' B8 IT+ X

annual general meeting and two extraordinary meetings were EEE &% —ARRBAFRKE EMARK

held. The attendance record of each Director at the meetings is RIEFRIAE - ZEEMZH N E LR

set out in the table below: T
Annual Extraordinary
Board General General
Meeting Meeting Meeting
Attended/ Attended/ Attended/
Name of Directors Held Held Held

HEESE HERRAF HERRSH
EBRY/ KERB/ KERB/

EEpf BIRE BRY BIRE
Executive directors HITEE

Mr. Chow Yik (Chairman) FRE (£8) 9/10 1 2/2
Mr. Chan Lap Ping BRIy F kA%

(resigned on 3 January 2023) (R2023F1 H3H B 1F) 7/10 1/1 2/2
Mr. Tsui Wing Tak wXxERE 10/10 17 2/2
Ms. Ho Oi Kwan AEHLL

(resigned on 20 December 2022) (202212 H20H BEHTE) 6/10 11 2/2
Independent non-executive directors 7 EHTEE
Ms. Lau Man Kei gLt

(appointed on 16 February 2023) (R2023F2H16HEZ ) 0/10 01 0/2
Ms. Wong Syndia D FEELt

(resigned on 17 November 2022) (R2022F11 817 A §EF) 7/10 11 2/2
Mr. Chan Kwan Yung BR#IBLAE 10/10 1/1 2/2
Mr. Chong Alex Tin Yam HRELE 10/10 17 1/2

BOARD COMMITTEES EEZRET

The Board has established four Board committees, namely EZEg@COKUNEEFEZES AIEZE
the audit committee, the remuneration committee, the EB& HMEEC IZELTE@NEREE
B NERAQAIRERNE
EELEERARRERNEITHE

il

nomination committee and the legal compliance committee to
oversee particular aspects of the Company’s affair. The Board

o S 3

o

committees are provided with sufficient resources to discharge
their duties.

\
’
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

An audit committee has been established with its terms of
reference in compliance with Rules 528 to 5.33 of the GEM
Listing Rules, and paragraphs C.3.3 and C.3.7 of the CG Code.
The audit committee consists of three members, namely Mr.
Chong Alex Tin Yam, Mr. Chan Kwan Yung and Ms. Lau Man
Kei, all being INEDs. Mr. Chong Alex Tin Yam currently serves
as the chairman of the audit committee. The committee is to
assist the Board in fulfilling its responsibilities by providing an
independent review and supervision of financial reporting, by
satisfying themselves as to the effectiveness of the internal
controls of our Group, and as to the adequacy of the external
and internal audits.

With reference to the terms of reference, the primary
responsibilities of the audit committee, among others, are as
follow:

(@) to be primarily responsible for making recommendations
to the Board on the appointment, reappointment and
removal of the external auditors, and to approve and
review the remuneration and terms of engagement of the
external auditors;

(b) to review and monitor the external auditors’ independence
and objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process
in accordance with applicable standards;

() to develop and implement policy on engaging external
auditors to supply non-audit services;

(d) to monitor the integrity of financial statements and the
annual report and accounts, half-year report and quarterly
reports, and to review significant financial reporting
judgements contained in them;

(e) to discuss the internal control system with management of
our Group to ensure that the management of our Group
has performed its duty to have an effective internal control
system; and

BEREE®
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(/) to develop and review our Group's policies and practices
on corporate governance and make recommendations to
the Board and monitor our Group's policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements.

The members of the audit committee should meet at least
twice a year. During the year ended 31 March 2023, six audit
committee meetings were held to review the Group's annual
results and annual report for the year ended 31 March 2022,
first quarterly results for the three months ended 30 June
2022, interim results for the six months ended 30 September
2022, and third quarterly results for the nine months ended 31
December 2022, discussing the effectiveness of the corporate
governance, internal control, risk management, audit-related
and financial reporting matters, the nature and scope of audit
and reporting obligations before the audit commences and
the remuneration of the auditors. Our Group's consolidated
financial statements in respect of the year ended 31 March
2023 have been reviewed by the audit committee. There was
no disagreement between the Board and the audit committee
regarding the selection and appointment of the external
auditors during the year ended 31 March 2023. The audit
committee has recommended to the Board that Mazars CPA
Limited ("Mazars”) be nominated for re-appointment as the
Company’s auditor at the forthcoming AGM.

The attendance record of each Director at the audit committee
meeting is set out in the table below:

B E R a AR B B EEIABR
EER - YREFERLER UK
ERASENHRMEFERELTET
FREREERTE

=

REEGREREFELRITRAS

BERRITARNHE UEHAEEE
FRFIANBUEFENFEXEERT
B 2202268308 I =B AR E —
TR EE  H E2022F9A308 1E/~E A
R EASEAE - AR B E2022F 124318 1E
NEANE=FTREE TmEERH
AR RERESIE R E IR BIZAEE R
M REEE  UWHRENFRA wmER
1 K 0 ] K BB 3R E LA K 5T o A% BRAD
e NREBEHE2023F3A31HIEFE
MR E B RECHBEREZESEM-
EEgHELZEeRBERTAES
2023F3A31H IEFEMINEZ BN E
VTEERIB -BEREZESEZESTZN
EERRAFASRZBEFETRR(F
B)ERMERATAERAR ([FERIR])
Y=F¥iN/NEIR S =TT

SEBNERZETRRLFEREBA
TR

Audit Committee

Meeting

Name of Director Attended/Held

HEEXEESER

EEHA RBBITIRE

Mr. Chong Alex Tin Yam (Chairman) HRELRE (FE) 6/6
Ms. Wong Syndia D FEHmat

(resigned on 17 November 2022) (20229 11517 H BHT) 4/6

Mr. Chan Kwan Yung PRVDEFLE 6/6
Ms. Lau Man Kei B+

(appointed on 16 February 2023) (R2023%F27 16 HIEZ (F) 0/6

26 CBK HOLDINGS LIMITED / ANNUAL REPORT 2023



Corporate Governance Report
TERERRSE

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

A remuneration committee has been established with its
terms of reference in compliance with paragraph B.1.2 of
the CG Code. The remuneration committee consists of four
members, namely Mr. Chow Yik, the chairman of the Board
and an executive director, and Mr. Chan Kwan Yung, Mr. Chong
Alex Tin Yam and Ms. Lau Man Kei, being the INEDs. Ms. Lau
Man Kei currently serves as the chairman of the remuneration
committee.

The remuneration committee is obliged to report to the Board
on its decisions or recommendations. With reference to the
terms of reference of remuneration committee, the primary
duties, among others, are as follow:

(@) to formulate remuneration policy for the approval of the
Board;

(b) to make recommendations to the Board on our
Group's policy and structure for all Directors and senior
management remuneration and on the establishment
of a formal and transparent procedure for developing
remuneration policy;

(c) to review and approve the management's remuneration
proposals with reference to the Board's corporate goals
and objectives;

(d) to determine, with delegated responsibility or make
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual executive directors and senior
management of our Group;

() to make recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration of non-executive directors;

() to review and approve compensation payable to executive
directors and senior management of our Group for any
loss or termination of office or appointment to ensure that
it is consistent with contractual terms and is otherwise fair
and not excessive;

yMESS
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XERBRE

to review and approve compensation arrangements
relating to dismissal or removal of Directors for misconduct
to ensure that they are consistent with contractual terms
and are otherwise reasonable and appropriate; and

to consider the performance bonus for executive directors,
senior management and general staff, having regard to
their achievements against the performance criteria and by
reference to market norms, and make recommendations to
the Board.

The members of the remuneration committee should meet at

least once a year. During the year ended 31 March 2023, two

remuneration committee meetings were held to review and

make recommendations on the remuneration package of the

directors and senior management.

Pursuant to Code Provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, details of the
annual remuneration of the members of the senior management

by

band for the year ended 31 March 2023 are set out in the

section headed “Senior Management Remuneration” of this

annual report.

The attendance record of each Director at the remuneration

committee meeting is set out in the table below:
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54

h REATEE SREEBER—K
ETMNERERBAENELSRD
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SETOFMER TR FRENR
T&:

Remuneration
Committee Meeting

Name of Director Attended/Held

HEFMEES eSS

EEpA RE BITRE
Ms. Lau Man Kei (Chairman) JHEZ L (F/F)

(appointed on 16 February 2023) (R2023F2H 16 HEZ ) 0/2
Ms. Wong Syndia D (Chairman) TFEat (FE)

(resigned on 17 November 2022) (R20224F 11817 H BE(E) 1/2
Mr. Chow Yik JEW 5L 2/2
Mr. Chan Kwan Yung PRGBS E 2/2
Mr. Chong Alex Tin Yam HRELRE 2/2
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

A nomination committee has been established with its terms
of reference in compliance with paragraph A.5.2 of the CG
Code. The nomination committee of our Group consists of four
members, namely Mr. Chow Yik, the chairman of the Board
and an executive director, and Mr. Chan Kwan Yung, Mr. Chong
Alex Tin Yam and Ms. Lau Man Kei, being the INEDs. Mr. Chan
Kwan Yung currently serves as the chairman of the nomination
committee.

The nomination committee is obliged to report to the Board
on its decisions or recommendations. With reference to the

terms of reference of nomination committee, the primary duties,
among others, are as follow:

(a)

to formulate nomination policy for the Board'’s
consideration and implement the Board's approved
nomination policy;

to review the structure, size and composition (including
the skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board at least
annually and make recommendations on any proposed
changes to the Board to complement our Group's
corporate strategy;

to identify individuals suitably qualified to become
members of the Board and select or make
recommendations to the Board on the selection of
individuals nominated for directorships;

to receive nominations from shareholders or Directors
when such are tendered and to make recommendations
to the Board on the candidacy of the nominees, having
regard to the Board's compositional requirements and
suitability of the nominees;

to assess the independence of INEDs and review the
INEDs' confirmations on their independence; and make
disclosure of its review results in the corporate governance
report;

to make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or re-appointment of Directors and
succession planning for Directors, in particular the
chairman of the Board and the chief executive of our
Group; and
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(@ regularly review the contribution required from a Director
to perform his/her responsibilities to our Group, and
whether he/she is spending sufficient time performing
them.

The members of the nomination committee should meet at
least once a year. During the year ended 31 March 2023, two
nomination committee meetings were held to review and assess
(i) the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board, (i) the independence
of INEDs, and (iii) the performance of the directors. The
nomination committee had also made recommendations to the
Board on the appointment or re-appointment of Directors and
succession planning for Directors.

The attendance record of each Director at the nomination
committee meeting is set out in the table below:

(90 EMRNEENETEHANEEDN
RERMAFLNER ARER
BRARARMABITZERE

REZECEHERBFRTEL—XE
FHoMNEIE2023F3A3NBILEE  REE
BEBRITMAEE R RF-HOE
ESMER - RERMANK (BRI A
B AEER) (VB FERITE SR -
RiNEENRBE - IRZRZESNERE
ENEIREFTZEAREENELT
SmMEESREER -

EEFNRAEBGEHLFRERN
T

Nomination
Committee Meeting

Name of Director Attended/Held
HEREZEEER
EEnA KRB BITRE
Mr. Chan Kwan Yung (Chairman) FREGEB L (£/E) 2/2
Ms. Wong Syndia D TrErt
(resigned on 17 November 2022) (RO022F 11 517 H BEE) 1/2
Mr. Chow Yik JEI 5 A& 2/2
Mr. Chong Alex Tin Yam HERERE 2/2
Ms. Lau Man Kei 2 2+
(appointed on 16 February 2023) (R2023F2H 16 H#EZT) 0/2

LEGAL COMPLIANCE COMMITTEE

A legal compliance committee has been established for the
purpose of assisting in overseeing compliance with laws and
regulations relevant to our operations as well as the adequacy
and effectiveness of regulatory compliance procedures and
system. The legal compliance committee comprises: (i) Mr.
Chow Yik, the chairman of the Board and an executive director;
and (i) Mr. Chan Kwan Yung, Mr. Chong Alex Tin Yam and
Ms. Lau Man Kei, being INEDs.
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With reference to the terms of reference, the primary

responsibilities of the legal compliance committee, among

others, are as follow:

(a)

to review the effectiveness of the Group's regulatory
compliance procedures and system, including operational
and compliance procedures and risk management
functions;

to assess and review the adequacy of resources, staff
qualifications and experience, and training programmes in
relation to the Group's regulatory compliance functions;

to assist the audit committee of the Company in
overseeing the Group's corporate governance functions,
which includes (i) developing and reviewing the policies
and practices on corporate governance and making
recommendations to the audit committee on a quarterly
basis; (ii) reviewing and monitoring the training and
continuous professional development of Directors and
senior management; (iii) reviewing and monitoring the
Group's policies and practices on compliance with legal
and regulatory requirements; and (iv) reviewing the
compliance with the Corporate Governance Code set
out in Appendix 15 to the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the GEM of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited and the disclosure in the corporate
governance report to be included in the annual report of
the Company;

to receive and handle any actual or suspected non-
compliance matters reported by the employees of the
Group and engage external professional advisers to
assist in the preparation of reports and recommendations
in respect of such actual or suspected non-compliance
matters; and

to review the effectiveness of the Group's ongoing
measures to prevent future noncompliance incidents
and provide updates on the applicable laws related to
the Group's business operations with the assistance of
external professional parties including legal advisers as to
Hong Kong law, compliance adviser, and internal control
consultant from time to time.
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The members of the legal compliance committee should meet
at least once a year. During the year ended 31 March 2023,
one legal compliance committee meeting was held to review
and assess (i) the compliance policies of the Company against
the applicable laws and regulations and (ii) the training and
continuing professional development of the directors and senior
management.

The attendance record of each Director at the legal compliance
committee meeting is set out in the table below:

FRAREZEENEREFRTE L —
IREF - REZE2023F3A3NBIEFE - &
BAREZEGYRIT—REH UBRTK
FEOAREHEBEREERRINE
BER RNESERSREEABNE
MISEEEERE-

BEEENERARETEE
NN

i3S
T8

% 7 RC 8

Legal Compliance
Committee Meeting

Name of Director Attended/Held
HEEEAREER
EEpnE CEYS V8
Mr. Chow Yik (Chairman) BRAE A (F5E) 1/1
Ms. Wong Syndia D FEHmat
(resigned on 17 November 2022) (R2022F11.517 H g (F) 1/1
Mr. Chan Kwan Yung PRVEFLE 11
Mr. Chong Alex Tin Yam HXRERE 1/1
Ms. Lau Man Kei ZIgH
(appointed on 16 February 2023) (R2023F2H 16 HIEZ (T) 0/1

AUDITOR’'S REMUNERATION

The Group's independent external auditor is Mazars. The
remuneration for the audit and non-audit services provided by
Mazars to the Group during the year ended 31 March 2023 was
approximately as follows:

BEEM <
RNEBRB L INEZERD AT ERIR -5t
hERBNE E2023FE3 8310 IEFEEH
A& BRI R IEZE R BB LY
T :

Amount

o]

Type of Services (HK$'000)
BR 7% 38 Bl (F%&7T)
Audit services 1% ER R 75 820
Non-audit services (Note) IEZBARTE (MI5E) 15
Total HEES 835

Note: B3 -

The non-audit services were rendered in respect of the agreed-upon procedures
regarding adjustments to the exercise price of share options and the number of
shares to be issued upon the exercise of the outstanding share options.
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INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the effectiveness
of the Group's internal control and risk management systems.
Such internal control and risk management systems are
designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to
achieve business objectives and can only provide reasonable
but not absolute assurance against material misstatement or
loss. The Board had conducted a review on the effectiveness
of the Group's internal control and risk management systems
during the year ended 31 March 2023 which covered financial,
operational, compliance, procedural and risk management
functions and had considered the adequacy of resources, staff
qualifications and experience, training programmes and budget
of the Company’s accounting and financial reporting function.
In light of the size and scale of the Group's business, the Group
does not have an internal audit function as the Board has
reviewed the effectiveness of the internal control system of the
Company and is currently of the view that there is no immediate
need to set up an internal audit function within the Group. The
Board will review and consider to establish such department as
and when it thinks necessary.

The Group has engaged an external professional consultant to
conduct independent internal control review for the year ended
31 March 2023 and the review is completed as at the date of
this annual report.

The Group believes that good corporate governance practices
are very important for maintaining and promoting investor
confidence and for the sustainable growth of the Group. The
Group has therefore made continued efforts to uplift its quality
of corporate governance. It has established a highly effective
system of internal controls and adopted a series of measures
to ensure its safety and effectiveness. As a result, the Group
is able to safeguard its assets and protect the interests of its
shareholders.

The Board is of the view that the systems of internal control and
risk management are effective and there are no irregularities,
improprieties, fraud or other deficiencies that suggest material
deficiency in the effectiveness of the Group's internal control
system.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors understand and acknowledge their responsibility
for preparing the consolidated financial statements and
ensuring that the consolidated financial statements for each
financial year are prepared to give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs, profitability and cash flows of the Group for that
period in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements of the Group
for the year ended 31 March 2023, the Directors have adopted
appropriate and consistent accounting policies and made
prudent and reasonable judgements and estimations. The
Directors are responsible for maintaining proper accounting
records which reflect with reasonable accuracy the state of
affairs, operating results, cash flows and equity movement of the
Group at any time. The Directors confirm that the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements of the Group is
in accordance with statutory requirements and applicable
accounting standards.

The Directors also confirm that, to the best of their knowledge,
information and belief, having made all reasonable enquiries,
they are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the
Company'’s ability to continue as a going concern.

COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. Chan Chiu Hung Alex is the company secretary of the

Company. The biographical details of him is set out in the
section headed “Directors and Senior Management” of
this annual report. In accordance with Rule 5.15 of the GEM
Listing Rules, he had taken no less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training during the year ended 31 March 2023.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS AND SHAREHOLDERS'
RIGHTS

The Company uses a number of channels to communicate
to shareholders and investors on the performance of the
Company, including (i) the publication of quarterly, interim and
annual reports; (i) the AGM or extraordinary general meeting
which provide a forum for shareholders of the Company to
raise comments and exchange views with the Board; (iii) key
information on the Group is available on the website of the
Company; and (iv) the Company's share registrars in Hong Kong
serve the shareholders on all share registration matters. The
Company aims to provide its shareholders and investors with
high standard of disclosure and financial transparency.

Shareholders are encouraged to attend the AGM for which at
least 21 days’ notice is given. The chairperson of the Board on
other Directors are available to answer shareholders’ questions
on the Group's business at the meetings. All shareholders have
statutory rights to call for extraordinary general meetings and to
put forward an agenda for consideration.

According to Article 23 of the Articles of Association of
the Company (the “Articles of Association”), one or more
shareholders holding, at the date of deposit of the requisition,
not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company,
have the right of voting at general meetings. Such requisition
shall be made in writing to the Board or the company secretary
of the Company for the purpose of requiring an extraordinary
general meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of
any business specified in such requisition.

There are no provisions allowing shareholders to move
new resolutions at general meetings under the Articles of
Association. Shareholders who wish to move a resolution may
request the Company to convene a general meeting following
the procedures set out in the preceding paragraph.
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If a Shareholder wishes to propose a person (the “Candidate”)
for election as a Director at a general meeting, he/she shall
deposit a written notice (the “Written Notice”) to the Company’s
principal place of business in Hong Kong at Unit 3205, 32/F,
West Tower Shun Tak Centre, No. 168-200 Connaught Road
Central, Hong Kong. The Written Notice (i) must include the
personal information of the Candidate as required by Rule
17.50(2) of the GEM Listing Rules; and (ii) must be signed by the
Shareholder concerned and signed by the Candidate indicating
his/her willingness to be elected and consent of the publication
of his/her personal information. The period for lodgment of the
Written Notice shall commence on the day after the despatch
of the notice of general meeting and end no later than 7 days
prior to the date of such general meeting.

In order to ensure the shareholders have sufficient time to
receive and consider the proposal of election of the Candidate
as a Director without adjourning the general meeting,
shareholders are urged to submit and lodge the Written Notice
as early as practicable preferably at least 15 business days prior
to the date of the general meeting appointed for such election.

Shareholders may send written enquiries by post, together with
his/her contact details, such as postal address, email or fax,
addressing to the Board at the head office of the Company at
the following address:

CBK Holdings Limited

Unit 3205, 32/F,

West Tower Shun Tak Centre,

No. 168-200 Connaught Road Central,
Hong Kong

Attention: Board of Directors
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy that aims to
enhance the shareholders’ value. The Company’s ability
to pay dividends will depend on, among others, our result
of operations, cash flows and financial condition, general
business conditions and strategies, our operating and capital
requirements, the amount of distributable profits based on the
generally accepted accounting principles in Hong Kong and
other factors which the Board deems relevant and having regard
to the director’s fiduciary duties.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There are no significant changes in the Company’s constitutional
documents during the year ended 31 March 2023.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company adopted a code of conduct regarding Directors'’
securities transactions on terms no less exacting than the
required standard of dealings set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67
of the GEM Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiries of
all Directors, the Company confirms that the Directors have
complied with such required standard of dealings and the
Company’s code of conduct regarding directors’ securities
transactions from the date of Listing and up to the date of this
report.
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The Board is pleased to present their annual report together
with the audited consolidated financial statements of the Group
for the year ended 31 March 2023.

BUSINESS REVIEW

For business review of the Group for the year, please refer to
“Chairman’s Statement” and “Management Discussion and

Analysis” sections.

PRINCIPAL RISK AND UNCERTAINTIES

Our Group believes that there are certain risk and uncertainties
involved in its operations, some of which are beyond our
Group's control. Our Group has categorised these risks and
uncertainties into: (i) risks relating to our business; and (ii)
risks relating to our industry. Some of our principal risk and
uncertainties include:

e we are susceptible to instances of food poisoning,
customer complaints and any other negative publicity
associated with our restaurants or food safety in general, in
which case value of our brands may suffer;

e hotpot dining, Japanese cuisine and Korean BBQ may lose
popularity and our financial conditions and future growth
may be adversely affected;

e the lack of suitable locations on commercially viable
terms, the increase in rental expenses and failure to renew
existing leases of the leased properties may adversely
affect our results of operations;

e our profitability is dependent upon the spending power
of our target consumers and a decline of such spending
power may adversely affect our business;

®  opening new hotpot restaurants may result in fluctuations
in our financial performance;

e our overall performance may be affected by temporary
suspension of our operations for renovation and closure of
certain restaurants; and

e our success depends on our key personnel and our ability
to attract, motivate and retain a sufficient number of
qualified employee.
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For further details about the principal risk and uncertainties of

the Group for the year, please refer to “Risk Factors” section of

the Prospectus.

Our Group has established structures and measures to manage

our risks, including but not limited to the following:

(1)

(ii)

(iii)

our Board conducts a thorough examination of any
material risks associated with any material business
decision before making or approving such decision;

our senior management monitors daily operations and any
associated operational risks of our Group. They are also
responsible for identifying and assessing potential market
risks related to fluctuations in industrial environment and
movements in market variables and report irregularities
in connection with operational and market risks to our
executive Directors for formulating policies to mitigate
these risks;

our audit committee reviews the internal control system
and procedures for compliance with the requirements
of applicable laws and regulations and the Corporate
Governance Code, details of which are set out in the
Corporate Governance Report;

our Group has engaged an external professional consultant
to conduct independent internal control review for the
year ended 31 March 2023 and the review is completed as
at the date of this annual report; and

our Group has appointed an external legal adviser to
advise us on compliance with and to provide us with
updates on the changes in the GEM Listing Rules and the
applicable Hong Kong laws, rules and regulations from
time to time and as required.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES
The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.

The principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 29
to the consolidated financial statements. The principal activity
of the Group is the provision of catering services, and sales and

processing of food in Hong Kong.
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RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2023 and
the financial position of the Group as at that date are set out in
the consolidated financial statements on pages 75 to 179.

The Board did not recommend the payment of any dividend in
respect of the year ended 31 March 2023.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results and of the assets and
liabilities of the Group is set out on page 180 of the annual
report. The summary does not form part of the audited financial
statements.

Financial Resources and Liquidity

As at 31 March 2023, current assets amounted to approximately
HK$9.8 million (2022: approximately HK$18.1 million) of which
approximately HK$2.7 million (2022: approximately HK$5.7
million) was cash and cash equivalents, and approximately
HK$6.8 million (2022: approximately HK$12.3 million) was trade
receivables, deposits, prepayments and other receivables. The
Group's current liabilities amounted to approximately HK$20.2
million (2022: approximately HK$13.0 million), including trade
payables and accruals and other payables in the amount of
approximately HK$11.2 million (2022: approximately HK$8.0
million), interest-bearing borrowings of HK$5.0 million (2022:
Nil) and lease liabilities of approximately HK$4.0 million (2022:
approximately HK$5.0 million). Current ratio and quick ratio
were approximately 0.5 and approximately 0.5 respectively
(2022: approximately 1.4 and approximately 1.4 respectively).

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS AND
CAPITAL ASSETS

Save as disclosed in the prospectus of the Company dated 17
May 2023 and in this annual report, the Group did not have
other plans for material investments or capital assets as of 31
March 2023 and up to the date of this report.
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USE OF NET PROCEEDS AND CHANGE IN USE OF
NET PROCEEDS

U

Proceeds from the listing

The Company was listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange
on 15 February 2017 (the "“Listing”) and the net
proceeds raised by the Company from the Listing were

approximately HK$53.5 million. Reference is made to the

announcement of the Company dated 13 December 2021,

the Group's indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary has entered

a lease of San Po Kong site and the opening of San Po

Kong Restaurant, a Korean BBQ and hotpot restaurant, will
be funded by the proceeds from the Listing.

As at the date of this report, the net proceeds from the
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Listing was fully utilised as follows: CEXREERNT
Unused net
Revised proceeds
allocation of Amount  from the Listing Amount
Actual net  unutilised net utilised up to asat utilised up to Unused net
proceeds from  proceeds from 31 March 31 March 31 March proceeds
the Listing the Listing 2022 2022 2023 from the Listing
20225
ABALD BEZE2022%F 38318 HE20235F
ERLTHE  FSRERHE 38318 ABALT 38318 ABALT
TERE  NEBTIR EBALE FEREEE EHASE FENEEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TET TR THERT TERT TER
Opening new hotpot restaurants FRITARE 27,000 (9,520) 14,980 2,500 (2,500 -
Setting up a central kitchen RIFPRERE 6,000 (5,215) 785 - - -
Settlement of balance of consideration BRKESEL - 9,000 9,000 - - -
payable for the acquisition [ERRELE
Enhancement of existing hotpot restaurants 12 F3R B A HE 12,000 (1,243) 10,757 - - -
Strengthening information MEEABHLZS 2,000 (1,425) 575 - - -
technology system
Setting up a new head office R FEE 3,000 - 3,000 - - -
General working capital —REEES 3,500 8,403 11,903 - - -
53,500 - 51,000 2,500 (2,500) -
Note: The Board resolved to change the use of net proceeds from the MieE: BEFEMR2021F4A88REFE R L
Listing amounting to HK$22.4 million on 8 April 2021. For details, MAERIBEFRE2AE 8B THA
please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 8 April #oBHFE F2HARFABR
2021. 20214 A8H M A% o
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() Proceeds from the placing

42

References are made to the announcements of the
Company dated 31 May 2022 and 17 June 2022, the
Company has placed a total of 77,748,000 Placing Shares
at HK$0.038 per Placing Share (the “Placing”) on 17 June
2022 and the Company received net proceeds from the
Placing of approximately HK$2.84 million.

A total of 77,748,000 ordinary shares with nominal value of
HK$0.01 (equivalent to the total aggregate nominal value
of share of HK$777,480 was issued) have been successfully
placed by the Placing Agent to not less than six Placees at
the Placing price of HK$0.038 per Placing Share pursuant
to the terms and conditions of the Placing Agreement.

Reasons for the placing completed on 17 June 2022
("Placing”)

In the view that (i) the Placing Agreement is entered into
upon normal commercial terms following arm’s length
negotiations between the Company and the Placing
Agent; (i) net proceeds of the Placing can strengthen the
financial position of the Group and provide additional
working capital to the Group; and (iii) the Placing also
represents good opportunities to broaden the shareholder
base and the capital base of the Company. Accordingly,
the Board consider that the Placing is in the interests of
the Company and the Shareholders as a whole.

Placing Price

The Placing Price of HK$0.038 represents (i) a premium of
approximately 2.70% to the closing price of HK$0.037 per
Share as quoted on the Stock Exchange on the date of the
Placing Agreement; and (ii) a discount of approximately
9.52% to the average closing price of HK$0.042 per
Share as quoted on the Stock Exchange for the last five
consecutive trading days immediately prior to the date of
the Placing Agreement. The net placing price under the
Placing is approximately HK$0.037 per Placing Share.

As at the date of this report, the proceeds from the Placing
was fully utilised for general working capital of the Group
as intended.
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() Proceeds from the rights issue

References are made to the prospectus of the Company
dated 17 May 2023 and the announcement of the
Company dated 6 March 2023, 3 May 2023, 5 June 2023
and 13 June 2023, a total of 77,757,995 Rights Shares have
been issued at the price of HK$0.265 per share on 14 June
2023 (the "Rights Issue”) and the Company received net
proceeds from the Rights Issue of approximately HK$18.92

(In

RS RE

2R AR A R B B R2023F5H17H
B LR Z 52 & A QA &) B 21 A20234F
3A6H +2023F5H83H ~ 2023F6 A
5H N2023F6A13HM A E A &
77,757 ,9950% 4 i% f% 15 B 7R 2023F 6
A 148 1% 5 1%0.265/8 7T #) (B 1& 31T
([ERR]) RAR R B HRKE 2 BT

million. As at the date of this report, the net proceeds from BRIBEFENRBI8N2EEB TN
the Rights Issue have been applied and utilised as follows: A¥pEBH - HERMAERBEFED
TRAMERWMT:
Estimated timeline for
Actual net Amount utilised Unused net utilisation of unused
proceeds from from Rights  proceeds from net proceeds from
Rights Issue Issue Rights Issue Rights Issue
HIR B EEAMK ABAKR DAKBRAERAS
FEHRFE FEER  FAERERE WEFRCRGRER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tz TR TEx
Opening new restaurants FR B E 11,000 - 11,000 December 2023
2023F12R
Repayment of debts EBERER 5,200 5,200 -
General working capital —ReEES 2,720 710 2,010  October 2023
20235104
18,920 5910 13,010
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CHARITABLE DONATIONS

During the year, the Group has made charitable donations of
HK$141,000.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment
of the Group during the year are set out in note 15 to the
consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the Company’s share capital and movements during
the year are set out in note 26 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in reserves of the Group and the
Company during the year are set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on pages 79 to 80 and note
27(b) to the consolidated financial statements respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 March 2023, the Company has reserve available for
distribution to the Shareholders amounted to approximately
HK$2.2 million (2022: approximately HK$17.5 million).

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Apart from the contracts relating to the reorganisation of our
Group in relation to the listing and note 28 to consolidated
financial statements to this annual report, no other transactions,
arrangements or contracts of significance to which the Company
or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director of
the Company had a material interest subsisted at the end of the
year or at any time during the year.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

A summary of the related party transactions entered into
by the Group during the year is contained in note 28 to the
consolidated financial statements. None of the transactions as
described in the note fell under the definition of connected
transactions.
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INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

None of the Directors, the substantial shareholders and their
respective close associates had an interest in any business which
competes or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly,

with the businesses of the Group during the year ended or as at
31 March 2023.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year ended 31 March 2023 was the
Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements
to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any
other body corporate.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as the share option scheme disclosed below, the Company
has not entered into any equity-linked agreement (as defined
in section 6 of the Companies (Directors’ Report) Regulation
(Chapter 622D of the Laws of Hong Kong)).

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company has, in accordance with Chapter 23 of GEM
Listing Rules, refreshed the share option scheme adopted by
the resolutions in writing of all the shareholders passed on 20
January 2017 ("Share Option Scheme”), as approved by the
shareholders of the Company at the Extraordinary General
Meeting held on 27 May 2022.

A summary of the principal terms of the New Share Option
Scheme is set out as below:

(A) Purpose of the Share Option Scheme

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to attract and
retain the best available personnel, to provide additional
incentive to employees (full-time and part-time), directors,
consultants, advisers, distributors, contractors, suppliers,
agents, customers, business partners or service providers
of our Group and to promote the success of the business
of our Group.
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2023F3A3NH EF - FERRREEFE
BENEANERBEAMERNERNEERE
B EBER KA EENEEEERF
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(B)

(@)

(D)

46

Who may join and basis of eligibility

The Board may, at its absolute discretion and on such
terms as it may think fit, grant any employee (full-
time or part-time), director, consultant or adviser of our
Group, or any substantial shareholder of our Group, or
any distributor, contractor, supplier, agent, customer,
business partner or service provider of our Group, options
to subscribe at a price calculated in accordance with
paragraph (i) below for such number of Shares as it may
determine in accordance with the terms of the Share
Option Scheme.

The basis of eligibility of any participant to the grant of any
option shall be determined by the Board (or as the case
may be, our independent non-executive directors) from
time to time on the basis of his contribution or potential
contribution to the development and growth of our Group.

Price of shares

The subscription price of a Share in respect of any
particular option granted under the Share Option Scheme
shall be a price solely determined by our Board and
notified to a participant and shall be at least the higher
of: (i) the closing price of our Shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange'’s daily quotations sheet on the date of grant of
the option, which must be a business day; (ii) the average
of the closing prices of our Shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange's daily quotations sheets for the five business
days immediately preceding the date of grant of the
option; and (iii) the nominal value of a Share on the date
of grant of the option. For the purpose of calculating the
subscription price, where our Company has been listed on
the Stock Exchange for less than five business days, the
issue price of the Shares on the Stock Exchange shall be
used as the closing price for any business day fall within
the period before Listing.

Grant of options and acceptance of offers

An offer for the grant of options must be accepted within
seven days inclusive of the day on which such offer was
made. The amount payable by the grantee of an option to
our Company on acceptance of the offer for the grant of
an option is HK$1.
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(E) Maximum number of shares

(a)

Subject to sub-paragraphs (b) and (c) below, the
maximum number of Shares issuable upon exercise
of all options (excluding option previously granted
outstanding* cancelled, lapsed or exercised under
the Share Option Scheme) to be granted after Share
Option Scheme refreshed and renewed must not in
aggregate exceed 10% of our Shares in issue as at
the date of EGM passing the resolution. Therefore,
it is expected that our Company may grant options
in respect of up to 1,295,999 Shares after share

consolidation became effective on 20 June 2022.

The 10% limit as mentioned above may be refreshed
at any time by approval of the shareholders in general
meeting provided that the total number of Shares
which may be issued upon exercise of all options
to be granted under the Share Option Scheme and
any other share option schemes of our Company
must not exceed 10% of our Shares in issue as at
the date of approval of the refreshed limit. Options
previously granted under the Share Option Scheme
and any other share option schemes of our Company
(including those outstanding, cancelled or lapsed
in accordance with the terms of the Share Option
Scheme and any other share option schemes of our
Company) will not be counted for the purpose of
calculating the refreshed 10% limit. A circular must be
sent to our shareholders containing the information as
required under the GEM Listing Rules in this regard.
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(0 Our Company may seek separate approval by our
shareholders in general meeting for granting options
beyond the 10% limit provided the options in
excess of the 10% limit are granted only to grantees
specifically identified by our Company before such
approval is sought. In such event, our Company
must send a circular to our shareholders containing a
generic description of such grantees, the number and
terms of such options to be granted and the purpose
of granting options to them with an explanation as to
how the terms of the options will serve such purpose
and all other information required under the GEM
Listing Rules.

(d) The aggregate number of Shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and
yet to be exercised under the Share Option Scheme
and any other share option schemes of our Company
must not exceed 30% of our Shares in issue from time
to time. No options may be granted under the Share
Option Scheme or any other share option schemes of
our Company if this will result in such 30% limit being
exceeded.

(F) Maximum number of shares of each participant

48

The total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of options granted to any participant (including
both exercised and outstanding options) under the Share
Option Scheme or any other share option schemes of our
Company in any 12-month period up to the date of grant
shall not exceed 1% of the Shares in issue. Any further
grant of options in excess of such limit must be separately
approved by shareholders in general meeting with such
grantee and his associates abstaining from voting. In such
event, our Company must send a circular to our shareholders
containing the identity of the grantee, the number and terms
of the options to be granted (and options previously granted
to such grantee), and all other information required under
the GEM Listing Rules. The number and terms (including
the subscription price) of the options to be granted must be
fixed before the approval of our shareholders and the date
of the Board meeting proposing such further grant should be
taken as the date of grant for the purpose of calculating the
subscription price.
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(G) Grant of options to certain connected persons

(a)

Any grant of an option to a Director, chief executive
or substantial shareholder of our Company (or any
of their respective associates) must be approved by
our independent non-executive directors (excluding
any independent non-executive director who is the
grantee of the option).

Where any grant of options to a substantial
Shareholder or an independent non-executive
director (or any of their respective associates) will
result in the total number of Shares issued and to be
issued upon exercise of all options already granted
and to be granted to such person under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option schemes
of our Company (including options exercised,
cancelled and outstanding) in any 12-month period
up to and including the date of grant:

(i) representing in aggregate over 0.1% of our
Shares in issue; and

(i) having an aggregate value, based on the closing
price of our Shares at the date of each grant, in
excess of HK$5 million,

such further grant of options is required to be
approved by our shareholders at a general meeting of
our Company, with voting to be taken by way of poll.
Our Company shall send a circular to our shareholders
containing all information as required under the GEM
Listing Rules in this regard. All connected persons
of our Company shall abstain from voting (except
where any connected person intends to vote against
the proposed grant). Any change in the terms of an
option granted to a substantial Shareholder or an
independent non-executive director or any of their
respective associates is also required to be approved
by our shareholders in the aforesaid manner.
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(H) Restrictions on the times of grant of options

50

(a)

Our Company may not grant any options after inside

information has come to its knowledge until such

inside information has been announced. In particular,

no options may be granted during the period

commencing one month immediately preceding the

earlier of:

(1)

the date of the Board meeting (as such date
is first notified to the Stock Exchange in
accordance with the GEM Listing Rules) for
the approval of our Company’s results for any
year, half-year, quarterly or other interim period
(whether or not required under the GEM Listing
Rules); and

the deadline for our Company to publish an
announcement of the results for any year, half-
year or quarterly under the GEM Listing Rules,
or other interim period (whether or not required
under the GEM Listing Rules).

Further to the restrictions in paragraph (a) above, no

option may be granted to a Director on any day on

which financial results of our Company are published:

during the period of 60 days immediately
preceding the publication date of the annual
results or, if shorter, the period from the end of
the relevant financial year up to the publication
date of the results; and

during the period of 30 days immediately
preceding the publication date of the quarterly
results and half-year results or, if shorter, the
period from the end of the relevant quarterly or
half-year period up to the publication date of
the results.
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U

Q)

(K)

(L

Time of exercise of option

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms
of the Share Option Scheme at any time during a period
as the Board may determine which shall not exceed ten
years from the date of grant subject to the provisions of
early termination thereof.

Performance targets

Save as determined by the Board and provided in the
offer of the grant of the relevant options, there is no
performance target which must be achieved before any of
the options can be exercised.

Ranking of Shares

Our Shares to be allotted upon the exercise of an option
will be subject to all the provisions of the Articles for the
time being in force and will rank pari passu in all respects
with our fully paid Shares in issue on the date of allotment
and accordingly will entitle the holders to participate in
all dividends or other distributions paid or made after
the date of allotment other than any dividend or other
distribution previously declared or recommended or
resolved to be paid or made with respect to a record date
which shall be on or before the date of allotment, save that
our Shares allotted upon the exercise of any option shall
not carry any voting rights until the name of the grantee
has been duly entered on the register of members of our
Company as the holder thereof.

Rights are personal to grantee

An option shall not be transferable or assignable and shall
be personal to the grantee of the option.
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(M) Rights on cessation of employment by death

(N)

52

In the event of the death of the grantee (provided
that none of the events which would be a ground for
termination of employment referred to in (N) below arises
within a period of three years prior to the death, in the
case the grantee is an employee at the date of grant),
the legal personal representative(s) of the grantee may
exercise the option up to the grantee’s entitlement (to
the extent which has become exercisable and not already
exercised) within a period of 12 months following his death
provided that where any of the events referred to in (Q),
(R) and (S) occurs prior to his death or within such period
of 12 months following his death, then his legal personal
representative(s) may so exercise the option within such of
the various periods respectively set out therein.

Rights on cessation of employment by dismissal

In the event that the grantee is an employee of our Group
at the date of grant and he subsequently ceases to be
an employee of our Group on any one or more of the
grounds that he has been guilty of serious misconduct,
or has committed an act of bankruptcy or has become
insolvent or has made any arrangement or composition
with his or her creditors generally, or has been convicted
of any criminal offence involving his integrity or honesty
or (if so determined by the Board) on any other ground
on which an employer would be entitled to terminate his
employment at common law or pursuant to any applicable
laws or under the grantee'’s service contract with our
Group, his option shall lapse automatically (to the extent
not already exercised) on the date of cessation of his
employment with our Group.
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(O) Rights on cessation of employment for other

(P)

reasons

In the event that the grantee is an employee, a consultant
or an adviser (as the case may be) of member of our
Group at the date of grant and he subsequently ceases to
be an employee, a consultant or an adviser (as the case
may be) of our Group for any reason other than his death
or the termination of his employment of an employee or
engagement of a consultant or an adviser (as the case may
be) on one or more of the grounds specified in (N) above,
the option (to the extent not already lapsed or exercised)
shall lapse on the expiry of three months after the date
of cessation of such employment of an employee or
engagement of a consultant or an adviser (as the case may
be) (which date will be in the case of an employee the last
actual working day, on which the grantee was physically
at work with our Company or the relevant member of our
Group whether salary is paid in lieu of notice or not, and in
the case of a consultant or an adviser (as the case may be),
the last actual day of providing consultancy or advisory
services to the relevant member of our Group).

Effects of alterations to share capital

In the event of any alteration in the capital structure of our
Company whilst any option remains exercisable, whether by way
of capitalisation of profits or reserves, rights issue, open offer,
consolidation, subdivision or reduction of the share capital of
our Company (other than an issue of Shares as consideration in
respect of a transaction to which any member of our Group is a
party), such corresponding adjustments (if any) shall be made in
the number of Shares subject to the option so far as unexercised;
and/or the subscription prices, as the auditors of or independent
financial adviser to our Company shall certify or confirm in writing
(as the case may be) to the Board to be in their opinion fair and
reasonable in compliance with the relevant provisions of the
GEM Listing Rules, or any guideline or supplemental guideline
issued by the Stock Exchange from time to time, provided that
any alteration shall give a grantee, as near as possible, the same
proportion of the issued share capital of our Company as that
to which he was previously entitled, but no adjustment shall be
made to the effect of which would be to enable a Share to be
issued at less than its nominal value.
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(Q) Rights on a general offer

(R)

54

In the event of a general offer (whether by way of
takeover offer or scheme of arrangement or otherwise in
like manner) being made to all our shareholders (or all
such holders other than the offeror and/or any persons
controlled by the offeror and/or any person acting in
association or concert with the offeror) and such offer
becoming or being declared unconditional, the grantee
(or, as the case may be, his legal personal representative(s))
shall be entitled to exercise the option in full (to the extent
not already lapsed or exercised) at any time within one
month after the date on which the offer becomes or is
declared unconditional.

Rights on winding-up

In the event a notice is given by our Company to our
members to convene a general meeting for the purposes
of considering, and if thought fit, approving a resolution to
voluntarily wind-up our Company, our Company shall on
the same date as or soon after it despatches such notice
to each member of our Company give notice thereof to all
grantees and thereupon, each grantee (or, as the case may
be, his legal personal representative(s)) shall be entitled
to exercise all or any of his options at any time not later
than two business days prior to the proposed general
meeting of our Company by giving notice in writing to
our Company, accompanied by a remittance for the full
amount of the aggregate subscription price for our Shares
in respect of which the notice is given whereupon our
Company shall as soon as possible and, in any event, no
later than the business day immediately prior to the date
of the proposed general meeting referred to above, allot
the relevant Shares to the grantee credited as fully paid.
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(S) RIMMRIHBEN R R ER

(S) Rights on compromise or arrangement

In the event of a compromise or arrangement between
our Company and our shareholders or the creditors of our
Company being proposed in connection with a scheme for
the reconstruction of our Company or its amalgamation
with any other company or companies pursuant to the
Companies Law, our Company shall give notice thereof to
all the grantees (or, as the case may be, their legal personal
representatives) on the same day as it gives notice of the
meeting to our shareholders or the creditors to consider
such a compromise or arrangement and the options (to
the extent not already lapsed or exercised) shall become
exercisable in whole or in part on such date not later
than two business days prior to the date of the general
meeting directed to be convened by the court for the
purposes of considering such compromise or arrangement
(“Suspension Date”), by giving notice in writing to our
Company accompanied by a remittance for the full
amount of the aggregate subscription price for our Shares
in respect of which the notice is given whereupon our
Company shall as soon as practicable and, in any event, no
later than 3:00 p.m. on the business day immediately prior
to the date of the proposed general meeting, allot and
issue the relevant Shares to the grantee credited as fully
paid. With effect from the Suspension Date, the rights of all
grantees to exercise their respective options shall forthwith
be suspended. Upon such compromise or arrangement
becoming effective, all options shall, to the extent that
they have not been exercised, lapse and determine. The
Board shall endeavour to procure that our Shares issued as
a result of the exercise of options hereunder shall for the
purposes of such compromise or arrangement form part of
the issued share capital of our Company on the effective
date thereof and that such Shares shall in all respects be
subject to such compromise or arrangement. If for any
reason such compromise or arrangement is not approved
by the court (whether upon the terms presented to the
court or upon any other terms as may be approved by such
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56

court), the rights of grantees to exercise their respective
options shall with effect from the date of the making of the
order by the court be restored in full but only up to the
extent not already exercised and shall thereupon become
exercisable (but subject to the other terms of the Share
Option Scheme) as if such compromise or arrangement
had not been proposed by our Company and no claim
shall lie against our Company or any of its officers for any
loss or damage sustained by any grantee as a result of
such proposal, unless any such loss or damage shall have
been caused by the act, neglect, fraud or wilful default on
the part of our Company or any of our officers.

Lapse of options

An option shall lapse automatically on the earliest of:

(i) the expiry of the period referred to in paragraph ()
above;

(i)  the date on which the Board exercises our Company'’s
right to cancel, revoke or terminate the option on
the ground that the grantee commits a breach of
paragraph (L);

(i) the expiry of the relevant period or the occurrence of
the relevant event referred to in paragraphs (M), (O),
(Q), (R) or (S) above;

(iv) subject to paragraph (R) above, the date of the
commencement of the winding-up of our Company;

(v)  the occurrence of any act of bankruptcy, insolvency
or entering into of any arrangements or compositions
with his creditors generally by the grantee, or
conviction of the grantee of any criminal offence
involving his integrity or honesty;
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(vi) where the grantee is only a substantial shareholder
of any member of our Group, the date on which the
grantee ceases to be a substantial shareholder of

such member of our Group; or

(vii) subject to the compromise or arrangement as
referred to in paragraph (S) become effective, the
date on which such compromise or arrangement

becomes effective.

Cancellation of options granted but not yet
exercised

Any cancellation of options granted but not exercised
may be effected on such terms as may be agreed with
the relevant grantee, as the Board may in its absolute
discretion sees fit and in a manner that complies with all
applicable legal requirements for such cancellation.

Period of the Share Option Scheme

The Share Option Scheme will remain in force for a period
of ten years commencing on the date on the Adoption
Date and shall expire at the close of business on the
business day immediately preceding the tenth anniversary
thereof unless terminated earlier by the shareholders in
general meeting.

The remaining life of the Share Option Scheme as at the
date of Annual Report was about 3 years and 7 months.

(W) Alteration to the Share Option Scheme

(i)  The Share Option Scheme may be altered in any
respect by resolution of the Board except that
alterations of the provisions of the Share Option
Scheme which alters to the advantage of the grantees
of the options relating to matters governed by Rule
23.03 of the GEM Listing Rules shall not be made
except with the prior approval of the shareholders in
general meeting.
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(i) Any amendment to any terms and conditions of the
Share Option Scheme which are of a material nature
or any change to the terms of options granted, or
any change to the authority of the Board in respect
of alteration of the Share Option Scheme must be
approved by shareholders in general meeting except
where the alterations take effect automatically under
the existing terms of the Share Option Scheme.

(i) Any amendment to any terms of the Share Option
Scheme or the options granted shall comply with the
relevant requirements of the GEM Listing Rules and
the Notes thereto and the supplementary guidance
on the interpretation of the GEM Listing Rules issued
by the Stock Exchange from time to time or any
guidelines issued by the Stock Exchange from time to
time.

(X) Termination to the Share Option Scheme

(Y)

58

Our Company by resolution in general meeting or the
Board may at any time terminate the operation of the
Share Option Scheme and in such event no further
options will be offered but options granted prior to such
termination shall continue to be valid and exercisable
in accordance with the provisions of the Share Option
Scheme.

Conditions of the Share Option Scheme

The Share Option Scheme is conditional upon the Stock
Exchange granting the listing of, and permission to deal in,
our Shares which may be issued pursuant to the exercise of
any options which may be granted under the Share Option
Scheme, and commencement of dealings in the Shares on
the Stock Exchange.
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(Z) Movement of the Share Options

There is no vesting period of the Share Options. During
the year ended 31 March 2023, no option has been
granted or agreed to be granted under the Share Option
Scheme.

The movement of the Share Options during the year
ended 31 March 2023 and outstanding as at 31 March
2023 are set out in note 32 to the consolidated financial
statements of the Group in the Annual Report.

DIRECTORS
The Directors during the year and up to the date of this annual
report are as follows:

Executive directors

Mr. Chow Yik (Chairman)

Mr. Chan Lap Ping (resigned on 3 January 2023)
Ms. Ho Oi Kwan (resigned on 20 December 2022)
Mr. Tsui Wing Tak

Independent non-executive directors

Ms. Wong Syndia D (resigned on 17 November 2022)
Mr. Chan Kwan Yung

Mr. Chong Alex Tin Yam

Ms. Lau Man Kei (appointed on 16 February 2023)

Pursuant to article 84 of the Articles of Association, at each
annual general meeting, one-third of the Directors for the time
being (or, if their number is not a multiple of three, the number
nearest to but not less than one-third) shall retire from office
by rotation provided that every Director shall be subject to
retirement at an annual general meeting at least once every
three years. At the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company (the "AGM"), each of Mr. Chow Yik and Mr. Tsui Wing
Tak will retire from office as Director by rotation and, being
eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the AGM.

2) BREZZE
i SR 0 48 57 B8 B - Bl 2202343 A
INHLEFE BERERERESS
B RF B R E

RE £2023F3A318 -5 [Z B i
K HA2023F 3 A31H M AR TTH 2 B
E2E2BHENFTRAEE LA VB
HWERMIFEI2

S
RERREEAFHREPIEZEFOT :

HITES

BAWEE (FE)

BR <7 S A (202341 A3H BEIE)
A BB+ (R2022F 125208 & 1F)
KIS A

BYFHITES

T+ (R2022F11 5178 8 HE)
PREIEB A4

HRELE

BRI+ (R20235F2 516 EZEF)

RIBEBERARFEAME EBARRE
FREG L EREEN=92—FF (=
W ABAIF=2 B8 A RERELETD
R=nzZz—)AWmERT HEBREFA
ELEFERRRBFREG LRE—R-
EARARRIEEERRBEARE (IIRREF
Rel) b AREERFKEREH S
BRIESHM UNAERKBREER
RIBFRE LBEET-

BEER AR AT / 20235 F 1R 59



Directors’ Report
EEERESE

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS AND LETTERS
OF APPOINTMENT

Mr. Chow Yik was appointed as an executive director pursuant
to his appointment letter dated 11 December 2020 with no
fixed term of service commencing from 11 December 2020.

Mr. Tsui Wing Tak was appointed as an executive director
pursuant to his appointment letter dated 11 December 2020
with no fixed term of service commencing from 11 December
2020.

Mr. Chan Kwan Yung was appointed as an independent non-
executive director pursuant to his appointment letter dated
31 December 2021 for a term of one year commencing on
31 December 2021 and shall continue and subject to re-election
in the annual general meeting after his appointment.

Mr. Chong Alex Tin Yam was appointed as an independent
non-executive director pursuant to his appointment letter date
30 July 2021 for a term of one year commencing from 30 July
2021 and shall continue and subject to re-election in the annual
general meeting after his appointment.

Ms. Lau Man Kei was appointed as an independent non-
executive director pursuant to her appointment letter dated
16 February 2023 for a term of one year commencing on 16
February 2023 and shall continue and subject to re-election in
the annual general meeting after her appointment.

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company which
is not determinable by the Company within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

INDEPENDENCE CONFIRMATION

The Company has received confirmation from each of the
INEDs regarding his independence in accordance with Rule 5.09
of the GEM Listing Rules and therefore considers each of them
to be independent.

EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS, CHIEF EXECUTIVE
AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

Details of the emoluments of the Directors, chief executive and
the five highest paid individuals of the Group are set out in
notes 11 and 12 to the consolidated financial statements.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT REMUNERATION

The remuneration paid to each of the senior management fell
within the following bands:

= AR E 1 8 A
AESREEENOFMEERDT

Number of individuals

AR

Nil to HK$1,000,000

HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000

£ %1,000,0007% 7T

3

1,000,001 7T 21,500,000/% 7T -
1,500,001 7T 22,000,000/% 7T -
2,000,0017% 7T % 2,500,000/ 7T, -

DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILE

Biographical details of the Directors and the Management of
the Group are set out on pages 15 to 18 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ AND CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS'
INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

None of the Directors or an entity connected with any of the
Directors had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
in any contract of significance to the business of the Group to
which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party at any
time during or at the end of the year ended 31 March 2023.

As of 31 March 2023, no contract of significance had been
entered into between the Company, or any of its subsidiaries
and the Controlling Shareholders of the Company or any of its
subsidiaries.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts, other than employment contracts, concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial
part of any business of the Group were entered into or existed
during the year ended 31 March 2023.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE

COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES
The Directors confirm that as at the date of the Listing on 15

February 2017 and up to the date of this annual report, there

has been no purchase, sale or redemption of the Company’s

listed securities by the Company or any of its subsidiaries.

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF DIRECTORS

AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE IN THE SHARES,

UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE
COMPANY AND ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

The interests of the directors in the share options of the

Company are detailed below.

BA HESBEAXRQTHN LEHE
%

BEERR N2017F28158 L E B LA
FEEAFHRBE L ARQ RSB
NEWEEE - S B R A DA/ EM[
FHEE

EERFETBRAEBREAQRFRA
HECEB R D  HER O REE
PR NRE

EERARABREROERN N

ﬂo

Number of
Exercise Number of share options Number of
share options cancelled share options
per share as at during the as at
option 1 April 2022 year ended 31 March
Name of Director Position/capacity  Date of grant Exercise period (Note) 31 March 2023 2023
H20224F BZE2023%F
SHERE 4A1BZ 3A31ALE R2023F
fTEE BREHA FERHZ 3A31AZ
EEpg R/ AE Riti B (fisE) 76EH (FzE) BREHE BREHE
Mr. Chow Yik Chairman and 10.1.2022 HK$6.87  10.1.2022-9.1.2032 129,200 - 129,200
Executive
Director
Ehobidis TREFNITEE 202517108 687ETT  2022F1R108E 129,200 - 129,200
203241 A9H
Mr. Tsui Wing Tak Executive Director ~ 10.1.2022 HK$6.87  10.1.2022-9.1.2032 129,200 - 129,200
HxERE HES 202241 A10R 687%TL  2022F1R108E 129,200 - 129,200
203261 A9H
Ms. Ho Oi Kwan Executive Director ~ 10.1.2022 HK$6.87  10.1.2022-9.1.2032 129,200 (129,200) -
(resigned on
20 December 2022)
AEHFLLT (R0NF #H7ES 2022617108 687 2022F1R108E 129,200 (129,200 -
12A208 %) 203261 A9H
387,600 (129,200) 258,400
Note:  Following the Share Consolidation became effective on 20 July 2022,  Bffst:  #RR & HFF2022F7 208 £ 3% « B ¥
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adjustments have been made to the exercise prices of the granted

share options and the number of Consolidated Shares to be issued

upon the exercise of the granted share options.
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Save as disclosed above, so far as the Directors are aware of,
as at the date of this report, none of the Directors and the chief
executive of the Company had any interests or short positions in
any shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or
any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV
of the SFO) which would have to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange: (i) pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part
XV of the SFO (including any interests and short positions in
which they are taken or deemed to have under such provisions
of the SFO); or (i) pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be
entered in the register referred to therein (the "Register”); or (iii)
pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules relating
to securities transactions by Directors to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange.

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS IN THE SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE
COMPANY AND ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

So far as the Directors are aware of, as at the date of this report,
the Directors were not aware of any other persons who/entities
which were directly or indirectly interested in 5% or more of the
issued voting shares of the Company, and: (i) had any interest
or short position in the shares or underlying shares that would
fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO; or (ii) which would be
recorded in the Substantial Shareholders’ Register required to
be kept under section 336 of the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at the date of this report, the
Directors were not aware of any persons who had any interest
or short position in the shares or underlying shares that would
fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which would be
recorded in the Substantial Shareholders’ Register required to
be kept under section 336 of the SFO.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

As far as the Director is aware, the Group has complied in
material respects with the relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the business and operation of the
Group. During the year, there was no material breach of or non-
compliance with the applicable laws and regulations by the
Group.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Group has no major customers for the catering services. For
sales and processing of food business, the revenue attributable
to the Group's largest customer and the top five customers
accounted for approximately 14.0% and 16.7% of the Group's
total revenue for the year ended 31 March 2023, respectively.

The aggregate purchases attributable to the Group's largest
supplier and the top five suppliers accounted for approximately
12.8% and 33.3% of the Group's total purchases for year ended
31 March 2023, respectively.

None of the Directors, their respective close associates, or any
shareholders of the Company (which, to the best knowledge
of the Directors, own more than 5% of the Company’s share
capital) had any significant beneficial interest in the major
customers and suppliers disclosed above.

Our Directors believe that our Group maintains good working
relations with its business partners and it endeavours to improve
the quality of services to customers.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of this annual report, based on information that
is publicly available to the Company and within the knowledge
of the Directors, the Directors confirm that the Company
maintained the amount of public float as required under the
GEM Listing Rules.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provision for pre-emptive or similar rights under
the laws of the Cayman lIslands or the Articles of Association
which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-
rata basis to the existing shareholders.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to article 164(1) of the Article and Association, the
Directors of the Company shall be indemnified and secured
harmless out of the assets and profits of the Company from
and against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and
expenses which they or any of them may incur or sustain by or
by reason of any act done, concurred in or omitted in or about
the execution of their duty, or supposed duty, in their respective
offices, or trusts. Such provisions were in force throughout
the year ended 31 March 2023 and are currently in force. The
Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover for
Directors’ Liabilities in respect of legal actions that may be
brought against the Directors.

DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION

The Directors’ fees are subject to shareholders’ approval at
general meetings. Other emoluments are determined by the
Board with reference to Directors’ duties, responsibilities and
performance and the results of the Group.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

The operations of our hotpot restaurants in Hong Kong are
subject to environmental protection laws and regulations
promulgated by the government of Hong Kong. The Group has
devoted operating and financial resources to environmental
compliance as required by Hong Kong laws and regulations in
the future. Apart from the daily cleaning procedures adopted
by each of our hotpot restaurants, our Group also engaged
external cleaning companies, which are independent third
parties, to provide regular services for us, including pest
control, garbage collection, carpet cleaning, aquarium cleaning
and grease tank cleaning. The Group has also implemented
policies to ensure that there is minimal waste from our business
operations. For example, we equipped our hotpot restaurants
with a multi-functional food washer to minimise the use of
water. In addition, we also pay a sewage services charge which
comprises a sewage charge and a trade effluent surcharge
and the charge is based on the amount of water used. The
sewage services charges were not exceeding HK$100,000
(2022: approximately HK$100,000) during the year ended 31
March 2023. Our Directors are of the opinion that the cost
of compliance with the applicable environmental laws and
regulations for the year ended 31 March 2023 to be immaterial.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE
REPORT

A separate environmental, social and governance report for the
year ended 31 March 2023 is published on the Stock Exchange's
website and the Company's website.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of the events after the reporting date of 31 March 2023
has been disclosed in Management Discussion and Analysis
section of this annual report. Save as disclosed therein and
elsewhere in this annual report, the Board is not aware of any
significant event requiring disclosure that has taken place
subsequent to 31 March 2023 and up to the date of this report.

AUDITORS

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited resigned as the auditor of
the Company with effect from 28 March 2022 and Mazars CPA
Limited has been appointed as the auditor of the Company
with effect from 28 March 2022 for the year ended 31 March
2022 and 31 March 2023. A resolution will be proposed at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company to re-
appoint Mazars CPA Limited as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board
Chow Yik
Chairman and Executive Director

Hong Kong, 29 June 2023
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mazars
B BH X W

TO THE MEMBERS OF CBK HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
CBK Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the "Group”) set out on pages 75
to 179, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position at 31 March 2023, the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement
of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the financial position of the Group at 31
March 2023, and of its financial performance and cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA") and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the "Audlitors Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements"” section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPAs Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Mazars CPA Limrtep
HREBIR(EE) enmssianad

42nd Floor, Central Plaza,

18 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong
T T AU TE3E 18 SRR ER B 42 B
Tel #Eif: (852) 2909 5555

Fax {81 (852) 2810 0032

Email E#: info@mazars.hk
Website #41ik: www.mazars.hk
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

BRAREXEE

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional RBARBEZETEARBEETSHEEXHALE Y5
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the ZEEZAHRGEVHEREZAEENSE-
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These WS EERESERGATHHE ML H
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the EAERE—(HEE ZETERUHETEES
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming 1TIRHEER -

our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion

on these matters.

Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter

HRELSEE BEEZERINNEEAREZSEE

Revenue recognition from the Group’s restaurant operations

B BXEREZELN N

We identified revenue recognition from  Our key audit procedures, among others, included:

restaurant operations as a key audit matter &%

as revenue recognition is quantitatively
significant to the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income and material revenue transactions
may be conducted in cash and/or occurred
close to the end of the reporting period.

EECHEEREERERREN RER
EZFEE ARNEERESEBR A

fEERARNEBFEKN  ARERIR

EHRATRE AR TR, RBEES AN

oo
AN
W o

Related disclosures are included in Notes
2 and 7 to the consolidated financial
statements.

HERESHNRE M B RRMFE2NMT -
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MERERERF (AT ek ef:

Obtaining an understanding of the Group’s revenue
recognition policy for the Group's restaurant operations;

TH BREERZEN SREWSERBEK:

Obtaining an understanding of the business processes
and key controls for validity of revenue recognition from
restaurant operations and performing test of control, on
a sample basis;
THERZRAERARENEBRIE AR
W AR E TR HDRIE

Verifying the revenue from restaurant operations
by reconciling revenue recognised for restaurant
operations against daily sales reports and agreeing the
amount with cash receipts and electronic settlement
statements, on a sample basis; and
BRAREREKHERNB ARG HHERSTETRY
WHERSWBECREE FAEERRSB|MERR Mk
ZEEREBHWA K

Performing analytical review on the revenue by
comparing with market trend, operating statistics and
other financial data (e.g. costs of materials consumed)
and considering the reasonableness.
BBERTISBE ELR RAMTBER (M EE
RERA)ETHE HRAETONEE YERES
Bt
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter
HREZSEE

EEEnsE (F)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BEEZERINMNEEAREZSEE

Impairment of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets

WE - BERREUREFHEEERE

At 31 March 2023, the Group has property,
plant and equipment of approximately
HK$6,344,000 (net of impairment) and
right-of-use assets of approximately
HK$4,243,000 (net of impairment) relating
to the Group's restaurant operations and
food processing business.
M2023F3A31H: BEXEEHERE

REMMIEFOME BE KRR %LA&
£ A& E 5 7l /& #16,344,0007% 7T ($0FR
RL{B) K #94,243,0007% 7T (FFRRE)

Our key audit procedures, among others, included:

BEENERERERF (BT eR)ef:

Evaluating the competence, capabilities and objectivity
of the Valuer to assess the value-in-use of each cash-
generating unit;

AZEEMEFESESELEVNERERBRLL
e BE N R EBIE

Assessing and challenging the valuation methodologies
adopted in the valuations with reference to the
requirements of the prevailing accounting standards;
R2ERITEAEA 2 BR FHERERNMEER X
Rz HETE:

Assessing the suitability of the source data as the basis
for the valuation by comparing key financial information
in the source data with the financial statements and
operational forecast prepared by the management of

the Group;
BRBRBBEZFENBEHAMBRRIE E5H
EEERRZQETRAETLE FHEREBEESEES
ERBERE:

BEER AR AT / 20235 F 1R 69



Independent Auditor’s Report

18 3 B BED

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter
BAREXEE

gEgSsE ()

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BEEZERINMEEFAREZSERE

The Group performed impairment
assessment of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets for its
operations that continued to underperform.
The management of the Group engaged
an independent professional valuer (the
"Valuer”) to assess the value-in-use of
property, plant and equipment and right-of-
use assets of each cash-generating unit for
the purpose of impairment assessment. The
impairment assessment involves estimation
by the management of the Group in
certain areas including the discount rate
and the underlying cash flow projection
based on the future market supply and
demand conditions. Any changes in the
management of the Group's estimates may
result in significant financial impact to the
Group.

We have identified the impairment
assessment of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets as a key
audit matter due to significant estimates
made by the management of the Group
in determining the recoverable amount of
such cash-generating unit.

Related disclosures are included in Notes
2, 4,15 and 16 to the consolidated financial
statements
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Assessing the key assumptions underlying the
operational forecasts by comparison with historical
financial performance together with market and other
externally available information;

i3 8 L B S B G SR IR E R Th 35 R K SN BREER 2
BRAMEBBKREEAZEIERR:

Assessing the discount rates applied in the cash flow
forecasts, by benchmarking against those of similar
companies in the markets;
A5 VR BIE R AL
BRI R

AHEIR R ETRBIFTER A

Re-performing the management of the Group's
calculations of the sensitivity of the key assumptions
adopted in the cash flow forecasts and considering
possible management bias in the selection of
assumptions; and

HEH1E ESEEEEUReRNERAMKAE
%Eﬁ Z@WWVS&%FE T ERRBEEEARTFEZ

&

Evaluating the sensitivity of impairment assessment to
changes in key assumptions.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the 2023 Annual Report of the Company but does
not include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work
we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors of the Company determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
of the Company are responsible for assessing the Group's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing
the Group's financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE

AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
This report is made solely to you, as a body, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group's internal control.

72 CBK HOLDINGS LIMITED / ANNUAL REPORT 2023

%ﬁﬁﬁ%%&%éﬁﬁ%#ﬁ%ﬁ’ﬂﬁ
T

EENERRAEREERGAVBRERR
BT B PO BUFF 308 RR 1 2 B B K 85 AR
Bl A HEHEAEFERORBMBE K
HEE R EEBIRIE L BRI Z SN E R
BHMBN BEEFTERABRESNARTRAME
MEMALTE FAEEAEE-

AREETENSERNKE EIGEERR
EEBBEEETHNEZEREREMER
R B KA SRR - #8 5R BR gt AT JR 70 BRRF =X
R WERNKBBESERPB A T A
EERERBEUFEEMBRRELOLE
RTE I AR DS E AR RERAL -

EEREEEEIEARTRROTESZ —

RERTLHE EREBLBEPREN

EIEREE - BE

o BARTEEAMBEERERRIERE
BTSN E AR ER B
ZEB R RATBRREF BERR
BEEEREENATENE LEME
Mo MBS RAREBE B HE
R R R SR R R
e 5K B B 3R L R B B A SR PR
B ECRAL TR M R T B B AR
ERRARES -

fR Bz G B ARSI LAREHE
MEZEF BAFFEEE E5E

i
NEEFINBERIZEERER -



Independent Auditor’s Report
& 3% BT R &

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors of the Company.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the use of the going
concern basis of accounting by the directors of the
Company and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as
a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance

regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and

timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any

significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during

our audit.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE

AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

We also provide those charged with governance with a
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards
applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law
and regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter
or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that
a matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

Mazars CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 29 June 2023

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor's report is:

She Shing Pang

Practising Certificate number: P05510

74 CBK HOLDINGS LIMITED / ANNUAL REPORT 2023

BREMAERREMBRRNE
£ (&)

BENRARERRESR RRESDHTAE
MBTHERESR PRAARABRAT
Y ETSHNBYHOBERECETRA
SR 0 22 4R 77 8 o B B A (4
) BUAIR BT HE -

EENEREEARNERT IREWLEIR
HARGEAMBRENBERIFRRER I
EMBREAREZER BRIDERIERTE
AMAFRBRBRLERR IREEFHNIER T
EERRPBLFTFHASERMNTIRE
RAEGHBBARMAEBUFEEE M & MR
BEPRE SAESERREEBRETH
At FEEIE

TERR(BERB)EHMEXAARLIF
BEEE AP

B 2023F6H29H

RABUZEAREETEZIEZ
BEER:

BN

MEBERY: P05510

A



Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
REBEEREMZE KSR

For the year ended 31 March 2023 & ZE2023F3A31H LFE

2023 2022
20234 20224
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt aE TERT FHETT
Continuing operations FFEREER
Revenue g =5 7 30,040 27,302
Cost of inventories sold BEEGFEKAK (12,987) (11,499)
Gross profit EF 17,053 15,803
Other revenue, other gain and loss H A a5 - HAb W a K
518 8 1,856 1,420
Employee benefit expenses & B2 F 2 10 (13,148) (19,419)
Depreciation e (9,498) (6,572)
Property rentals and related expenses #1510 & M A8 B8 &2 (1,039) (827)
Fuel and utility expenses PARE Ko X FA 3% e ) <2 (1,221) (995)
Impairment loss of property, plant and ¥1% B /E k& 2
equipment BB E B 15 (2,078) (4,468)
Impairment loss of right-of-use assets ¥ A& &= < BEE B 15 (885) (2,902)
Administrative expenses THHAX (14,854) (14,171)
Finance costs [ELSC DN 9 (1,161) (1,010)
Loss before tax from REFERKEXZ
continuing operations BRELAIEE 10 (24,975) (33,141)
Income tax expenses BIESTE b3 13 - -
Loss for the year from REFERKEEK2
continuing operations FREE (24,975) (33,141)
Discontinued operation CRIEREER
Loss for the year from a RECRIERERFZ
discontinued operation FNEE 35 — (35,374)
Loss for the year FRER (24,975) (68,515)
Other comprehensive income (loss) FRAHEMEEWKE (FHR)
for the year
Item that will be reclassified RGBT ADREE D
subsequently to profit or loss: HE :
Exchange difference on translation MEBIRBEZIER 5
of foreign operations 133 (190)
(24,842) (68,705)
Loss for the year attributable to: LT REREFREE:
Owners of the Company ZAYNEIE ZSUN (22,227) (40,299)
Non-controlling interests FEIEAR (2,748) (28,216)
(24,975) (68,515)
Total comprehensive loss for the year A T BB FEARAZH
attributable to: BiIEAE:
Owners of the Company ZAN/NSIEZ ZS N (22,094) (40,468)
Non-controlling interests FEIE AR M (2,748) (28,237)
(24,842) (68,705)
BAmIRARAR / 2023 % % 75



Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
REBEEREMZE KSR

For the year ended 31 March 2023 & ZE2023F3A31H LFE

2023 2022
2023%F 20224
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt TR FHET
(adjusted)
(8 %)
From continuing and REFERSKL
discontinued operations IR
Loss per share attributable to AREEEAEMN
owners of the Company BRER 14
Basic (HK$) EAR(BT) (0.85) (2.54)
Diluted (HK$) BE (B7) (0.85) (2.54)
From continuing operations REFELSEER
Loss per share attributable to AAREEAEMN
owners of the Company BREE
Basic (HK$) AR (BT (0.85) (1.78)
Diluted (HK$) #E (BT) (0.85) (1.78)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

A AR &

As at 31 March 2023 7202343 H31H

2023 2022
20234 20224
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B et FHET FAET
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment L ER N 15 6,344 11,525
Right-of-use assets EREEE 16 4,243 5,547
Interest in a joint venture R—HeErEIER 33 - -
Non-current deposits JERNERR & 19 966 1,476
11,553 18,548
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 17 236 127
Trade receivables =00 1O 18 2,657 1,654
Deposits, prepayments and e BN RIE K E M E
other receivables &/ el 19 4,184 10,314
Amount due from non-controlling JE U5 SRV AR 4 2 SR IE
interests 20 - 367
Cash and cash equivalents B MREEED 21 2,729 5,723
9,806 18,185
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade payables B 5 ENRIE 22 1,500 1,904
Accruals and other payables JESTE A & H b e 5RIE 23 7,787 5,617
Amount due to non-controlling JE < SEVE AR 42 21 5RIE
interests 20 1,962 474
Lease liabilities MEAE 16 3,993 4,976
Interest-bearing borrowings FTRER 24 5,000 -
20,242 12,971
Net current (liabilities) assets KB (BB EERE (10,436) 5214
Total assets less current liabilities EEHAERARHAR 1,117 23,762
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Lease liabilities MEAE 16 3,297 3,970
Deferred tax liabilities FIEFIBE FE 25 111 1M1
3,408 4,081
Net (liabilities) assets (BB EEFE (2,291) 19,681
BRI B R AR / 2023F F 3 77



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

A AR &

As at 31 March 2023 720233 H31H

2023 2022
20234 20224
Note HK$’'000 HK$'000
Bt TET FETT
Capital and reserves BEXR#E
Share capital fi% 72 26 156 3,888
Reserves Gk 3,440 18,932
Equity attributable to owners RACIHEE AEIEER
of the Company 3,596 22,820
Non-controlling interests JEIER A 29 (5,887) (3,139)
Total (deficits) equity (54l Rz AR (2,291) 19,681

The consolidated financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 29 June 2023
and are signed on its behalf by:

Chow Yik
el
Director

EF
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Tsui Wing Tak
®xB
Director
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

RERDBER

For the year ended 31 March 2023 & ZE2023F3A31H LFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

RRAEE ARG
(Accumulated
Share [osses) Non-
Share Share  Merger Exchange option Retained controlling Total
capital premium  reseve  reserve reserve eamings  Sub-total interests equity
BRE (ZiER)
B ROEE AUEE EXER RE  REEA N OKBRER  ERER
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$000  HK$000
TAr Tér TEr TEr  TEn TAr  Thn ThEr  TiEn
(Note 26)  (Note(a)) (Note (b)) (Note(d)  (Note 32)
(W) (MaE) (M) (W) (W)
At 1 April 2021 R021E4R18 14400 60,549 591 - - (51,165 24375 1834 26,209
Loss for the year EREE - - - - - (40.299)  (40,299) (28216) (68,515
Other comprehensive loss Eft2EER
ltem that may be reclassified subsequently to  EE T EF#HEEH I FE
proft or loss:
Exchange difference on translation of BEBIEBIENER
foreign operations - - - (169) - - (169) (21 (190)
Total comprehensive loss for the year FRE2AFEEE - - - (169) - (40,299)  (40,468) (2823))  (68,705)
Transactions with owners BRAEAZRS
Contributions and distributions RERAF
Issue of shares upon rights issue (Note 26(b) ~ FMERREFE /7R (MEE26(0)) 21600 15119 - - - - 15119 - 36,719
Transaction costs attributable to shares R REETROERZ
issued upon rights issue (Note 26(o)) LEHA (H26b) - 2,214) - - - - 2,214) (2,214)
Issue of shares upon placing (Note 26(c)) REERETRE (F526(0) 2,880 576 - - - - 576 - 3,45
Transaction costs attributable to shares REERETRAEEZ
issued upon placings (Note 26(c)) B (W26 - (69 - - - - 69 - (69
Reduction of share capital and share HIRRA R Rt (E (HE2eld)
premium (Note 26(d)) (34992)  (73961) - - - 108953 34992 - -
Recognition of equity-settled share-based BB REEER D
payment expenses BERZAZEX - - - - 1,068 - 1,068 - 1,068
Changes in ownership interests AEEERZS
Non-controlling interests arising on s -EHERA
incorporation of a subsidiary FEEMFEERER - - - - - - - 5 5
Acquisition of a subsidiary EE-HEHB A - - - - - - - 9,608 9608
Deconsolidation of a subsidiary (Note 34) REGa G- RRBAR (FHF34) = - - 3 - - 3 13651 13474
Disposal of subsidiaries LEMBAR - - (70) - - - (70 - (70)
(10512 (60,549) (70) 2 1,008 108953 38915 23264 62,1771
At 31 March 2022 R02F3A31H 3,888 - 521 (146) 1,068 17489 2280 (3139 19,681
BlXERBR AR / 2023F F 79



Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
MERBEHR

For the year ended 31 March 2023 & ZE2023F3A31H LFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

RRAHE AR
Share Non- Total
Share Share  Merger Exchange  option Retained controlling equity
capital premium  reserve  reserve  reserve earnings Sub-total interests  (deficits)
BRE 4 (54
B RHOEE AHRGE EXEE @ REEA Nt FERER a8
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000  HK$'000
TEn TEzn TEx TR TRz TEx  TEn  TEn  TEx
(Note 26)  (Note (a)) (Note (b)) (Note (c) (Note 32)
(Wit2e) (MaE(a) (MRE(o)  (MRE())  (MEEES2)
At 1 April 2022 R202%4A18 3,888 - 521 (146) 1,068 17,489 18,932 (3139) 19,681
Loss for the year EREE - - - - - (22227) (22,227)  (2,748)  (24,975)
Other comprehensive loss Eft2EER
Jtem that may be reclassified subsequently to R# T EF 2K FH
profit or loss:
Exchange difference on translation BEBIEBIENER
of foreign operations - - - 133 - - 133 - 133
Total comprehensive loss for the year ~ ER2EFEHE - - - 133 - (22207) (22,094 (2748)  (24,842)
Transactions with owners HEEAZRS
Contributions and distributions RERAF
Issue of shares upon placing (Note 26(e) ~ REEER BT (FizE26(e)) 777 2,177 - - - - 2,177 - 2,954
Transaction costs attributable to shares REERETR HEZ
issued upon placings (Note 26(e)) RHHA (W2 - (88) = = = = (88) - (88)
Reduction of share capital and EIRRA R 1% fg‘ ﬁuﬂé
share premium (Note 26(g)) (4,509) (2,089) - - - 6,598 4,509 - -
Cancellation of share options (Note 32) BT H (332) - - - - (356) 356 - - -
Changes in ownership interests FEERZEY
Disposal of subsidiaries WE-FHBLR - - 4 - - - 4 - 4
(3,732) - 4 - (356) 6,954 6,602 - 2,870
At 31 March 2023 12023535317 156 - 525 (13) 712 2,216 3,440 (5,887)  (2.29)
Notes: B
(@)  The application of share premium is governed by section 34 of the (a) PR EEZERNTHEHBE2023FE QN AE

Cayman Islands Companies Act (2023 Revision). Where the Company
issues shares at a premium, whether for cash or otherwise, a sum equal to
the aggregate amount or value of the premiums on those shares shall be
transferred to the share premium account.

EIME (BERT) R E - M AR FIAR S K
Hib s NGB EHITRG  ASHEE \EZ—r
B33 (B A R S AR B 2 IR AR s (B iR

(b)  The merger reserve represented the difference between the nominal (b) &G EIIER AT EAMMBERB AR
value of the share capital of the subsidiaries acquired as a result of the BAEEEANR]ASBIIRZERAMEITZ
corporate reorganisation and the nominal value of the share capital of the RS ANTE B 2 =58 -

Company issued in exchange thereof.
(0) Exchange reserve has been set up and is dealt with in accordance with (o) [E X FHE IR B S BB HM &R W 3 3rr & 3t

80

the accounting policies adopted for foreign currency translation as set
out in Note 3 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

RERETMRER

For the year ended 31 March 2023 & ZE2023F3A31H LFE

2023 2022
2023%F 20224
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt aE TERT FHETT
Cash flows from operating activities K& FEHHEESHRE
Loss before tax B35 A B 18
Continuing operations FELEER (24,975) (33,141)
Discontinued operation BRI E R 35 = (34,658)
Adjustments for: AT BIEFE -
Covid-19-related rent concessions AR RS —
BRHEERR (155) -
Depreciation of property, ME - BERBEETE
plant and equipment 5,040 4,039
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEERE 4,458 4,373
Finance costs & AR 1,161 1,255
Impairment loss of property, Y ERN NG
plant and equipment VEREY R 2,078 19,210
Impairment loss of right-of-use assets ¥ A& E 2 BIEEE 885 9,336
Impairment loss of amount due eI —R& & ERIA
from a joint venture Z BB 18 = 2,136
Impairment loss of inventories FEZRERBR - 21,982
Impairment of gooduwill EE R E - 702
Net gain on deconsolidation BUB#RE AR —EMNE
of a subsidiary NEIEAZ WS FE 34 - (14,888)
Equity-settled share-based AR EE R R
payment expenses F X - 1,068
Operating cash flows before EEESRBAIRE
movements in working capital BHERE (11,508) (18,586)
Changes in working capital: LEERE
Inventories & (109) 45,778
Trade receivables g 5 e FRIE (1,003) 125,225
Deposits, prepayments and Ze  FERRIE R
other receivables H {th e Uy 5008 6,770 14,920
Trade payables B 5 R 5IE (404) (188,326)
Accruals and other payables fEET B A M H b S
A 1,803 (2,474)
Cash used in operations KREFARSE (4,451) (23,463)
Tax paid EHIE - (716)
Net cash used in operating activities K& EE T AE & FHE (4,451) (24,179)
Cash flows from investing activities REZTERESRE
Net cash outflow from acquisition Y g — b B A 7
of a subsidiary Re ML FE = (4,869)
Net cash outflow from deconsolidation EUE#R& A BK— M &
of a subsidiary ARREMEFRE 34 - (639)
Purchases of property, BEYE BFEAEE
plant and equipment (1,937) (16,081)
Net cash used in investing activities REZEfTABRSFHE (1,937) (21,589)
B ERER AT / 2023F F 3, 81



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

RERITMRER

For the year ended 31 March 2023 & ZE2023F3A31H LFE

2023 2022
20234 20224
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 FET AT
Cash flows from financing activities BEFBHEESRE
Proceeds from shares issued J‘Mﬂﬁﬁﬁ*ﬁﬂ%}z
upon placings P15 3Kk T 26(e) 2,954 3,456
Transactions costs attributable to BA@EEHT%%TTHQTﬁ}EE{EZ
shares issued upon placings RBKA 26(e) (88) (69)
Proceeds from shares issued upon PR BTN <
rights issue Fr18 508 26(b) = 36,719
Transactions costs attributable to BM?—‘EHX%?@THQ@EETEZ
shares issued upon rights issue RSBKA 26(b) = (2,214)
Payments of lease liabilities HEBENAR (6,063) (4,128)
Capital injection from non-controlling  JEIERIE =T &
interests - 5
Interest paid AN (271) (623)
Inception of other borrowings g Jﬁﬁ%% 6,500 5,500
Repayment of other borrowings Bi& KA fE (1,500) (5,500)
Increase in amount due to JE T FE 12 R 4 2 SR IR 38 N
non-controlling interests 1,488 474
Decrease in amount due from JE L FE 12 R e 2 SRR
non-controlling interests 367 929
Net cash from financing activities METEMERSFHR 3,387 34,549
Net decrease in cash and ReRBREEEYRD
cash equivalents HEE (3,001) (11,219
Cash and cash equivalents at FORERBASEEY
beginning of the year 5,723 17,265
Effect of foreign exchange rate EREH) s EFR
changes, net 7 (323)
Cash and cash equivalents at end FREAGRESEEY
of the year, represented by cash ERERIMBITHER
and bank balances 2,729 5,723
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BB RME

For the year ended 31 March 2023 & ZE2023F3A31H LFE

CORPORATE INFORMATION

CBK Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated
in the Cayman lIslands on 8 September 2016 as an
exempted company with limited liability under the
Companies Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated
and revised) of the Cayman lIslands. The address of the
Company's registered office is Cricket Square, Hutchins
Drive, PO. Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman
Islands and its principal place of business in Hong Kong
is located at Unit 3205, 32/F, West Tower Shun Tak Centre,
No. 168-200 Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong.

The Company's shares are listed on GEM of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
The Company is an investment holding company and the
Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as
the "Group”) are principally engaged in the provision
of catering services, and sales and processing of food in
Hong Kong. The principal activities of its subsidiaries are
set out in Note 29 to the consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"), which is also the functional
currency of the Company, and all amounts are rounded
to the nearest thousands ("HK$'000"), unless otherwise
stated.

AERIEHR

B ZERERAR (227K
201659 H8H IR S B BIADI S
RERENE (191FEP = - K456
MER] ) ER S B EMK Y AR
RERAE - ARAMGEMFEEL
i A Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive,
P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-
1111, Cayman lIslands ' M4~ 2 AR
BEENTIEZEX% M AT B THE
HR168-2005% 15 12 2 /0 75 B2 3223205

=
=
zF°

RRARBORNEEBAERZMER
ANE ([BERZFr]) GEM ET - N2 A
R—EREERABIARERT R
HIfE AR (5 [ ARl REE
TENERHERRBELRDHEE
EMI-HMBARZEZEH
RER A MR M 529 ©

R BRAEIN EEPHERERIA
AL (B2 BTRSAR
ANYEER ESEHNER
AZREANTIT ([FER]) -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR

For the year ended 31 March 2023 & ZE2023F3A31H LFE

2.

84

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards ("HKFRSs"), which collective term includes
all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs")
and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA"), accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. The consolidated financial statements also
comply with the applicable disclosure requirements under
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM of
the Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”).

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on a basis consistent with the accounting policies adopted
in the 2022 consolidated financial statements except for
the adoption of the new/revised HKFRSs that are relevant
to the Group and effective from the current year as
detailed in Note 3 to the consolidated financial statements.

A summary of the significant accounting policies adopted
by the Group is set out in Note 3 to the consolidated
financial statements.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs

The Group has applied, for the first time, the following
new/revised HKFRSs:

Amendments to HKFRS 16  Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions Beyond
30 June 2021

Proceeds before
Intended Use
Cost of Fulfilling a Contract

Amendments to HKAS 16
Amendments to HKAS 37

Reference to the
Conceptual Framework

Amendments to HKFRS 3

Annual Improvements to  2018-2020 Cycle

HKFRSs

CBK HOLDINGS LIMITED / ANNUAL REPORT 2023
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BB RME

For the year ended 31 March 2023 & ZE2023F3A31H LFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 16: Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions Beyond 30 June 2021

The amendments exempt lessees from having to consider
individual lease contracts to determine whether rent
concessions occurring as a direct consequence of the
covid-19 pandemic are lease modifications and allow
lessees to account for such rent concessions as if they were
not lease modifications. It applies to covid-19-related rent
concessions that reduce lease payments due on or before
30 June 2022. The amendments do not affect lessors.

Amendments to HKAS 16: Proceeds before Intended
Use

The amendments clarify the accounting requirements
for proceeds received by an entity from selling items
produced while testing an item of property, plant or
equipment before it is used for its intended purpose. An
entity recognises the proceeds from selling any such items,
and the cost of those items, in profit or loss and measures
the cost of those items applying the measurement
requirements of HKAS 2.

Amendments to HKAS 37: Cost of Fulfilling a Contract

The amendments clarify that for the purpose of assessing
whether a contract is onerous under HKAS 37, the cost
of fulfilling the contract comprises the costs that relate
directly to the contract. Costs that relate directly to a
contract include both the incremental costs of fulfilling
that contract (for example, direct labour and materials) and
an allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling
contracts (for example, an allocation of the depreciation
charge for an item of property, plant and equipment used
in fulfilling the contract).

3.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR

For the year ended 31 March 2023 & ZE2023F3A31H LFE

3.

86

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 3: Reference to the Conceptual
Framework

The amendments update a reference in HKFRS 3 to the
Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting issued in
2018. The amendments also add to HKFRS 3 an exception
to its requirement for an entity to refer to the Conceptual
Framework to determine what constitutes an asset or a
liability. The exception specifies that, for some types of
liabilities and contingent liabilities, an entity applying
HKFRS 3 should instead refer to HKAS 37. The exception
has been added to avoid an unintended consequence of
updating the reference.

Annual Improvements Project — 2018-2020 Cycle

HKFRS 1: Subsidiary as a First-time Adopter

This amendment simplifies the application of HKFRS 1 for
a subsidiary that becomes a first-time adopter of HKFRSs
later than its parent — i.e. if a subsidiary adopts HKFRSs
later than its parent and applies HKFRS 1.D16(a), then a
subsidiary may elect to measure cumulative translation
differences for all foreign operations at amounts included
in the consolidated financial statements of the parent,
based on the parent’s date of transition to HKFRSs.

This amendment clarifies that — for the purpose of
performing the “10 per cent test” for derecognition of
financial liabilities — in determining those fees paid net
of fees received, a borrower includes only fees paid or
received between the borrower and the lender, including
fees paid or received by either the borrower or lender on
the other’s behalf.

CBK HOLDINGS LIMITED / ANNUAL REPORT 2023
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BB RME

For the year ended 31 March 2023 & ZE2023F3A31H LFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs (Continued)

Annual Improvements Project — 2018-2020 Cycle
(Continued)

HKFRS 16: Lease Incentives

The amendment removes the illustration of payments from
the lessor relating to leasehold improvements. As currently
drafted, Example 13 is not clear as to why such payments
are not a lease incentive.

HKAS 41: Taxation in Fair Value Measurements

This amendment removes the requirement to exclude
cash flows for taxation when measuring fair value, thereby
aligning the fair value measurement requirements in HKAS
41 with those in HKFRS 13.

The adoption of the above amendments does not have
any significant impact on the consolidated financial
statements.

Going concern

At 31 March 2023, the current liabilities of the
Group exceeded its current assets by approximately
HK$10,436,000 and the total liabilities of the Group
exceeded its total assets by approximately HK$2,291,000.
Subsequent to 31 March 2023, confirmed credit
commitments of HK$5,000,000 were granted to the Group
by a financial institution and the Group completed the
rights issue with net proceeds of approximately HK$18.9
million (as disclosed in Note 37 to the consolidated
financial statements).

The directors of the Company are of the opinion that, after
taking into account the confirmed credit commitments
from the financial institution, internal financial resources
of the Group and net proceeds from the rights issue,
the Group has sufficient working capital for its present
requirements. Hence, the consolidated financial
statements have been prepared on a going concern
basis. Should the Group be unable to operate as a going
concern, adjustments would have to be made to write
down the value of assets to their recoverable amounts,
and to provide for any further liabilities which might arise.
The effect of these potential adjustments has not been
reflected in the consolidated financial statements.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including special purpose
entities) over which the Group has the power to govern the
financial and operating policies generally accompanying
a shareholding of more than one half of the voting rights.
The existence and effect of potential voting rights that are
currently exercisable or convertible are considered when
assessing whether the Group controls another entity.

The acquisition method of accounting is used to
account for the acquisition of subsidiaries by the Group
which qualifies as business combination, except for
those acquisitions which qualify as a common control
combination and are therefore accounted for using the
merger accounting.

In the Company's statement of financial position which is
presented within these notes, investments in subsidiaries
are accounted for at cost less impairment. Cost includes
direct attributable costs of investment. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the
basis of dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is
required upon receiving a dividend from these investments
if the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income of
the subsidiary in the period that the dividend is declared
or if the carrying amount of the investment in the separate
financial statements exceeds the carrying amount in the
consolidated financial statements of the investee's net
assets including goodwill.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is
achieved when the Company:

° has power over the investee;

® is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

®  has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control
listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income
and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income from
the date the Group gains control until the date when the
Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company
and to the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive
income of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interest even if this
results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies into line with the Group's accounting policies.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Basis of consolidation (Continued)

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group's equity therein, which represent
present ownership interests entitling their holders to
a proportionate share of net assets of the relevant
subsidiaries upon liquidation.

Changes in the Group's ownership interest in a subsidiary
that do not result in a loss of control are accounted
for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the
controlling and non-controlling interests are adjusted
to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the
subsidiary. Any difference between the amount by which
the non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value
of the consideration paid or received is recognised directly
in equity and attributed to the owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit or
loss on disposal is calculated as the difference between
() the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
received and the fair value of any retained interest
determined at the date when control is lost and (i) the
carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill), and
liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-controlling interests
at the date when control is lost. The amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to
the disposed subsidiary are accounted for on the same
basis as would be required if the parent had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities. Any investment
retained in the former subsidiary and any amounts owed by
or to the former subsidiary are accounted for as a financial
asset, associate, joint venture or others as appropriate
from the date when control is lost.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair value
of the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred
by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and
the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange
for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are
generally recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired
and the liabilities assumed are principally recognised at
their fair value, except that:

. deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets and
liabilities related to employee benefit arrangements
are recognised and measured in accordance with
HKAS 12 and HKAS 19 respectively;

e liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-
based payment arrangements of the Group entered
into to replace share-based payment arrangements of
the acquiree are measured in accordance with HKFRS
2 at the acquisition date; and

e  assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held
for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 are measured in
accordance with that standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of
the consideration transferred, the amount of any
noncontrolling interests in the acquiree, and the fair value
of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree (if any) over the net amount of the identifiable
assets acquired and the liabilities assumed at acquisition
date. If, after reassessment, the net of the acquisition-date
amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed exceeds the sum of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree
and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held
interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Business combinations (Continued)

Non-controlling interests that are initially measured
either at fair value or at the non-controlling interests’
proportionate share of the recognised amounts of
the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The choice of
measurement basis is made on a transaction by-transaction
basis. Other types of non-controlling interests are
measured at their fair value.

Joint ventures

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties
that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to
the net assets of the arrangement. A joint arrangement
is an arrangement of which two or more parties have
joint control. Joint control is a contractually agreed
sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only
when decisions about the relevant activities require
the unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.
The Group reassesses whether it has joint control of an
arrangement and whether the type of joint arrangement in
which it is involved has changed, if facts and circumstances
change.

The Group's investment in a joint venture is accounted
for under the equity method of accounting, except
when the investment or a portion thereof is classified as
held for sale. Under the equity method, the investment
is initially recorded at cost and adjusted thereafter
for the post-acquisition changes in the Group's share
of the investee's net assets and any impairment loss
relating to the investment. Except to the extent that the
Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or
made payments on behalf of the investee, the Group
discontinues recognising its share of further losses when
the Group's share of losses of the investee equals or
exceeds the carrying amount of its interest in the investee,
which includes any long term interests that, in substance,
form part of the Group’s net investment in the investee.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Discontinued operations

A discontinued operation is a component of the Group
that comprises operations and cash flows that can be
clearly distinguished, operationally and for financial
reporting purposes, from the rest of the Group.
It represents a separate major line of business or
geographical area of operations, or is part of a single
co-ordinated plan to dispose of a separate major line
of business or geographical area of operations, or is
a subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to resale.
Classification as a discontinued operation occurs upon
disposal or when the operation meets the criteria to be
classified as held for sale, if earlier. It also occurs when the
operation is abandoned.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets that
are held for use in the production or supply of goods or
services, or for administrative purposes. Property, plant
and equipment are stated in the consolidated statement
of financial position at cost, less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment
losses, if any.

The cost of an asset comprises its purchase price and
any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset
to its working condition and location for its intended
use. Expenditure incurred after the property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repair
and maintenance, is normally charged to profit or loss in
the period in which it is incurred. In situations where it can
be clearly demonstrated that the expenditure has resulted
in an increase in the future economic benefits expected
to be obtained from the use of the property, plant and
equipment, the expenditure is capitalised as an additional
cost of that asset.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of
assets less their residual values over their useful lives,
using the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives,
residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at
the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.
The principal annual rates are as follows:

Leasehold improvements Over the shorter of

lease terms or 20%

Furniture and fixtures 20%
Catering and other equipment 20%
Machinery and equipment 20%

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item
of property, plant and equipment is determined as the
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment
loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount
of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent
of the impairment loss (if any).

The recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets are estimated individually. When
it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount
individually, the Group estimates the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit (“CGU") to which the asset
belongs.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets (Continued)

In addition, the Group assesses whether there is indication
that corporate assets may be impaired. If such indication
exists, corporate assets are also allocated to individual
CGUs, when a reasonable and consistent basis of
allocation can be identified, or otherwise they are allocated
to the smallest group of CGUs for which a reasonable and
consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset (or a CGU) for which the
estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a CGU) is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a CGU) is reduced to
its recoverable amount. For corporate assets or portion
of corporate assets which cannot be allocated on a
reasonable and consistent basis to a CGU, the Group
compares the carrying amount of a group of CGUs,
including the carrying amounts of the corporate assets
or portion of corporate assets allocated to that group
of CGUs, with the recoverable amount of the group of
CGUs. In allocating the impairment loss, the impairment
loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill (if applicable) and then to the other assets on a
pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of each asset
in the unit or the group of CGUs. The carrying amount of
an asset is not reduced below the highest of its fair value
less costs of disposal (if measurable), its value in use (if
determinable) and zero. The amount of the impairment
loss that would otherwise have been allocated to the
asset is allocated pro rata to the other assets of the unit
or the group of CGUs. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets (Continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or CGU or a group of CGUs)
is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset (or a CGU or a group of CGUs) in prior years. A
reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined on the first-in, first-out
basis. Net realisable value is based on estimated selling
prices less any estimated selling price for inventories less
all costs necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in
which the related revenue is recognised. The amount of
any write-down of inventories to net realisable value and
all losses of inventories are recognised as an expense in
the period of the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of
any reversal of any write-down of inventories is recognised
as a reduction in the amount of inventories recognised as
an expense in the period in which the reversal occurs.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. All regular way purchases or
sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised
on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the time frame established by regulation or
convention in the market place.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value except for trade receivables arising
from contracts with customers which are initially measured
in accordance with HKFRS 15. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial
assets and financial liabilities are added to or deducted
from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability
and of allocating interest income and interest expense
over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
and payments (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial asset or financial
liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

e the financial asset is held within a business model
whose obijective is to collect contractual cash flows;
and

e the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (Continued)

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for financial assets measured subsequently at
amortised cost and debt instruments. Interest income is
calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the
gross carrying amount of a financial asset, except for
financial assets that have subsequently become credit-
impaired. For financial assets that have subsequently
become credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by
applying the effective interest rate to the amortised cost
of the financial asset from the next reporting period. If
the credit risk on the credit-impaired financial instrument
improves so that the financial asset is no longer credit-
impaired, interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of the
financial asset from the beginning of the reporting period
following the determination that the asset is no longer
credit-impaired.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group performs impairment assessment under
expected credit loss ("ECL") model on financial assets
(including trade receivables, deposits, other receivables,
amount due from non-controlling interests and cash and
cash equivalents) which are subject to impairment under
HKFRS 9. The amount of ECL is updated at the end of
each reporting period to reflect changes in credit risk since
initial recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BB RME

For the year ended 31 March 2023 & ZE2023F3A31H LFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all
possible default events over the expected life of the
relevant instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m
ECL") represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is
expected to result from default events that are possible
within 12 months after the end of the reporting period.
Assessment are done based on the Group's historical credit
loss experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the
debtors, general economic conditions and an assessment
of both the current conditions at the reporting period as
well as the forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognise lifetime ECL for trade
receivables without significant financing component. The
ECL on these assets are assessed individually for trade
receivables from credit card and other electronic payments
and collectively for corporate customers using a provision
matrix with past due status grouping.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been
a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
in which case the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The
assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be recognised
is based on significant increases in the likelihood or risk of
a default occurring since initial recognition.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument at the end of the reporting period
with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition.
In making this assessment, the Group considers
both quantitative and qualitative information that
is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly:

e  an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the financial instrument’s external (if available) or
internal credit rating;

e significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase
in the credit spread, the credit default swap
prices for the debtor;

e  existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are
expected to cause a significant decrease in the
debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations;

®  an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the operating results of the debtor; or

®  an actual or expected significant adverse change
in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to
meet its debt obligations.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BB RME

For the year ended 31 March 2023 & ZE2023F3A31H LFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information
that demonstrates otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of
the criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group
considers an event of default occurs when information
developed internally or obtained from external
sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely to pay its
creditors, including the Group, in full.

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers
that default has occurred when a financial asset
is more than 90 days past due unless the Group
has reasonable and supportable information to
demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is
more appropriate.

3.

FEEEEE (F)
SWMIA(H)
SRMEE (8)
PREERE (B)

(i)

EEREBRAEE N (8)

Tim LAl SR A&
BR®RE O E B EE30H
‘A= B B 9) 16 78 A R
EEH BRIFAKEEREARER
AR ER S A EAIENR -

AEBFEHEEARBNEER
2 B 2 5 KR 3R AN e 2 Rl B R
M WHEEE BN MERER]
VA B R 5% 2 B E 1 SR IR 8 H A
BRI EEERERD AEIEM-

EHNER
RABEERBRERMS A
SERA ENEHERILS
Rl R BN RIREE BHER
BB ATKA B A E (B E
A(BREAEE) BREHE-

Nam £ ATt - AN SR ERR A i
TREEBSMBEBE0X A2
BERN BRFEAEEELSRE
HEEENENEHERRZD
EHIEEBERE-

BEER AR AT / 20235 F 1R 101



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR

For the year ended 31 March 2023 & ZE2023F3A31H LFE

3.

102

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(iii)

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more

events of default that have a detrimental impact

on the estimated future cash flows of that financial

asset have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is

credit-impaired includes observable data about the

following events:

significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower;

a breach of contract, such as a default or past
due event;

the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower's
financial difficulty, having granted to the
borrower a concession(s) that the lender(s) would
not otherwise consider;

it is becoming probable that the borrower
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation; or

the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BB RME

For the year ended 31 March 2023 & ZE2023F3A31H LFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(iv)

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there
is information indicating that the counterparty is in
severe financial difficulty and there is no realistic
prospect of recovery, for example, when the
counterparty has been placed under liquidation or
has entered into bankruptcy proceedings, or in the
case of trade receivables, when the amounts are over
one year past due, whichever occurs sooner. Financial
assets written off may still be subject to enforcement
activities under the Group's recovery procedures,
taking into account legal advice where appropriate.
A write-off constitutes a derecognition event. Any
subsequent recoveries are recognised in profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the
probability of default, loss given default (i.e. the
magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and the
exposure at default. The assessment of the probability
of default and loss given default is based on historical
data and forward-looking information. Estimation of
ECL reflects an unbiased and probability-weighted
amount that is determined with the respective risks
of default occurring as the weights. The Group
uses a practical expedient in estimating ECL on
trade receivables using a provision matrix taking
into consideration historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group
in accordance with the contract and the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive, discounted
at the effective interest rate determined at initial
recognition.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

v)

Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

Lifetime ECL for certain trade receivables are
considered on a collective basis taking into
consideration past due information and relevant
credit information such as forward-looking
macroeconomic information.

For collective assessment, the Group takes into
consideration the following characteristics when
formulating the grouping:

° Past-due status;

e Nature, size and industry of debtors; and

e External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by the
management of the Group to ensure the constituents
of each group continue to share similar credit risk
characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset unless the
financial asset is credit-impaired, in which case
interest income is calculated based on amortised cost
of the financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in
profit or loss for all financial instruments by adjusting
their carrying amount, with the exception of trade
receivables where the corresponding adjustment is
recognised through a loss allowance account.

CBK HOLDINGS LIMITED / ANNUAL REPORT 2023

3.

FEEEEE (F)
SWMIA(H)
SREE (F)

2 HEERE ()

v)

AAEREREMEEEE (B)
T E S R IR N 2 HITE H
FEEBRBEDEERBMENNK
HEEEER (MRt RE
REEM) RIREBEEER-

URERFE AEETERTE
DHRERT A TRE:

o BHR:

o EMANMEE RENIT
E R4

o INEMEERIR(mMA) -

aiﬁlfF2@$$I%£IEEHH
@ Ef AR B A B K D 4 B
EE*ETLM:.TH A A

RBMA TR S BAE IR
EREHE REERAED
3R £ B (- 1 R T
B\ B B B AR 8K
Ao

AEBEZEBRHBEEREEMNE
BmAERMA BT ANEE

Wz ok B 18 |E%3%J_EW/TA
WARERE B BEEREER
B #ERBR N o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BB RME

For the year ended 31 March 2023 & ZE2023F3A31H LFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at
amortised cost, the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the sum of the consideration received and
receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and
an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the
Company are recognised at the proceeds received, net of
direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities (including trade payables, accruals
and other payables, amount due to non-controlling
interests, lease liabilities and interest-bearing borrowings)
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount
of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration
paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)
Non-substantial modifications of financial liabilities

For non-substantial modifications of financial liabilities that
do not result in derecognition, the carrying amount of the
relevant financial liabilities will be calculated at the present
value of the modified contractual cash flows discounted
at the financial liabilities’ original effective interest rate.
Transaction costs or fees incurred are adjusted to the
carrying amount of the modified financial liabilities and are
amortised over the remaining term. Any adjustment to the
carrying amount of the financial liability is recognised in
profit or loss at the date of modification.

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or
services underlying the particular performance obligation
is transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or
a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of
distinct goods or services that are substantially the same.

Control of the good or service may be transferred over
time or at a point in time. Control of the good or service is
transferred over time if one of the following criteria is met:

e the customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the Group's performance as
the Group performs;

e the Group's performance creates or enhances an asset
that the customer controls as the Group performs; or

e the Group's performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the Group
has an enforceable right to payment for performance
completed to date.
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e BB RME

For the year ended 31 March 2023 & ZE2023F3A31H LFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when
the customer obtains control of the distinct good or
service.

Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified
in a contract with a customer. The Group recognises
revenue when it transfers control of a product or service to
a customer.

Revenue from restaurant operations

The Group recognises revenue from restaurant operations
which provides catering services. Revenue from restaurant
operations is recognised at a point in time when the
services are rendered. A receivable is recognised by the
Group when the services are rendered to the customers at
which the right to consideration becomes unconditional,
as only the passage of time is required before payment is
due.

Revenue from sales and processing of food

Sales and processing of food are recognised at a point
in time at which the customer obtains the control of the
promised asset, which generally coincides with the time
when the goods are delivered to customers and the title is
passed.

Revenue from sales of frozen aquatic products

Sale of frozen aquatic products in the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC") are recognised at a point in time at
which the customer obtains the control of the promised
asset, which generally coincides with the time when the
goods are delivered to customers and the title is passed.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Foreign currency translation

ltems included in the financial statements of each of the
Group's entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates
(the “functional currency”). The Company’'s functional
currency HK$ and majority of its subsidiaries used HK$
as their functional currency, except for the subsidiaries
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the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and
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and from the translation at period-end exchange rates
of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in profit or loss.
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The results and financial position of all the Group's EReRER MEAEERER
entities that have a functional currency different from MEERVBRANEEE A
the presentation currency (“foreign operations”) are MRE2HREE (BINEK]) TR
translated into the presentation currency as follows: NTHRARERERES:

e Assets and liabilities for each statement of financial s ZEBEMBUAIREZHREENLE

position presented, are translated at the closing rate BEINRBERRO B TEXR
at the end of the reporting period. H-

®  Income and expenses for each statement of profit or e XEHERmLHMEEWREXZ
loss and other comprehensive income are translated WA K 32 Th ¥ pn e - 39 e =
at the average exchange rates. AN I

e All resulting exchange differences arising from the
above translation and exchange differences arising
from a monetary item that forms part of the Group's
net investment in a foreign operation are recognised
as a separate component of equity.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Foreign currency translation (Continued)

e On the disposal of a foreign operation, which
includes a disposal of the Group's entire interest in
a foreign operation, a disposal involving the loss
of control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign
operation, or a partial disposal of an interest in a
joint arrangement or an associate that includes a
foreign operation of which the retained interest is no
longer equity-accounted for, the cumulative amount
of the exchange differences relating to the foreign
operation that is recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the separate component
of equity is reclassified from equity to profit or loss
when the gain or loss on disposal is recognised.

e On the partial disposal of the Group's interest in a
subsidiary that includes a foreign operation which
does not result in the Group losing control over the
subsidiary, the proportionate share of the cumulative
amount of the exchange differences recognised in
the separate component of equity is re-attributed to
the non-controlling interests in that foreign operation
and are not reclassified to profit or loss.

e On all other partial disposals, which includes partial
disposal of associates or joint ventures that do not
result in the Group losing significant influence or joint
control, the proportionate share of the cumulative
amount of exchange differences recognised in the
separate component of equity is reclassified to profit
or loss.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidation statement of cash
flows, cash equivalents represent short-term highly liquid
investments which are subject to an insignificant risk
of changes in value, net of bank overdrafts (if any). For
classification in the consolidated statement of financial
position, cash equivalents represent assets similar in nature
to cash and which are not restricted as to use.
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3.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Leases
Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys
the right to control the use of an identified asset for a
period of time in exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after the date
of initial application or arising from business combinations,
the Group assesses whether a contract is or contains a
lease based on the definition under HKFRS 16 at inception,
modification date or acquisition date, as appropriate.
Such contract will not be reassessed unless the terms and
conditions of the contract are subsequently changed.

The Group as a lessee
Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

For a contract that contains a lease component and one
or more additional lease or non-lease components, the
Group allocates the consideration in the contract to each
lease component on the basis of the relative stand-alone
price of the lease component and the aggregate stand-
alone price of the non-lease components.

The Group applies practical expedient not to separate
non-lease components from lease component, and instead
account for the lease component and any associated non-
lease components as a single lease component.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to leases of property, machinery and equipment
that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the
commencement date and do not contain a purchase
option. It also applies the recognition exemption for lease
of low-value assets. Lease payments on short-term leases
and leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 & ZE2023F3A31H LFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities.

The cost of right-of-use assets includes:

o the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability;

e any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives

received;

e any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

® an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group
in dismantling and removing the underlying assets,
restoring the site on which it is located or restoring
the underlying asset to the condition required by the
terms and conditions of the lease.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities other
than adjustments to lease liabilities resulting from Covid-
19-related rent concessions in which the Group applied the
practical expedient.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably certain
to obtain ownership of the underlying leased assets at the
end of the lease term is depreciated from commencement
date to the end of the useful life. Otherwise, right-of-use
assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the
shorter of its estimated useful life and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate line
item on the consolidated statement of financial position.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group

recognises and measures the lease liability at the present

value of lease payments that are unpaid at that date.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the

Group uses the incremental borrowing rate at the lease

commencement date if the interest rate implicit in the

lease is not readily determinable.

The lease payments include:

fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments) less any lease incentives receivable;

variable lease payments that depend on an index or
a rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at
the commencement date;

amounts expected to be payable by the Group under
residual value guarantees;

the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise the option; and

payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising an option to
terminate the lease.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are

adjusted by interest accretion and lease payments.
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 & ZE2023F3A31H LFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Lease liabilities (Continued)

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a
corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use
assets) whenever:

e the lease term has changed or there is a change in
the assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in
which case the related lease liability is remeasured
by discounting the revised lease payments using a
revised discount rate at the date of reassessment.

e the lease payments change due to changes in market
rental rates following a market rent review/expected
payment under a guaranteed residual value, in which
cases the related lease liability is remeasured by
discounting the revised lease payments using the
initial discount rate.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item
on the consolidated statement of financial position.

Lease modlification

Except for Covid-19-related rent concessions in which the
Group applied the practical expedient, the Group accounts
for a lease modification as a separate lease if:

e the modification increases the scope of the lease
by adding the right to use one or more underlying
assets; and

e the consideration for the leases increases by an
amount commensurate with the stand-alone price
for the increase in scope and any appropriate
adjustments to that stand-alone price to reflect the
circumstances of the particular contract.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Lease modiification (Continued)

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a
separate lease, the Group remeasures the lease liability
based on the lease term of the modified lease by
discounting the revised lease payments using a revised
discount rate at the effective date of the modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease
liabilities by making corresponding adjustments to the
relevant right-of-use asset.

Covid-19-related rent concessions

In relation to rent concessions that occurred as a direct
consequence of the Covid-19 pandemic, the Group has
elected to apply the practical expedient not to assess
whether the change is a lease modification if all of the
following conditions are met:

e the change in lease payments results in revised
consideration for the lease that is substantially the
same as, or less than, the consideration for the lease
immediately preceding the change;

® any reduction in lease payments affects only
payments originally due on or before 30 June 2022;
and

e  there is no substantive change to other terms and
conditions of the lease.

A lessee applying the practical expedient accounts for
changes in lease payments resulting from rent concessions
the same way it would account for the changes applying
HKFRS 16 if the changes are not a lease modification.
Forgiveness or waiver of lease payments are accounted for
as variable lease payments. The related lease liabilities are
adjusted to reflect the amounts forgiven or waived with a
corresponding adjustment recognised in the profit or loss
in the period in which the event occurs.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Employee benefits
Short term employee benefits

Salaries, annual bonuses and the cost of non-monetary
benefits are accrued in the period in which the associated
services are rendered by employees. Where payment or
settlement is deferred and the effect would be material,
these amounts are stated at their present values.

Retirement benefit obligation scheme

Payment to Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “"MPF
Scheme”) is recognised as an expense when employees
have rendered service entitling them to the contributions.
The Group operates a MPF Scheme under the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for those
employees employed under the jurisdiction of the Hong
Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF Scheme is a
defined contribution scheme, the assets of which are held
in separate trustee-administered funds.

Under the MPF Scheme, the employer and its employees
are each required to make contributions to the scheme at
5% of the employees’ relevant income, with the employers’
contributions subject to a cap of monthly relevant income
of HK$30,000. The Group’s contributions to the scheme
are expensed as incurred and vested in accordance with
the scheme’s vesting scales. Where employees leave
the scheme prior to the full vesting of the employer’s
contributions, the amount of forfeited contributions is used
to reduce the contributions payable by the Group.

In accordance with the rules and regulations in the PRC,
the employees of the Group's entities established in the
PRC are required to participate in defined contribution
retirement plans organised by local governments (the
“"PRC Retirement Scheme”). Contributions to those plans
are expensed as incurred and other than these monthly
contributions, the Group has no further obligation for the
payment of retirement benefits to its employees.

The retirement benefits scheme contributions arising from
the MPF Scheme and the PRC Retirement Scheme charged
to profit or loss represent contributions paid or payable
to the funds by the Group at rates specified in the rules of
the schemes.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Share-based payment transactions
Equity-settled transactions

The fair value of services received determined by reference
to the fair value of share options granted at the grant
date is expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting
period, with a corresponding increase in share options
reserve in equity.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of options that are expected to
ultimately vest. The impact of the revision of the estimates,
if any, is recognised in profit or loss with a corresponding
adjustment to share options reserve.

At the time when the share options are exercised, the
amount previously recognised in share options reserve will
be transferred to share premium. When the share options
are forfeited after the vesting date or are still not exercised
at the expiry date, the amount previously recognised
in share options reserve will be transferred to retained
earnings.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated
as if it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any
expense not yet recognised for the award is recognised
immediately. However, if a new award is substituted for the
cancelled award, and designated as a replacement award
on the date that it is granted, the cancelled and new
awards are treated as if they were a modification of the
original award.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs incurred, net of any investment income on
the temporary investment of the specific borrowings, that
are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, i.e. assets that necessarily
take a substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of
those assets. Capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases
when the assets are substantially ready for their intended
use or sale. All other borrowing costs are recognised as an
expense in the period in which they are incurred.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs
directly attributable to the issue of new share or options
are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the
proceeds.

Government grants

Governments grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be
received.

Government grants related to income that are receivable
as compensation for expenses or losses already incurred
or for the purpose of giving immediate financial support
to the Group with no future related costs are recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which they become
receivable. Such grants are presented under “other
revenue, other gain and loss”.

Taxation

Income tax expenses represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit
for the period. Taxable profit differs from profit before
taxation because of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other periods and items that are never
taxable or deductible. The Group's liability for current tax
is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred
tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profits will be available against which those
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition
(other than in a business combination) of assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable
profit nor the accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from the initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries, except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences associated with such investments
and interests are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against
which to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences
and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to
be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Taxation (Continued)

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-of-
use assets and the related lease liabilities, the Group first
determines whether the tax deductions are attributable to
the right-of-use assets or the lease liabilities.

For lease transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies
HKAS 12 Income Taxes requirements to right-of-use assets
and lease liabilities separately. Temporary differences
relating to right-of-use assets and lease liabilities are not
recognised at initial recognition and over the lease terms
due to application of the initial recognition exemption.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to
income taxes levied to the same taxable entity by the
same taxation authority.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event,
it is probable that the Group will be required to settle the
obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate
of the consideration required to settle the present
obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking
into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the
obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash
flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying
amount is the present value of those cash flows (where the
effect of the time value of money is material).
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3.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the consolidated financial statements, are
identified from the financial information provided regularly
to the Group’s most senior executive management for
the purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group's various lines of business and
geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and are
similar in respect of the nature of products and services,
the nature of production processes, the type or class of
customers, the methods used to distribute the products
or provide the services, and the nature of the regulatory
environment. Operating segments which are not
individually material may be aggregated if they share a
majority of these criteria.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the shareholders is recognised as
a liability in the Group's consolidated financial statements
in the period in which the dividend is approved by
shareholders of the Company.

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@) A person, or a close member of that person’s family,
is related to the Group if that person:

(i)  has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) bhas significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel
of the Group or the Group's holding company.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 3. FE&HEE ()

Related parties (Continued) EAEE A (&)
(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the (b) ﬁﬁéMTEﬂﬂm# NER
following conditions applies: HIKES B A R e
()  the entity and the Group are members of the () ZEBEAEBEER—
same group (which means that each holding El:0)a= W] (EURT HX
company, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is NI ==/ DS )
related to the others); B AR B AR
(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the (i) —HEBRS ERBNH
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a ERAHEEDRE (XS
member of a group of which the other entity is a —ERRNEATINEE
member); FETAK B A a B & QA
HEERE):
(i) both entities are joint ventures of the same third (i) MEEEHAER—
party; MaERE:
(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and vy —HEEAE=FEEN
the other entity is an associate of the third entity; BENE - ME —EEL
RZFEZTEEBNHEQ
3
(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for v) ZEBARASEENEAR
the benefit of employees of either the Group or EEEABNERBNES
an entity related to the Group; M) 5 T A% SZ B0 Bl AR 5T
£
(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a (vi) ZEBX@PMHAALE
person identified in (a); s 2L EFE 4
(vi) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant (i) @OFTHEAIATHERS
influence over the entity or is a member of the AXEBNXEZE R
key management personnel of the entity (or of a (HABERERAR) X
holding company of the entity); or EEBRABKE K
(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it (viii) ZE B EMBEEEM
is a part, provides key management personnel = ’D\TW$%.?$%
services to the Group or to the Group's holding EERAREHEER
company. A B R -
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3.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Related parties (Continued)

Close family members of an individual are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity
and include:

(@) that person’s children and spouse or domestic
partner,

(b) children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner;
and

(c) dependants of the person or that person’s spouse or
domestic partner.

A transaction is considered to be a related party
transaction when there is a transfer of resources or
obligations between the Group and a related party,
regardless of whether a price is charged.

CBK HOLDINGS LIMITED / ANNUAL REPORT 2023

FEEEEE (F)

B S (18)

FEBIA LIRS AT B
BIATHRIEH R EIEHHE LB
ZHERATHEORE  2IF

(@ ZBALOFLEEBXFERE
(SI=

b) ZBALHEBHFREFIEDH
TR

© HmAALTHZBALTEMBXRA
EHEOZEA -

E-—BEXSZPRAEEHEBHE 2
F'%’]ﬁﬁif&%%(?nﬂanzm%
BIE)  AlgR R AlE RS-



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BB RME

For the year ended 31 March 2023 & ZE2023F3A31H LFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Future changes in HKFRSs
At the date of authorisation of the consolidated financial
statements, the HKICPA has issued the following new/
revised HKFRSs that are not yet effective for the current
period, which the Group has not early adopted.

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 8

Amendments to HKAS 12

HKFRS 17

Amendment to HKFRS 17

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKFRS 10

Disclosure of Accounting Policies '

Definition of Accounting
Estimates’

Deferred Tax related to Assets
and Liabilities arising from a
Single Transaction

Insurance Contracts '

Initial Application of HKFRS 17
and HKFRS 9 - Comparative
Information '

Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current?

Non-current liabilities with
Covenants 2

Lease liability in a Sale and
Leaseback?

Sale or Contribution of Assets

and HKAS 28 between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture *
1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024

3 The effective date to be determined

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the
adoption of the new/revised HKFRSs in future periods
will have any material impact on the results and financial

position of the Group.
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in Note 3 to the consolidated financial
statements above, the directors of the Company are
required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
underlying assumptions are based on historical experience
and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised
if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

The followings are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk
of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial period.

Impairment assessment of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets

Property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets
are stated at costs less accumulated depreciation and
impairment, if any. In determining whether an asset is
impaired, the Group has to exercise judgment and make
estimation, particularly in assessing: (1) whether an event
has occurred or any indicators that may affect the asset
value; (2) whether the carrying value of an asset can be
supported by the recoverable amount, in the case of value
in use, the net present value of future cash flows which
are estimated based upon the continued use of the asset;
and (3) the appropriate key assumptions to be applied in
estimating the recoverable amounts including cash flow
projections and an appropriate discount rate. When it is
not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an
individual asset (including right-of-use assets), the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit to which the assets belong. Changing the assumptions
and estimates, including the discount rates or the growth
rate in the cash flow projections, could materially affect the
net present value used in the impairment test.
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4,

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets

The management of the Group determines the estimated
useful lives of the Group's property, plant and equipment,
and right-of-use assets based on the historical experience
of the actual useful lives of the relevant assets of similar
nature and functions. The depreciation expenses for future
periods are adjusted if there are significant changes from
previous estimates.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for deductible
temporary differences and unused tax losses to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences and
unused tax losses can be utilised. Significant management
judgement is required to determine the amount of
deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon
the likely timing and level of future taxable profits together
with future tax planning strategies.

Going concern consideration

The assessment of the going concern assumption involves
making judgements by the directors of the Company,
at a particular point of time, about the future outcome
of events and conditions which are inherently uncertain.
The directors of the Company believe that the Group will
have sufficient cash resources to satisfy its future working
capital and other financing requirements in the coming
twelve months from 31 March 2023 after taking into the
consideration as detailed in note 3 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 5. €T A
(a) Categories of financial instruments (a) EEITEAER
2023 2022
20234 20224
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Financial assets, at amortised cost £REE  R#BHERAK
Trade receivables 2 Z e GRIE 2,657 1,654
Deposits and other receivables e M E M R IE 4,141 7,308
Amount due from non-controlling JE W FE1EE AR HE 2 SR IE
interests - 367
Cash and cash equivalents B MRS EEY 2,729 5,723
Financial liabilities, cREE RBHEAK
at amortised cost
Trade payables g5 FHE 1,500 1,904
Accruals and other payables JEETB R M EMEN I 7,787 5,617
Amount due to non-controlling JE A~ SE 4% AR 4 21 TRIR
interests 1,962 474
Lease liabilities HEAE 7,290 8,946
Interest-bearing borrowings FFEBRK 5,000 -
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5. €@T A (%)
(b) TREMEEBEMNRBEK

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies

The Group major financial instruments include
trade receivables, deposits and other receivables,
amounts due from/to non-controlling interests, cash
and cash equivalents, trade payables, accruals and
other payables, lease liabilities and interest-bearing
borrowings. Details of the financial instruments for
the Group are disclosed in respective notes to the
consolidated financial statements.

The risks associated with these financial instruments
include market risk (interest rate risk), credit risk and
liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate these
risks are set out below. The directors of the Company
manage and monitor these exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented on a timely
and effective manner.

There has been no change to the types of the Group's
exposure in respect of financial instruments or the
manner in which it manages and measures the risks.

Market risk
Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in
relation to variable-rate bank balances. The Group's
cash flow interest rate risk is mainly concentrated
on the fluctuation of interest rates on bank balances
and Hong Kong prime rate. No sensitivity analysis
was prepared for bank balances and interest-bearing
borrowings as the financial impact arising on changes
in interest rates was minimal due to limited changes
in interest rate and interest-bearing borrowings
carry at fixed interest rate. The Group currently does
not have an interest rate hedging policy. However,
the management of the Group monitors interest
rate exposure and will consider hedging significant
interest rate exposure should the need arise.
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5.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)
Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that the Group's
counterparties default on their contractual obligations
resulting in financial losses to the Group. The Group's
credit risk exposures are primarily attributable to
trade receivables, deposits, other receivables, amount
due from non-controlling interests and cash and cash
equivalents. The Group does not hold any collateral
or other credit enhancements to cover its credit risks
associated with its financial assets.

At 31 March 2023 and 2022, the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial loss
to the Group due to failure to discharge an obligation
by the counterparties is arising from the carrying
amount of the respective recognised financial assets
as stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

Trade receivables

The Group provided catering services to a large
number of individual customer and mainly settled
by cash and credit card. In the view of the Group's
restaurant operations, the Group's trade receivables
are primarily credit card trade receivables due from
credit card acquiring service providers, mainly banks.

For sales and processing of food business, the
Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
customers. It is the Group's policy that all customers
who wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit
verification procedures. In addition, debtor balances
are monitored on an ongoing basis and the Group's
exposure to bad debts is being managed.
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5.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)
Trade receivables (Continued)

The Group's exposure to credit risk is influenced
mainly by the individual characteristics of each
customer rather than the industry or country
in which the customer operates and therefore
significant concentrations of credit risk primarily
arise if the Group has significant exposure to
individual customers. At 31 March 2023, the Group
had a concentration of credit risk as approximately
92.7% (2022: approximately 94.5%) of the Group's
trade receivables was due from the Group's largest
customer in relation to sales and processing of food
business. The Group manages the concentration of
credit risk by continuously broadening the customer
base of the Group.

The directors of the Company consider the credit risk
in relation to catering services business and sale and
processing of food business are insignificant.

Deposits and other receivables

The management of the Group makes periodic
collective assessment as well as individual assessment
on the recoverability of deposits and other
receivables based on historical settlement records,
past experience, and also available reasonable
and supportive forward-looking information. The
management of the Group believes that there is
no significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition and the Group provided impairment
based on 12m ECL.
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5.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)
Cash and cash equivalents

The Group deposited its cash with approved and
reputable banks. Bankruptcy or insolvency of the
banks may cause the Group's right with respect to
cash and cash equivalents held to be delayed or
limited. The directors of the Company monitor the
credit rating of these banks on an ongoing basis, and
considers that the Group's exposure to credit risk
were minimal.

The Group does not have any other significant
concentrations of credit risk. The exposures to these
credit risks are monitored on an ongoing basis.

At 31 March 2023 and 2022, no loss allowance for
ECL on the Group's trade receivables, deposits and
other receivables, amount due from non-controlling
interests and cash and cash equivalents was
recognised as the potential allowance amounts are
insignificant.
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5.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk

The Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining
adequate cash and cash equivalents, monitoring
forecast and actual cash flows and matching the
maturity profiles of financial assets and financial
liabilities.

The liquidity risk is under continuous monitoring by
the management of the Group. The management
of the Group will raise bank borrowings whenever
necessary.

The following table shows the details of the Group's
remaining contractual maturity for its non-derivative
financial liabilities. The tables have been drawn up
based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial
liabilities based on the earliest date, on which
the Group can be required to pay. The amounts
disclosed in the table are based on the contractual
undiscounted payments, are as follows:

5. €@T A (%)

b) eREREEBENREE
(&)
REBEESER
AREBE#HIZEFTRCR SNBSS
BY ERBIUERERIRESR
sEMEEEREESRE
EMEEHBER EUERARD
&% E b e

AEBEEBREERRDE
TR AEEEEBKNE

FEERBHRITER

TRERAKEFITESREA
BERNH TAEQINRBERFS-
ZEBRBEARERPRR
REHESRAENRREIRE

ERERHE - TRAMBEBEESHR
A KRB BERE:

More than
Within 1 year but Total
Effective 1 year or less than  undiscounted Carrying
interest rate on demand 5 years cash flows amounts
—FRE BB-F  AWRRE
{2l RER  BIREF RELAE REE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TERT TERT TERT
At 31 March 2023 R2023%38310
Non-derivative financial liabilities FEfTESREE
Trade payables BHRNTE 1,500 - 1,500 1,500
Accruals and other payables s ERRAMERTE 7,787 - 7,787 7,787
Amount due to non-controlling  JEfIFERER IR
interests 1,962 - 1,962 1,962
Lease liabilities HEBR 5.30 4,197 3,397 7,594 7,290
Interest-bearing borrowings HEER 41.00 5,547 - 5,547 5,000
20,993 3,397 24,390 23,539
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5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 5. @I A (%)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and b) EREAREEENREE
policies (Continued) (%)
Liquidity risk (Continued) REBESRR (8)
More than
Within 1 year but Total
Effective 1 year or less than  undiscounted Carrying
interest rate on demand 5 years cash flows amounts
—FRg BE—F  AERES
ERF= REX  EIRAE HERE REE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T FEL THT TR
At 31 March 2022 7R2022F3A318
Non-derivative financial liabilities  JEFTE SR EE
Trade payables ZHENRE 1,904 - 1,904 1,904
Accruals and other payables B ERAREMERFE 5,617 - 5,617 5617
Amount due to non-controlling  FERT3EERRER B
interests 474 - 474 474
Lease liabilities HERRE 5.56 5330 4,134 9,464 8,946
13,325 4134 17,459 16,941
(c) Fair value of financial assets and financial () UYFRAFEFTENESEME
liabilities that are not measured at fair value EREREBENATE
The carrying amounts of financial assets and financial 20234 K2022F3A318 » #%
liabilities carried at amortised cost were not materially BEKAAARNEREERS
different from their fair values at 31 March 2023 and MEEMNEREEEE QAT
2022. BERER-
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5.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(d) Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group's capital
management are to safeguard the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern and to maintain healthy
capital ratios in order to support its business and
maximise the shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic
conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the amounts of dividend
paid to the shareholders, return on capital to the
shareholders or issue of new shares or repurchase
of existing shares as well as issue of new debts or
redemption of existing debts.

The Group is not subject to any externally imposed
capital requirements. The Group's overall strategy
remains unchanged from prior years.

5. €@T A (%)
(d) EXERE

AEBBEAEENEERRA
BRASEABFELCEEN
BHFEROEARL R X

FHEBEERARRFGER
REE-

7 £ [ R JE A 7 iR O 88 2 i
B8 A iT%IﬂEHjuﬂﬁ ZIKE
ErEAFEERN TREREARKR
E&%- E@ﬁzﬁ%ﬂx?ﬁjﬁé
TR RSB RIIRA IR M AR
BOINEBKBELRBEERSE
FRAKE IS TAREE NG

REEHBEEFEMINRE
LERER - RNEEEE
BRENFFETEEZR-

il
xR
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6.

134

SEGMENT INFORMATION

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Group has
commenced the business of sales and processing of food
and also acquired business of manufacture and sales
of frozen aquatic products in the PRC which was then
reclassified as a discontinued operation in the same year as
set out in Note 35 to the consolidated financial statements.
Information reported to the directors of the Company,
being the chief operating decision maker, for the purpose
of resource allocation and assessment of segment
performance focuses on types of goods or services
delivered or provided. It is analysed by different operating
divisions and geographical locations. The geographical
locations of customers is based on the location at which
the service was provided. No operating segments
identified by the executive directors of the Company have
been aggregated in arriving at the reportable segments of
the Group. Particulars of the Group's reportable operating
segments are summarised as follows:

(i)  provision of catering services through restaurant
operations in Hong Kong;

(i) sales and processing of food in Hong Kong; and

(i) manufacture and sales of frozen aquatic products in
the PRC (discontinued operation).

The management of the Group makes decisions according
to operating results of each segment. No analysis of
segment asset and segment liability is presented as the
management of the Group does not regularly review such
information for the purposes of resources allocation and
performance assessment.

Segment results represent the results before tax earned by
each segment without allocation of certain other revenue,
other gain and loss, central corporate expenses and
finance costs.

Non-current assets are all located in Hong Kong at 31
March 2023 and 2022.

No individual customer contributes over 10% of the
revenue of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2022.

For the year ended 31 March 2023, sales to an external
customer from sales and processing of food amounted to
approximately HK$4,202,000 which individually contributed

over 10% of total revenue of the Group.
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6.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Segment revenue and results

The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue and

results by operating and reportable segments.

Year ended 31 March 2023

6. DHJEHR (E)
DN EREE

UTREEERAHEDHE

RE B MEEED -

—

Y

B E2023F3A31HLEE

Discontinued
Continuing operations operation
FREERK BRILEEER
Provision of
catering services Sales and Manufacture and
through restaurant processing sales of frozen
operations of food aquatic products Consolidated
EREERE EER
RS SRR HERMIRR HESRKE At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR THET TET THET
Segment revenue Al
External segment revenue NS E 24,428 5,612 = 30,040
Segment results PHEE (10,478) (3,697) = (14,175)
Unallocated other revenue, RPBAMSE
other gain and loss H bt eas R B 1R 258
Unallocated central RPOBRROGERT
corporate expenses (10,382)
Unallocated finance costs AOMBERA (676)
Loss before tax BRHAEE (24,975)
Income tax expenses FEHRX -
Loss for the year EnER (24,975)
Bl AR A R] / 2023F 38 135



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR

For the year ended 31 March 2023 & ZE2023F3A31H LFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

136

Segment revenue and results (Continued)
Year ended 31 March 2022

6. AEFER ()
DEME R EE (E)
BE2022%F3A31B EFE
Discontinued
Continuing operations operation
REREEHK EEJIEE-ES
Provision of
catering services Sales and Manufacture and

through restaurant processing sales of frozen
operations of food aquatic products Consolidated
BREEZE EER
RAEB IR HERMIRM HESRKE A&
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THL THBT THL FEL
Segment revenue D E A
External segment revenue SNER > ER M 2R 25,262 2,040 215,383 242 685
Segment results DHEE (11,766) (2,567) (34,658) (48,991)
Unallocated other revenue, AT EM S
other gain and loss H bt e R B 970
Unallocated central corporate RPOBERROERT
expenses (19,074)
Unallocated finance costs AOEBERA (704)
Loss before tax BEAEE (67,799)
Income tax expenses MERAY (716)
Loss for the year FRER (68,515)
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. AEFER ()
Other segment information Hith 5 #H&E R
Year ended 31 March 2023 BI£2023F3A31ALEE
Discontinued
Continuing operations operation
FREERK FREERY
Provision of Manufacture
catering services Sales and and sales of
through restaurant processing frozen aquatic
operations of food products Unallocated Consolidated
FRREEE £ER
REEHEE  HERMIRA HERRKE L) At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
Thn TR Thn TR TEn
Additions to property, plant and equipment TENE BREREAE 1,846 1 - 80 1,937
Additions to right-of-use assets REFREEE 4,039 - - - 4,039
Depreciation it 5,401 2,613 - 1,484 9,498
Finance costs BARK 460 25 - 676 1,161
Impairment loss on right-of-use assets FRESEZIERR 1,435 643 = = 2,078
Impairment loss on amount due from a joint venture B - A E R EFE BEEE 831 54 - - 885
Year ended 31 March 2022 BHE2022F3A31HIEFE
Discontinued
Continuing operations operation
REMEER BRIEEER
Provision of Manufacture
catering senvices Sales and and sales of
through restaurant processing frozen aquatic
operations of food products Unallocated Consolidated
FRAESE EER
REERRSE  HERNIRR HESRKE AR Rt
HK§ 000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$000
TEx T Thx THR T
Additions to property, plant and equipment TENE BRRRE 8503 695 - 624 16,081
Additions to right-of-use assets REFFEAE 4251 761 - 2494 7512
Depreciation it 4014 997 1,840 1561 8,412
Finance costs £ M 13 245 704 1,255
Net gain on deconsolidation of a subsidary -RHERARAEL,
- - 14,688 - 14,688
Impairment of goodwil - - 702 - 702
Impairment of inventories - - 21982 - 21982
Impairment loss on property, plant and equipment ?’E% RE Rk HERE 3,084 1,384 14742 - 19210
Impairment loss on right-of-use assets fidit 5 EZREFE 2768 134 6,43 E 93%
Impairment loss on amount due from ajoint ventre BN —BAECEFEZHEER - - 213 - 213
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7.

138

REVENUE 7. W=
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with EFEHARED K
customers
2023 2022
2023F 20224
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TETT
Continuing operations HEREXER
Provision of catering services through REBBREREE
restaurant operations in Hong Kong R HESRRS 24,428 25,262
Sales and processing of food HEMNIE S 5,612 2,040
30,040 27,302
2023 2022
2023%F 20224F
HK$’'000 HK$'000
THET FETT
Timing of revenue recognition e 7 TSR BT
At a point in time A — {18 B fis] B4 30,040 27,302

All revenue from continuing operations for the years ended
31 March 2023 and 2022 were derived from Hong Kong.

Performance obligations for contracts with

customers

Details of performance obligations for contracts with
customers for the years ended 31 March 2023 and 2022 are
set out in Note 3 to the consolidated financial statements.

Transaction price allocated to the remaining
performance obligation for contracts with

customers

All catering services through restaurant operations in Hong

Kong and sales and processing of food are for periods

of one year or less. As permitted under HKFRS 15, the

transaction price allocated to these unsatisfied contracts is

not disclosed.
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8. OTHER REVENUE, OTHER GAIN AND LOSS

8. Hftz HttmKkEE

2023 2022
2023% 20224F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FETT
Continuing operations BREEEXK

Government subsidies (Note) BT Bh (BEE) 984 990
Exchange gain b W m - 41
Covid-19-related rent concessions FRERESEEEHESER 155 -
Others HAh 717 479
1,856 1,420

Note: It -

During the year ended 31 March 2023, the Group recognised government
subsidies of approximately HK$984,000 (2022: approximately HK$200,000)
in respect of Covid-19-related subsidies. In the opinion of the directors of
the Company, there was no unfulfilled condition or contingency relating

HE2023F3A31R EFE AEBBFIT
A7 55 75 78 4 B B SR BT 7 Bh B £9984,0007%8
T (20224F : £9900,000;8 7T ) > AR Al EER
B+ BT R B b 1 BE S0 48 R 32 AR RO I 1R sk Bk

to the government and other subsidies. SRFEIH o
9. FINANCE COSTS 9. BERA
2023 2022
2023%F 20224
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Continuing operations BEREXRK
Interest on interest-bearing borrowings &8 f& Z Fl| & 638 595
Interest on lease liabilities HEBGNE 523 415
1,161 1,010
Discontinued operation DRI
Interest on lease liabilities HEBEME - 217
Others HAb - 28
- 245
1,161 1,255
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10.

140

LOSS BEFORE TAX

This is stated after charging (crediting):

10. BRBLATES 18

R AT R R TR IR (R A) AT %
R :

2023 2022
2023F 20224
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Employee benefit expenses EERAMEX
(including directors’ (BEMEFNZESHS) :
emoluments in Note 11):
Continuing operations HEREXER
Salaries, allowances, bonuses and e R IEAREYRER
benefits in kind 12,490 11,665
Discretionary bonuses (SRR 246 6,115
Contribution to defined FE M RE IR
contribution plans 412 429
Equity-settled share-based payment ~ AREZB R H HER 2
expenses (Note 32) NS (BEE32) - 1,068
Termination benefits BB 12 A - 142
13,148 19,419
Discontinued operation DRIEREER
Salaries, allowances, bonuses e R TEANEYEAN
and benefits in kind - 810
Contribution to defined FE KA IR
contribution plans - 200
- 1,010
13,148 20,429
Other items Hihm H
Continuing operations BEKSEER
Auditor’s remuneration ZERT B &
— Audit services —ZBRS 820 650
— Non-audit services — 2 BUR 1% 15 -
Cost of inventories sold BEFERAK 12,987 11,499
Depreciation of property, plant M BERZRETE
and equipment 5,040 2,652
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEENE 4,458 3,920
Impairment loss on property, plant M B kR RERBRE
and equipment 2,078 4,468
Impairment loss on right-of-use assets ff FI#E & E < REEE 885 2,902
Short-term lease payments REIHENRK 21 168
Low-value assets lease payments KEEEEHENK 89 119
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10. LOSS BEFORE TAX (Continued) 10. BRBIATES 18 (&)

2023 2022
2023%F 20224
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TETT

Discontinued operation ERIEREER
Auditor’s remuneration % B8R0 B & - 215,336
Cost of inventories sold BEERFERAR = 1,387
Depreciation of property, ME- -MELRRETE

plant and equipment - 453
Depreciation of right-of-use assets CRAREERE - (14,888)
Net gain on de-consolidation of BURGR & ARR—REM B AR

a subsidiary BEE 7 W F R - /702
Impairment loss of goodwill B2 ZMERRE - 21,982
Impairment loss of inventories FEZREREE — 14,742
Impairment loss of property, ME- -BWER&EEZ

plant and equipment BIEEE - 6,434
Impairment loss of right-of-use assets i FI#EE E 2 REEIE - 2,136
Impairment loss of amount due W —EEErEREZ

from a joint venture BIEEE = 2,136

B ERER AT / 2023F F 3, 141



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR

For the year ended 31 March 2023 & ZE2023F3A31H LFE

11. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES' 1. EERTHAZHE
REMUNERATION
The remuneration of the directors of the Company and RARES RITBEZ M50
chief executives were set out below: R
Year ended 31 March 2023 B Z£2023F3A31MBLEE
Salaries, Retirement
Directors'  allowancesand  Discretionary ~ Share-based  benefit scheme
fees  benefits in kind bonuses payments  contributions Total
A4 HRHBA RAER
Ezhe RENER MEEL  ER2OR A it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
TR ThR Thn Tén TR TR
Executive directors: HITEE.
Mr. Chan Lap Ping (Note (a)) BUTEE (F@) - m - = 15 786
Mr. Chow Yik ik 480 - - - - 480
Mr. Tsui Wing Tak BxErE 360 - - - - 360
Ms. Ho Qi Kwan (Note (b) fEELL (MEb) 173 - - - - 173
Indlependent non-executive directors: ~ BUFH/EE.
Ms. Lau Man Kei (Note (d) gLt (M) 15 - = = - 15
Ms. Wong Syndia D (Note (q)) Tl () 76 = = = - 76
Mr. Chong Alex Tin Yam HRERE 120 - - - - 120
Mr. Chan Kwan Yung RiELE 120 - - - - 120
1,344 m - - 15 2,130
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11. DIRECTORS' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES' M. EERTBAZMS (B)
REMUNERATION (Continued)
Year ended 31 March 2022 BE20229F3A31R L FE
Salaries, Retirement
Directors' ~ allowancesand ~ Discretionary ~ Share-based  benefit scheme
fees  benefits in kind bonuses payments  contributions Total
N W& RiKEN
L RENEMN MEEL  BRIHH SEI @it
HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HKS'000
TEL TR TERL TERL TEL TERL
Executive directors: HiTEE:
Mr. Chan Lap Ping BuTiE - 763 2000 - % 2789
Mr. Chow Yik ke 410 - - 3% - 766
Mr. Tsui Wing Tak hKETE 3 - - 3% - 681
Ms. Ho Oi Kwan (Note (b) mRERT (M) 8 - - 3% - 444

Independent non-executive directors: ~ BUFHTEE:

Mr. Law Yui Lun (Note (¢) BEBLE (F0) R - - - - »
Mr. Chan Hoi Kuen Matthew (Note (6) ~ B#EE % (M (e)) 8 - - - - 84
Mr. Lu Jun Bo (Note (f) BERLE (W) 32 - - - - 2
Ms. Wong Syndia D Ident 120 - - - - 120
Mr. Chong Alex Tin Yam (Note (1) HREEE (M3Em) 81 - - - - 81
Mr. Chan Kwan Yung(Note (i) BRHELE (F) Rl - - - - 0

1,202 763 2,000 1,068 2% 5059
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11. DIRECTORS' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES'
REMUNERATION (Continued)

Notes:

144

(a)

Ms. Chan Lap Ping has tendered the resignation as executive
director of the Company with effect from 3 January 2023.

Ms. Ho Oi Kwan has been appointed as executive director of the
Company with effect from 19 November 2021. Ms. Ho Oi Kwan
has tendered the resignation as executive director of the Company
with effect from 20 December 2022.

Mr. Law Yui Lun has tendered the resignation as independent non-
executive director of the Company with effect from 30 July 2021.

Ms. Lau Man Kei has been appointed as independent non-
executive director of the Company with effect from 16 February
2023.

Mr. Chan Hoi Kuen Matthew has tendered the resignation as
independent non-executive director of the Company with effect
from 31 December 2021.

Mr. Lu Jun Bo had tendered the resignation as independent non-
executive director of the Company with effect from 27 July 2021.

Ms. Wong Syndia D has tendered the resignation as independent
non-executive director of the Company with effect from 17
November 2022.

Mr. Chong Alex Tin Yam has been appointed as independent non-
executive director of the Company with effect from 30 July 2021.

Mr. Chan Kwan Yung has been appointed as independent non-
executive director of the Company with effect from 31 December
2021.
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11.

12.

DIRECTORS' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES'
REMUNERATION (Continued)

No emoluments were paid by the Group to the directors
of the Company and chief executives as an inducement to
join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss
of office during the years ended 31 March 2023 and 2022.
None of the directors of the Company or chief executives

has waived or agreed to waive any emoluments during the
years ended 31 March 2023 and 2022.

No share options were granted to the directors of the
Company and chief executives during the year ended
31 March 2023. Details of share options granted to the
directors of the Company during the year ended 31 March
2022 were set out in Note 32 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Except as disclosed in Note 28 to the consolidated
financial statements, no other transactions, arrangements
or contracts of significance to which the Company, its
ultimate holding company, or any subsidiaries of its
ultimate holding company was a party and in which a
director of the Company had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the reporting
periods or at any time during the years ended 31 March
2023 and 2022.

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees of the Group during
the year ended 31 March 2023 include two (2022: one)
directors, whose emoluments are disclosed in Note 11
to the consolidated financial statements. Details of the
emoluments for the year ended 31 March 2023 of the
remaining three (2022: four) highest paid employees who
are not director or chief executives of the Company are as
follows:

1. EERTHAZ#ME (8)

H E2023F 202293 H31H It F
B AEEBERAAAGEERT
BEBEHEZIMe ERINAREE
A INA & B ) S B S 1E A B
Bk 45 (8 - PN 220234 2202243 A
BNNBEEFE - BEARAEZESHIT
BB ES R ERETAME -

H ZE2023F3A31H (L FEIWERA
ARREBRITHAHT HERE-
HE2022F3R31B IEFE  AAR
AEERHBRENFBEIENGE
WSSk R I 32

Brire B SR W k28T TE & SN -
AR HA R s 8 = 20234F K 20224 3
ANBIFFERNEMEBEAQRE
EMERNEARR  EHEIZERAF
HHRRIZER R R B A A
BER—F7EMEER S ZH
REHNFHEETNENEEIHE
e o

12. TEBRSHFHNES
HE2023F3A31HIEFE  AEH
hEmRHMNZ ATBEME (2022
F—F)EE ENEEEREZE
B 7 TR R BT 5211 » B =2023F 3 A31
BIEFEST =% (20227 - 1% )
EeyMES (WIEARFESRK
ITHURE) BEFT BT -

2023 2022

2023 20224

HK$'000 HK$'000

FERT TF&T

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e EZMEEWER 1,802 1,686
Discretionary bonuses B IEIEAL 59 4,000
Retirement benefit scheme contributions R {REF|5HE {7 46 50
1,907 5,736
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12.

13.

146

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES (Continued)

The number of the highest paid employees who are not
the directors of the Company whose remuneration fell
within the following bands is as follows:

12.

nERBHHES (F)
MeN FUTHENSEHMAL
(EHADRER)BAMT :

2023 2022

20234 20224F

Nil to HK$1,000,000 = 751,000,000/ 7T 3 2

HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7T & 1,500,000/% 7T - -
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7T & 2,000,0007% 7T -

HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 7T £ 2,500,000/ 7T — 1

During the years ended 31 March 2023 and 2022, no
emoluments were paid by the Group to the above
individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining the
Group or as compensation for loss of office.

INCOME TAX EXPENSES

On 21 March 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative Council
passed The Inland Revenue (Amendment) (No. 7) Bill 2017
(the “Bill") which introduces the two-tiered profits tax rates
regime. The Bill was signed into law on 28 March 2018 and
was gazetted on the following day. Under the two tiered
profits tax rates regime, the first HK$2 million of profits
of the qualifying group entity will be taxed at 8.25%, and
profits above HK$2 million will be taxed at 16.5%. The
profits of group entities not qualifying for the two-tiered
profits tax rates regime will continue to be taxed at a flat
rate of 16.5%.

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made
for the years ended 31 March 2023 and 2022 as the Group
incurred a loss for taxation purposes.

The Group's entities established in the PRC are subject to
PRC Enterprise Income Tax at a statutory rate of 25%. No
provision for PRC Enterprise Income Tax has been made
for both years as the Group had no assessable profits in
the PRC for the year ended 31 March 2023 and incurred
a loss for taxation purposes for the year ended 31 March
2022.
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13. INCOME TAX EXPENSES (Continued) 13. FREHAX (#)

Reconciliation of income tax expenses for BFEKEXR 2 MEBHBAZIYHEER
continuing operations

2023 2022
2023F 20224
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TETT
Loss before tax Rt AT E 1B (24,975) (33,141)
Tax at Hong Kong Profits Tax rate of & /8 F15 111 %16.5%
16.5% (2022: 16.5%) (2022%F - 16.5% )+t &
H F1 18 (4,121) (5,468)
Tax effect of: MIBRE -
Different tax rates of subsidiaries REM BDERE R LS
operating in other jurisdictions B ARz TR E (76) 32)
Expenses not deductible for PRI
tax purpose 1,250 2,200
Income not taxable for tax purpose FERRBLUTA (229) (178)
Unrecognised temporary differences  RIERE K =58 970 (439)
Utilisation of tax losses previously AR AR IHEE
not recognised - 3)
Tax losses not recognised RNERTIEEE 2,206 3,920
Income tax expenses PTAS B 2 - —
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14. BREE

14. LOSS PER SHARE
The computations of basic and diluted loss per share
attributable to owners of the Company are based on the
following data:

NG LN LR S T
BB T R TR & -

2023 2022
2023%F 20224
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FETT
Loss B8
Loss for the year attributable to RARHEBEARIGEFEER
owners of the Company (22,227) (40,299)
(adjusted)
Numbers of shares ROEE
Weighted average number of ordinary AR ESREEEIE Y
shares for the purposes of calculating — II#E ¥ L BAREE
dilutive loss per share 26,067,457 15,833,724

For the years ended 31 March 2023 and 2022, the
computation of diluted loss per share did not assume
the exercise of the outstanding share options since the
exercise price per share option was higher than the
average share price of the Company for both years.

The number of shares for the year ended 31 March 2022
has been adjusted to reflect share consolidation during the
year ended 31 March 2023 and the rights issue completed
on 14 June 2023. Details of which are set out in Notes
26(f) and 37 to the consolidated financial statements,
respectively.
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15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. ¥ -BENERE

Leasehold Furniture Catering and Machinery
improvements and fixtures other equipment  and equipment Total
HE FRR ERR
NEEE EE%E RthRf HERRE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TARL TEL TEL TEL
Cost RA
At 1 April 2021 202154718 2,781 598 1,996 - 5375
Additions hE 9,959 2016 4,106 - 16,081
Acquisition of a subsidiary WE-FEREAR - 40 - 15970 16,010
Deconsolidation of a subsidiary ~ FUBERA AB—

(Note 34) A (HiiEae) - @1) - (16,180) (16,221)
Exchange difference B = - 1 - 210 21
At 31 March 2022 R202253A318 K

and 1 April 2022 2022F4A1R 12,740 2,614 6,102 - 21,456
Additions nE 1,700 146 91 - 1,937
At 31 March 2023 1#2023%3A31A 14,440 2,760 6,193 - 23,393
Accumulated depreciation EARERAE

and impairment
At 1 April 2021 R02154R1H 1,288 197 1,326 - 2,81
Charge for the year FEHY 1,959 268 436 1,376 4,039
Deconsolidation of a subsidiary ~ FUEERE AR — T

(Note 34) GEPEIGERDY - (1) - (16,162) (16,173)
Impairment loss HEBR 750 - 3718 14,742 19210
Witten-off 38 - - - 4 4
At 31 March 2022 and #202263A318 K

1 April 2022 2022F4A1R 3,997 454 5,480 - 9,931
Charge for the year FERY 4,208 498 334 - 5,040
Impairment loss HEER 1,873 205 - - 2,078
At 31 March 2023 12023%3431H 10,078 1,157 5814 - 17,049
Carrying amounts REE
At 31 March 2023 12023%3731H 4,362 1,603 379 - 6,344
At 31 March 2022 R02F3A31R 8,743 2,160 622 - 11,525

BXERARDA / 2023FF#H 149



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR

For the year ended 31 March 2023 & ZE2023F3A31H LFE

15.

150

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets

In light of the unfavorable market conditions caused
by COVID-19 pandemic, the directors of the Company
considered that property, plant and equipment and right-
of-use assets of the Group relating to the restaurant
operations and sales and processing of food business at
31 March 2023 and 2022 might be impaired. In view of this,
the directors of the Company estimated the recoverable
amounts of each cash-generating unit as the higher of
the fair value less costs of disposal and the value in use
of the cash-generating unit based on the valuation report
prepared by an independent professional valuer.

The directors of the Company estimated the recoverable
amount of each cash generating unit with reference to a
value-in-use calculation using cash flow projections based
on financial budgets approved by the directors of the
Company covering a 3-year period to be derived from
each cash-generating unit. The estimation of future cash
flows are discounted to its present value using a pre-tax
discount rate of 15.03% (2022: 15.53%).
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15.

16.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets (Continued)

Based on the assessment, impairment loss of approximately
HK$643,000 (2022: approximately HK$1,384,000) and
approximately HK$54,000 (2022: approximately HK$134,000)
were recognised in respect of the property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets relating to sale and
processing of food business during the year ended
31 March 2023, respectively. In addition, impairment loss
of approximately HK$1,435,000 (2022: approximately
HK$3,084,000) and approximately HK$831,000 (2022:
approximately HK$2,768,000) were recognised in respect
the property, plant and equipment and right-of-use
assets relating to the catering services through restaurant
operations during the year ended 31 March 2023.

During the year ended 31 March 2022, impairment loss
of approximately HK$14,742,000 and approximately
HK$6,434,000 was made against property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets in respect of
manufacture and sales of frozen aquatic products business.
Details of which are set out in Note 35 to the consolidated
financial statements.

LEASES

The Group has entered into lease contracts for certain of
its office premises, restaurant properties and factories.
Leases for leased properties are for a period of one to
three years. Lease terms are negotiated on an individual
basis and contain different terms and conditions. In
determining the lease term and assessing the length of the
non-cancellable period, the Group applies the definition
of a contract and determines the period for which the
contract is enforceable. Generally, the Group is restricted
from assigning and subleasing the leased assets outside
the Group.

15.

16.

ME - BERRE(E)

ME BRERRBEUREAEE
ERE (&)

RIEFT (445 R H 22023F3A31H
LEFE SHEEEMNIRMER
BB Y2 BB & R E A
& B o Bl e R R B 5 18 £9643,000
B TT (20224 : 491,384,000, 7T ) &
#4954,0003% 7T (20224 : #7134,000
JEr) o AN B E2023F3H431H
EFE DRREBREREEDN
EHRGEBOME HEREBE
LA K2 {50 R 4 & = T 3R 491,435,000
TT (20224 : #93,084,000;% 7T )} 49
831,00078 T (20224 : #92,768,000;%
JT) KRBT

KRB E2022F3A31HIEFE B
7 Bl gk B A EE K BH B 2R K E M
XBHEEOME BEREZBAR
FTRBEEDIEFHREBSELD
14,742,000/ 7T & #96,434,0007% 7T °
FIBEHNGRE BRI FEIS -

HE
AEEREETHAEE £
MENTIHTLELD - HEWMEHE
HR—=2=F HEGFIZERNE
EREE N EA TR AR R
B T E R NS T AT HEH B
ZRER AEBERERBANZES
MRETEAIBFIRITZANZHME-
—fRME - ANEE A A [[ AR5 B A
SMANTEEE OHEEEE -
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16. LEASES (Continued)

152

(i)

Right-of-use assets

16. HE (&)

(i)

The carrying amounts of the Group's right-of-use
assets and the movements during the years are as

ERAEEE

ALEBEREEEREERSF
NEELAT

follows:

Leased

properties

HEYHE

HK$'000

FAETT

At 1 April 2021 R2021F4 818 4,857
Acquisition of a subsidiary Yo iE —FRI P /B8 2 7] 6,811
Additions NE 7,512
Depreciation e 4,373)
Impairment loss BIEERE (9,336)
Exchange difference ME W ZE 5 76
At 31 March 2022 and 1 April 2022 M2022F3H31H K2022%F481H 5,547
Additions NE 4,039
Depreciation e (4,458)
Impairment loss (Note 15) BABEE (BiF15) (885)
At 31 March 2023 M2023%€3H31H 4,243
2023 2022

20234 20224

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHEx FHT

Total cash outflow for leases (Remark) HER ML (HiT) 6,173 4,415

Remark: Amount includes payments of principal and interest portion

of lease liabilities, short-term lease payments and low-value

assets lease payments. These amounts could be presented

in operating or financing cash flows.

Details of impairment assessment are set out in Note

15 to the consolidated financial statements.
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16. LEASES (Continued)

16. HE (&)

(i) Lease liabilities (i) HERME
2023 2022
20234 20224
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER T
Lease liabilities payable: RUTHEESHEHERE:
Within one year —F R 3,993 4,976
More than one year but ZR—FETHEAMF
not exceeding two years 2,866 2,586
More than two years but ZHRMEEBITBEBRF
not exceeding five years 431 1,384
7,290 8,946
The weighted average incremental borrowing rates FERREEABEZ MEFY
applied to lease liabilities range from 5.24% to 5.32% B AE ERA R N F 8 F5.24%

(2022: 5.24% to 5.56%) per annum.

£5.32% (20224 :5.24% %

5.56%) °
17. INVENTORIES 17. 7€

2023 2022
2023F 20224
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT THETT

Food and beverage, and RYEGE R EMERE

other operating items for HEMHRERE R

restaurant operations and RBmMIER
food processing business 236 127
B ERER AT / 2023F F 3, 153
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18.

154

TRADE RECEIVABLES

For the restaurant operations business, there was no credit
period granted to individual customer except for a food
delivery agent with credit term of 30 days. The settlement
terms of credit card and other electronic payments
acquiring service providers are usually within 7 days after
the service rendered date.

For sales and processing of food business, the Group with
its trade debtors is mainly on credit basis and the credit
period is mainly over 90 days (2022: 30 days).

18.

B 5 RWRIE

SLEREEXBM S BERE R

EFRHEES HEEH/R30AH

R ERIERIN-EAREKERA

ﬂﬁ%%ﬁ K AR TS R E R O 48 B A
BE SRR B BRIRA -

MERBEERMNIESEMS A&
EREEREZIEHEACESEE
HAREFARET MEEH K
A908 (20224 : 304 ) °

The following is an ageing analysis of trade receivables NTRIZEZEBHZ3|E 5 BN
presented based on the invoice date: THH) R R 9T -

2023 2022
20235 20224
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FERT THETT
0 - 30 days 0£30H 396 576
- 60 days 31&260H 323 1,066
61 - 90 days 61290H - -
90 — 180 days 90£180H 1,050 12
Over 180 days #B3E180H 888 -
2,657 1,654

The following is an ageing analysis of trade receivables

LXTEHz ‘JHE BHIZ S E 5 R

presented by due date: IR BREC D AT

2023 2022
20234 20224
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TETT
Not past due < 180 HA 372 576
Less than 1 month past due AHIEE A 24 1,066
1 to 2 months past due B E Z= 218 A 323 -
2 to 3 months past due 1 B2 31E A - -
3 to 6 months past due 61 HA3 Z= 61 H 1,050 -
Past due over 6 months 0 HA 386 fE A 888 12
2,657 1,654

Details of impairment assessment are set out in Note 5 to BB T b 5 B E R AR & B S sk Mt

the consolidated financial statements.
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19. NON-CURRENT AND CURRENT DEPOSITS, 19. FEENHAR ENHAR & - FEF FRIE
PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES & H fth B R IR
Non-current portion 3E B HA &5 40
2023 2022
20234 20224
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FAT
Rental deposits HEZ 966 1,476
Current portion B HA 36 19
2023 2022
20234 20224
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TH&T
Rental deposits HERS 913 1,905
Utility and other deposits AHEERAMZS 1,559 1,832
Prepayments TEfT I 1,009 4,482
Other receivables H b B W N TE 703 2,095
4,184 10,314
Details of impairment assessment are set out in Note 5 to AT (G IF RN AR & B S R
the consolidated financial statements. 5o
20. AMOUNTS DUE FROM (TO) NON- 20. FEW (FEAS) FEIER R FIE
CONTROLLING INTERESTS
The amounts due are unsecured, interest-free and IR EAEER RERZEX
recoverable on demand. gk
The greatest amount due from non-controlling interests FREYEZERERD R HIEN
during the years is as follow: I
2023 2022
2023%F 20224
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Amount due from non-controlling JrE LR SE 428 R 2 SR IE
interests 367 1,296
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21. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 21. BERBREEEY
2023 2022
2023%F 20224
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FAET
Cash and bank balances Be RIETES 2,729 5,723

RIT A BR AF B AR5 B R AF R
WETRENCIHAEBREE R

Bank balances carry interest at floating rates and placed
with creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.

22.

23.

156

TRADE PAYABLES

The following is an ageing analysis of trade payables

22.

77

B S EARE

ATNREHZEH2IINE FEN

presented based on the invoice date: SIRRRE DT :
2023 2022
2023%F 20224
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER TR
0-30 days 0£30H 728 671
31-60 days 31&260H 661 603
61-90 days 61E290H 99 -
Over 90 days 83890 H 12 630
1,500 1,904

The average credit period granted by suppliers are usually

within 30 days.

ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES

HEHE THFHEEHETE R0

HAe

23. B ERAREMENRE

2023 2022

2023F 20224

HK$'000 HK$'000

THT FHET

Accruals == 6,750 5,197
Other payables H At &~ 5RIE 670 420
Interest payables &7 8 367 -
7,787 5,617
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24.

INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS 24.

At the end of the reporting period, the interest-bearing
borrowings were repayable as follows:

E—|' ‘fa’A
WERAR ENFEERAT:

2023 2022

2023 20224

HK$'000 HK$'000

FE T FHET

Unsecured 45 1 4 5,000 -

At 31 March 2023, the interest-bearing borrowings in
aggregate of HK$5,000,000 were unsecured, carried fixed
effective interest rates ranging from 30% to 48% per
annum and were repayable within one year, of which a loan
of HK$2,000,000 was guaranteed by the Company and the
Chairman of the Company.

The interest-bearing borrowings are fully settled
subsequent to 31 March 2023.

7202393 H31H - & #£5,000, ooo,%
TR T B A R A BT
:‘éﬁ%ﬂﬁz%in?w%i%%ﬁ
R —F A& E - H#2,000,0007% 7T
MERBARRRRAABEFER-

B FR2023F3 A3 BB BB L
o
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25.

158

DEFERRED TAX LABILITIES 25 EEBIEEE
The followings are the deferred tax liabilities recognised EHERECHERBERAZFHNT
and movements thereon:
2023 2022
2023%F 20224
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT TET
At the beginning and & BRI & BAR
the end of the reporting period 111 111

At 31 March 2023, the Group has unused estimated
tax losses of approximately HK$75,508,000 (2022:
approximately HK$80,099,000) available for offset against
future profits. No deferred tax asset has been recognised
in respect of the unused estimated tax losses due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams and unrecognised
tax losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has
deductible temporary differences of approximately
HK$7,755,000 (2022: approximately HK$1,729,000). No
deferred tax asset has been recognised in relation to such
deductible temporary difference as it is not probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences can be utilised.
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26. SHARE CAPITAL 26. I’RA
2023 2022
20235 20224F
No. of shares Amount No. of shares Amount
BREEE £5 D& B S8
'000 HK$'000 ‘000 HK$'000
T THERT TR FBT
Authorised: EE:
At the beginning of the year REH 10,000,000 100,000 2,000,000 20,000
Increase in shares (Note (a)) PR30 (FisE(a) ) - = 8,000,000 80,000
Share consolidation (Note (a)) B34 0F (FiisE(a)) - - (9,000,000 -
Sub-divided (Note (d)) w4 (BTsE(d)) - - 9,000,000 -
Share consolidation (Note () M4 B (M) (9,666,667) = - -
Sub-divided (Note (g)) M (HiE(g) 9,666,667 = - -
At the end of the year RERXR 10,000,000 100,000 10,000,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: ERTRAR:
At the beginning of the year REY] 388,800 3,888 1,440,000 14,400
Share consolidation (Note (a)) & Bt (HisE@a)) = = (1,296,000) -
Issue of share upon rights issue PR BT AR (FiiFE(b))

(Note (b)) - - 216,000 21,600
Placing of new shares (Note () ~ FEE#T A (FIFE()) = = 28,800 2,880
Capital reduction (Note (d)) BRABIA (BEE(d)) - - - (34,992)
Placing of new shares (Note (¢)  EL&E ¥ 1% (M (e) 77,748 777 - -
Share consolidation (Note (f) Mt & B (D) (450,996) = - -
Capital reduction (Note (g)) HxKﬁJ/F%V(WuE( ) - (4,509) - -
At the end of the year RER 15,552 156 388,800 3,888
Notes: MIaE:

(@)  Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed by the shareholders of @@ BEARFARER202147 4238 &

the Company at an extraordinary general meeting on 23 July 2021,
the authorised share capital of the Company was increased to
HK$100,000,000 divided into 10,000,000,000 existing shares on 23
July 2021, and 1,000,000,000 consolidated authorised shares after
the share consolidation was effective on 27 July 2021.

Pursuant to the rights issue on the basis of three rights share
of HK$0.17 each for every two shares held on the record date,
215,999,995 shares were issued on 6 September 2021 at HK$0.17
per share (the "Rights Issue”). Net proceeds of approximately
HK$34,505,000 after deducting direct cost of approximately
HK$2,214,000 were credited to the Company’s equity under “Share
capital” and “Share premium”. Details of the Rights Issue were
set out in the Company's announcements dated 6 August 2021, 25
August 2021, and 3 September 2021.

B IZER AR AR / 2023F F R

Hxﬁ%ﬁuxﬁ%t@uﬁﬁ@a& E RN

N AEFE A N20214E7 A23E 1 hn &=
100,000,0007% 7t (43 £10,000,000,0000%
WAEKRG) - RHR202167A278 KM &
Bt 4 2014 5 51,000,000,0000% & 6135 £
A&7 o

BIERGEHABEHEMRR G ER
— IR EEC. 178 TR A AL () &Y
&7 HAR - 215,999,9950% i% (7 2 7
20219 A6 B {2 &R A (B0 1778 BT
(THERR ] ) o &EHNBR B H AL A 492,214,000
/%7131% ﬁﬁT IE/%EEQ]34 505 OOO/%
TEFFALRRQ A ER EPFH;JM&FHX
EE] AT HEMFBEHNAR

H i 5202148 H6H - 2021¢8HZSE
K2021F9 B3 A E -
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26. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Note: (Continued)

160

(@

On 6 January 2022, the Company placed 28,800,000 placing
shares at the placing price of HK$0.12 per placing share (the 2022
Placing”). Net proceeds of approximately HK$3,387,000 after
deducting direct cost of approximately HK$69,000 were credited to
the Company's equity under “Share capital” and “Share premium”.
Details of the 2022 Placing were set out in the Company's
announcements dated 15 December 2021 and 6 January 2022.

Pursuant to a special resolution passed by the shareholders of
the Company at an extraordinary general meeting on 13 January
2022, the par value of each of the issued shares was reduced from
HK$0.1 to HK$0.01 per issued share by cancelling the paid up
share capital to the extent of HK$0.09 per issued share (the “Capital
Reduction”) and the reduction of the entire amount standing to the
credit of the share premium (the “Share Premium Reduction”), the
credit arising from the Capital Reduction and the Share Premium
Reduction was applied towards offsetting the accumulated losses
of the Company. Immediately following the Capital Reduction
becoming effective, each of the authorised but unissued shares
with par value of HK$0.1 each be sub-divided into 10 authorised
but unissued new shares with par value of HK$0.01 each.

On 17 June 2022, the Company placed a total of 77,748,000
placing shares at the placing price of HK$0.038 per placing share
(the "Placing”). Net proceeds of approximately HK$2,866,000
after deducting direct cost of approximately HK$88,000 were
credited to the Company's equity under “Share capital” and “Share
premium”. Details of the Placing were set out in the Company's
announcements dated 31 May 2022 and 17 June 2022.

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed by the shareholders
of the Company at an extraordinary general meeting on 18 July
2022, every thirty (30) issued and unissued ordinary shares of
the Company of HK$0.01 each was consolidated into one (1)
consolidated share of HK$0.30 each effective on 20 July 2022.

Pursuant to a special resolution passed by the shareholders of the
Company at an extraordinary general meeting on 18 July 2022, the
par value of each of the issued share capital of the Company was
reduced from HK$0.30 to HK$0.01 per issued shares by cancelling
the paid up capital to the extent of HK$0.29 each from the capital
and the entire amount of the share premium account of the
Company towards crediting the retained earnings of the Company;
and the authorised but unissued consolidated shares of par value
of HK$0.30 each be sub-divided into thirty (30) new shares of par
value of HK$0.01 each.
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e BB RME

For the year ended 31 March 2023 & ZE2023F3A31H LFE

27. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 27. XA R R FHEEE
MOVEMENT OF RESERVES OF THE COMPANY
(a) Statement of financial position of the (a) A2 BB R T
Company
2023 2022
20234 20224
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET AT
Non-current asset IREBEE
Investment in subsidiaries R B R RIEE - -
Current assets REBEE
Prepayments and other receivables T8 3018 K E th fE W 5k 18 78 62
Amounts due from subsidiaries A NG E @] 2,148 22,475
Cash and cash equivalents BeNEEEED 34 1,132
2,260 23,669
Current liabilities REAE
Accruals and other payables FET & A K H Ath FE A 518 2,272 1,593
Amounts due to subsidiaries JET M B A R 3IA 9216 806
Interest-bearing borrowings FTRER 2,000 -
5,188 2,399
Net current (liabilities) assets B (BB EEFE (2,928) 21,270
Net (liabilities) assets (BB)EERE (2,928) 21,270
Capital and reserves EXR#E
Share capital (Note 26) A& A (FI7E26) 156 3,888
Reserves (Note 27(b)) & (FIsE27(b)) (3,084) 17,382
Total (deficits) equity (B4l R EEE (2,928) 21,270
The Company's statement of financial position was AN BB B H AR O 2R 2 722023
approved and authorised for issue by the Board FORA2OHEE= G /& MK
of Directors on 29 June 2023 and are signed on its BT B TIIEFTRERE
behalf by: &
Chow Yik Tsui Wing Tak
& ®hKE
Director Director
EFE EZE
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27. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND

162

MOVEMENT OF RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

(Continued)

(b) Movement of reserve of the Company

27. ARRMBARREKR HEE B

(%&)

(b) ARQFEEEE

Retained
Share earnings
Share option  (Accumulated
premium reserve losses) Total
REBF
ROEE BRERE (RIER) st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR THET TERT TR
At 1 April 2021 R2021F4A1H 60,549 - (52,925) 7,624
Loss and total comprehensive FRBERZABREARE
loss for the year - - (39,714) (39,714
Recognition of equity-settled HERIA BRI A B AR A 4
share-based payment expenses B 2 [ HHAX - 1,068 - 1,068
Issues of shares upon rights issue  FAMERRE 1T &)
(Note 26(0)) (F5E26(0)) 15,119 - - 15,119
Transaction costs attributable to P EREF TR (0 S
shares issued upon rights issue < R FRK A
(Note 26(0)) (F3E26(0) ) (2.214) - - (2,.214)
Proceeds from placing of B E ¥R RIS 5B
new shares (Note 24(c)) (F5E26(c)) 576 - - 576
Transaction costs attributable to ~ RELE R BT EIS
shares issued upon placings ZRBHA
(Note 26(c)) (FizE26(c)) (69) - - (69)
Reduction of share capital BURR AR R R0 B
and share premium (Note 26(d)) ~ (P{&£26(d)) (73,961) - 108,953 34,992
At 31 March 2022 and 2022837318 %
1 April 2022 202264718 - 1,068 16,314 17,382
Loss and total comprehensive FRBEREZABRAR
loss for the year - - (27,064) (27,064)
Issue of shares upon placing RECERETRG
(Note 26(e)) (Fff5E26(e)) 2177 - - 2,177
Transaction costs attributable R ERETRMEN
to shares issued upon placings ZRBHR
(Note 26(e)) (FEE26(e)) (88) - - (88)
Reduction of share capital and BB A RIS E
share premium (Note 26(g)) (Bir&E26(g)) (2,089) - 6,598 4,509
Cancellation of share options iR ( W 32)
(Note 32) - (356) 356 -
At 31 March 2023 12023F3A318 - 712 (3,796) (3,084)
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e BB RME

For the year ended 31 March 2023 & ZE2023F3A31H LFE

28. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 28. EXBEBARS

(@) Save as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated (a) BESTBRMEREMIBOAAE
financial statements, during the years, the Group did Be B 2 O AN E A B R
not enter into any material transactions with related AW TS AERE RS
parties.

(b) Compensation of key management personnel of (b) AEEFEEERASHEHM (B
the Group, including directors’ and chief executives’ BEaUBRRMETNMIKE
remuneration as disclosed in Note 11 to the BEERITHEZEME) T

consolidated financial statements, is as follows:

2023 2022
2023% 20224F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FAT
Salaries, allowances, bonuses e R K
and benefit in kind E Y& F| 2,533 2,304
Discretionary bonus [E=ReAAN = 6,000
Share-based payments VAR 0 A Bt 2 15K - 1,068
Retirement benefits scheme contributions R REFEH 243X 33 43
2,566 9,415
(c) Details of the balances with related parties are set out (c) HEBHEHNFIBIHNLEGS
in Note 20 to the consolidated financial statements. B FE SRR I FE20 ©
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 & ZE2023F3A31H LFE

29. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 29. B AR
Details of the subsidiaries directly and indirectly held by REeERREARRIEE KEZEFAE
the Company at the end of the reporting period are set B R Rl IEE ST -
out below:
Issued and
Place/country of fully paid share
incorporation/ capital/registered Proportion of nominal value of paid up and
Name of subsidiary operation Class of share capital issued capital held by the Company Principal activities
ERAL/ BRTRARRE RARFRBER
WEBARERE EERY/HX  RGER /ERER BRTRARELA FERH

Directly Indirectly Directly  Indirectly
B B LS i

2023 2023 2022 2022
2023% 2023% X025 A0F
% % % %
Best Honour Ventures Limited British Virgin Islands ~ Ordinary United State dollars 100 - 100 - Dormant
("BVI") ("US$") 50,000
SRERERAR EBRNHS LER 50,0005 7T TEEK
([XBELEHB]) ([%7r]))
Character Creative Asia Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$24 - 54.17 - 5417 Provision of catering services
("Character Creative”)
BlEsNERaR (T8E)) R LER UET REERRE
Country Way Corporation Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$100 - 100 - 100 Provision of management
consultancy services
EXARAA i R 1007 72 REEERRERS
Full Field Management Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000 - 100 - 100 Dormant
FLERERAT 5 LER 10000737 TEXK
Glorious Day Enterprises Limited BVI Ordinary US§50,000 - - 100 - Dormant
(Note)
KAGEXERAR (M) B i LER 50,0007 TEEK
Goldy Glory Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000 - 100 - 100 Dormant
ERBERAT B gk 10,0007 72 LR 3
Harvest Wealth Enterprises Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 - 100 - 100 Dormant
KELERRAT i EaER %7 TEEE
Honour Star Enterprises Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HKS$1 - 100 - 100 Dormant
BELEBRAT] Bl LER e UEEH
Ice Point Catering Management Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000 - - - 100 Provision of catering services
Limited (Note)
KEERERERAT (M) R LER 1000077 RUERRE
Jetech Consultants Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 - 100 - 100 Dormant
EEERBRAT R LER 28T TEXH
Kant Supply Chain (Shenzhen) PRC Ordinary HK$10,000,000 - 100 - 100 Investment holding
Co, Ltd.
REMHESE ORI ERAA s TRk 10,000,000 70 RE#ER
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29. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

29. MIB A RS (8)

Issued and
Place/country of fully paid share
incorporation/ capital/registered Proportion of nominal value of paid up and
Name of subsidiary operation Class of share capital issued capital held by the Company Principal activities
HMERL/ BRTRARRE RAAFREER
HEARER EENY/BX  ROEY /EREE BRTRAEELH TEEH
Directly  Indirectly Directly  Indirectly
HE B Ei il
2023 2023 2022 2022
20235 2023 206 X205
% % % %
King Wings Holding Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000 - 100 - 100 Dormant
SRERERAR 5 LER 1000057 TEXK
Moly Power Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 - 100 - 100 Provision of catering services
BHERDE i LER T REERERHE
Most Will Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$640,000 - 100 - 100 Provision of catering services
SEBRAF B LRR 640,000/ 7T REESRS
Quick Success Holding Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000 - 100 - 100 Sales and processing of food
EEERERAT B TRk 10,000% 7T RAHERNT
Silver Wings Group Holding Limited ~ Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000 - 100 - 100 Dormant
BRERERAR 5 R 100007 TEXK
Smart Sino Enterprises Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HKS$1 - 100 - 100 Investment holding
RECEERAR i LER %7 RARR
Smart Sky Enterprises Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 - 100 - 100 Dormant
oS ING i EaR iy TExH
Success Reach Holding Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000 - 51 - 51 Provision of catering services
("Success Reach”)
RUERRERAR ([RRE)) Bl EaR 100007% 7T REERRH
Sunny Days Corporation Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HKS$1 - 100 - 100 Dormant
BEBRAH R LER e UEEH
Sunny Galaxy Limited (Note) Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 - - - 100 Dormant
JBEBRRAR (M) R LER 28T gEXH
Sunny Shadow Limited (Note) Hong Kong Ordinary HKS1 - - - 100 Dormant
BRAERAR (M) £ LR %7 LR
Sure Gain Global Limited ("Sure Gain") BVI Ordinary US$1 100 - 100 - Investment holding
WERRARAR ([28]) ERERES TRk %7 RE#R
Venus Holding Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000 - 100 - 100 Dormant
EFHERERAT A AR 1000027 LEEY

B IZER AR AR / 2023F F R

165



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR

For the year ended 31 March 2023 & ZE2023F3A31H LFE

29. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 29. MBARRFE (H)

Note: B3

These subsidiaries were disposed of during the year ended 31 March ZEMBRRNBE2023F3A31H ILFERA

2023. No gain or loss was recorded from the disposal since these BEHE - BRZIWERRNLE BRI E

subsidiaries have no significant assets and liabilities at disposal date. BREERBE HLESHEHGRE
18-

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities MENE AR RERAASIRNRE

outstanding during the reporting period or at the end of HREE R EITEINERE S -

the reporting period.

Details of a non-wholly owned subsidiaries that BEEARFEREZNFEZER
have material non-controlling interests. B QRS

The table below shows details of non-wholly-owned TREREBEARFEREZHAR
subsidiaries of the Group that have material non- EEFE2EMBRRIFFE:

controlling interests:

Proportion of

Place/country of ownership interests and
incorporation/ voting rights held by Loss allocated to Accumulated
Name of subsidiary operation non-controlling interests non-controlling interests non-controlling interests
HERAL/ FERREASRAR
WELAREH EXnE/ER RERRERNLA PEEFERBEENER PP b
2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
2023% 2026 2023% 200F 2023% 0%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TR TAT
Character Creative Hong Kong 45.83% 45.83% (545) (1,614) (325) 220
gl A
Success Reach Hong Kong 49% 49% (2,203) (3,364) (5,562) (3,359)
ENEERMERAF PRC
(Zhangzhou Jintian Food Co,,
Limited*) (*Jintian") - - - (23,237) - -

ENEHRRERAAE (€M) HE

* English name is for identification purpose only
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29. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 29.

Summarised financial information in respect of the Group's
subsidiaries that have material non-controlling interests is
set out below. The summarised financial information below
represents amounts before intragroup eliminations.

M =S (5)
BRBRRERGFEREENAKE
B A BT B ER BRI -
PATS 871 75 B RL 8L 22 45 5% B 0 3 35 AT
F R

Character Creative A=
2023 2022
2023%F 20224
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Current assets MENEE 1,328 1,789
Non-current assets FEMENE E - 2,200
Current liabilities mENBE (1,927) (2,480)
Non-current liabilities FEREBIE (111) (1,030)
Equity attributable to owners of RAFIHER AEIEEZ
the Company (385) 259
Non-controlling interests FE7E A 4 5 (325) 220
Revenue g 11,648 14,004
Impairment loss of property, plant and M - BB KR EREEE
equipment (632) -
Impairment loss of right-of-use assets AR EREEE (500) —
Expenses 53 (11,705) (17,526)
Loss for the year FAEE (1,189) (3,522)
Loss attributable to owners of RATIER ANEILEE
the Company (644) (1,908)
Loss attributable to the non-controlling  FE{Z I 1 %5 fE (5 E5 18
interests (545) (1,614)
Loss for the year and total comprehensive FRNEE LK FAZHEEHIE
loss for the year 4B RE (1,189) (3,522)
Net cash flow from operating activities ~ &&&/EBTERERE F5R 1,962 1,945
Net cash flow from investing activities REEBFAEREMEFE - -
Net cash flow (used in) from financing BEED (FTH)FTE
activities WemEFHE (2,045) (2,040)
Net cash (outflow) inflow Be ORE)RAFERE (83) (95)
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29. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 29. fB A TS (&)

Success Reach R E
2023 2022
2023F 20224
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Current assets MEEE 3,245 3,654
Non-current assets SEMBEE 4,495 8,000
Current liabilities EASYE (17,675) (15,725)
Non-current liabilities SERBAE (1,419) (2,784)
Equity attributable to owners of RATER ANEIEER
the Company (5,791) (3,496)
Non-controlling interests FEVERRE (5,562) (3,359)
Revenue W25 7,323 243
Impairment loss of property, plant M- BER&RBZRIE
and equipment 518 (803) (1,960)
Impairment loss of right-of-use assets 8 AR E 2R EE R (331) (1,195)
Expenses 2 (10,687) (3,953)
Loss for the year FANEE (4,498) (6,865)
Loss attributable to owners of RARHE ANEILHEE
the Company (2,295) (3,501)
Loss attributable to the IR E R (S B 1R
non-controlling interests (2,203) (3,364)
Loss for the year and total comprehensive F A EE &K FRNEHEIE
loss for the year Lk (4,498) (6,865)
Net cash flow from operating activities & & EBAERESMEFHE 1,904 8,775
Net cash flow used in investing activities & & /EBIFTAER &K EF 8 (14) (8,470)
Net cash flow used in financing activities BE/EBFTARESME TR (1,514) (230)
Net cash inflow WEMAFHEE 376 75
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30. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

CASH FLOWS

(a) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from

financing activities

The table below details changes in the Group's

liabilities arising from financing activities, including

both cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising

from financing activities are those for which cash flows

were, or future cash flows will be, classified in the

Group's consolidated statement of cash flows as cash

flows from financing activities:

30. KEBREREXRMT

(a) EXERETHNAEHR

TRFAVELAREEDHHA
SEREEY BERELIF
ReBYP -ELARELRDN
BEEASRECKIARKR
TREFERAKRERERE
MERDBRELERELY
MBIE :

Amount
due (from) Amount Interest-
to non- due to non- bearing Lease
controlling  controlling borrowings liabilities
interest interest (Note 24) (Note 16) Total
FE () 43
FERES ELFEER FEEX HEEE
HE EmERE (ME24)  (KE16) Azt
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000
THT THT THT THT THT
At 1 April 2021 20214718 (1,296) - - 4,700 3,404
Addition RNE - - - 7,512 7,512
Finance costs BEMR - - 623 632 1,255
Exchange difference EHER - - - 89 89
Acquisition of a subsidiary WEE— B A - - - 6,777 6,777
Deconsolidation of a subsidiary ~ EUB#R& ARR
—RE R - - - (6,636) (6,636)
Cash flows, net Heng 8 929 474 (623) (4,128) (3,348)
At 31 March 2022 and 2022%3A31A R
1 April 2022 2022F4A1H (367) 474 - 8,946 9,053
Addition NE - - - 4,039 4,039
Finance costs AL - - 638 523 1,161
Interest payable JERAIS - - (367) - (367)
Covid-19 related rent FRERRS
concession BEBRHESER - - - (155) (155)
Cash flows, net Beng #8 800 1,055 4,729 (6,063) 521
At 31 March 2023 R202353H31H 433 1,529 5,000 7,290 14,252
Bl AR A R] / 2023F 38 169



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR

For the year ended 31 March 2023 & ZE2023F3A31H LFE

30.

31.

170

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS (Continued)

(b) Major non-cash transactions

In addition to information disclosed elsewhere in the
consolidated financial statements, the Group has
following major non-cash transactions:

During the year ended 31 March 2023, the Group
recognised right-of-use assets by incurring lease
liabilities of approximately HK$4,039,000 (2022:
approximately HK$7,512,000).

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefits scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance. Under the MPF Scheme,
employees are required to contribute 5% of their monthly
salaries or up to a maximum of HK$1,500 and they can
choose to make additional contributions. Employers
monthly contributions are calculated at 5% of the
employee’s monthly salaries or up to a maximum of
HK$1,500 (the “mandatory contributions”). Employees
are entitled to 100% of the employer’s mandatory
contributions upon their retirement at the age of 65, death
or total incapacity.

The retirement benefits scheme contributions arising
from the MPF Scheme charged to profit or loss represent
contributions paid or payable to the funds by the Group at
rates specified in the rules of the schemes.
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32. SHARE OPTION SCHEME 32. BiR#ESTE

The Company's share option scheme was conditionally
adopted by the resolutions in writing of all the
shareholders passed on 20 January 2017 and the
refreshment of the share option scheme was approved
by the resolutions in writing of all the shareholders of the
Company at the extraordinary meeting on 27 May 2022
(the “Share Option Scheme”). Details of the Share Option
Scheme are set out in appendix IV of the document in the
Company’s announcement dated 24 October 2016 and the
Company’s circular dated 12 May 2022.

During the year ended 31 March 2023, no option has been
granted or agreed to be granted under the Share Option
Scheme.

On 10 January 2022, the Company offered to grant a
total of 11,628,000 share options at an exercise price of
HK$0.229 per share of the Company to three executive
directors of the Company (the “Grantees”), pursuant to
the Share Option Scheme of the Company. The Grantees
are entitled, subject to the terms and conditions of the
grant and upon exercise, to subscribe a total of 11,628,000
ordinary shares in the share capital of the Company.
Upon the share consolidation taken place during the year
ended 31 March 2023 as disclosed in Note 26(f) to the
consolidated financial statements, the number of share
options and the exercise price were adjusted to 387,600
(before cancellation set out in note (b) below) and HK$6.87
per share, respectively.

RARMBRESELCHEZBRE
R2017F1A20H BBEEAZER
A58 A3 0 R 20224F5 327 H FE IR R
BRRE EEARREERENSE
FURFE R EEFEARETE ([
RESTE]) -BREAINFER
RA A HE A2016F10H248 2
nERANE HHR2022F5H12H
2 388 BK A ST A B P o

HE2023F3831HILFE  HIER
BREMESRESEE R ER
T o

202218108 BEAR R A 2
REE NARRERITHEER
NAEFRR0.2298 TR A A B = B #H
TES([ZEEBAELHEH
11,628,000 fE A - Z FHEBE A B
R AR BIRAF G $£11,628,000
IR B - MR R G R R
BHERERITERRIAUIEE -#HZE
2023F3A31H IEFE#ETRMNE O
(FUNERE B TS SRR M FE26(D AT #E B8 )
% BRENEE RITEED RHA
# 5387,6000% (5T T 5% (o) BT 3k
ZEESE 2 Bl R EGIR6.87H T o
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32. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) 32. KRS8 ()
Movements of the Company’s share options during the B £2023F NM2022F3H31H IEFE
years ended 31 March 2023 and 2022 are as follow: RAFIEREZ ZEFRMAT
Year ended 31 March 2023 B £2023F3A31HLFE
Number of
share options
Number of cancelled Number of
Exercise share during the share
price per options at year ended options at
share option 1 April 2022 31 March 31 March
Category of the Grantees (Note (a))  Date of grant Exercisable period (Note (a)) 2023 2023
120225 BZ2023%
SHERE 4A182 3A318 1#2023%
TEE BREYA LLFEX#E2  3A31BZ
ZERRAER (M@) RHAH AT EAE (M) BRERE BRERE
HK$
BT
DIRECTORS
i
Mr. Chow Yik 6.87 10 January 2022 10 January 2022 to 129,200 - 129,200
9 January 2032
L 022618108 202518108%
2032F1A9H
Mr. Tsui Wing Tak 6.87  10January 2022 10 January 2022 to 129,200 - 129,200
9 January 2032
mxBrE 20221R108 2022F1R108Z
203261 A9H
Ms. Ho Oi Kwan (Note b) 6.87 10 January 2022 10 January 2022 to 129,200 (129,200) -
9 January 2032
fE R et (ftzb) 022F1A108  2022F1A108%
2032F1R9H
Total 387,600 (129,200) 258,400
#ct
Exercisable at the end of the year 258,400
RERTTHE
Weighted average exercise price HK$6.87
M ER 6.878
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32. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) 32. BT ()
Year ended 31 March 2022 BUZ2022F3A31B IEFE
Number of
share options Number of
Number of granted during share
share  the year ended options at
Exercise options at 31 March 31 March
price per 1 April 2022 2022
Category of the Grantees share option  Date of grant Exercisable period 2021 (Note (a)) (Note (a))
BE20226
3R31R F20225
R01E  FEEREZ  3A31IRZ
BiHERE 4A1BRZ BREEE BREHE
HERRNER 1B REBH A{T{E B BREZE (M) (FEG@)
HK$
BT
(Note (a))
GERD
DIRECTORS
=
Mr. Chow Yik 6.87 10 January 2022 10 January 2022 to - 129,200 129,200
9 January 2032
[S122F i 022618108 202518108%
203241 A9H
Mr. Tsui Wing Tak 6.87  10January 2022 10 January 2022 to - 129,200 129,200
9 January 2032
RoxELE 20221R108 2022617108 %
20321 A9H
Ms. Ho Oi Kwan 6.87 10 January 2022 10 January 2022 to - 129,200 129,200
9 January 2032
fEELL 222618108 202518108%
203261 R9H
Total - 387,600 387,600
st
Exercisable at the end of the year (Note (a)) 387,600
RERATE (W)
Weighted average exercise price (Note (a)) HK$6.87
MEFHTEE (HEE) 6878
Notes: B 5

(a) The number of share options and weighted average exercise price

have been adjusted to reflect the effect of share consolidation
during the year ended 31 March 2023 but before the effect of the
rights issue completed in June 2023 as set out in Notes 26(f) and 37
to the consolidated financial statements, respectively.

(b) 129,200 share options have been cancelled upon the resignation of
Ms. Ho Oi Kwan as the director of the Company on 20 December

2022.

B IZER AR AR / 2023F F R

BRESE RINETFHTEED BHE
LA BRE 2202353 A31H IEFE AR
D& B R & T FEM2023F6 A 58
BB R 8 (M e M mE
Bt aE26(f) X 37F L)

A B B 2+ 82022512 3208 B {(E
D RIEEE T $5129,20017 BB R 4 -
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33.

174

INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE

Details of the Group's investment in a joint venture at the
end of the reporting period are as follows:

3B RA—HBEELEES

AEERBREHRRR—HBAELE
ZREFBMT

2023 2022
20235 20224
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TAT

Unlisted shares, at cost

R 1R B 1R

Share of post-acquisition losses

FE LMD - AR

Interest in a joint venture represents investment in Jintian,
a former non-wholly owned subsidiary of which 51% equity
interest was owned by the Group and remaining equity
interest of 49% was owned by Mr. Sun Guangping (“Mr.
Sun”). Jintian is principally engaged in manufacture and
sales of frozen aquatic products in the PRC.

On 12 November 2021, Mr. Sun executed a deed of
undertaking (the "Deed”) in favour of the Group and
Jintian, pursuant to which Mr. Sun (i) agrees to guarantee
the performance of Jintian with respect to all the existing
and future debts owed by Jintian without collateral; (ii)
agrees to provide guarantee(s) to any creditor(s) of the
existing debts of Jintian and any future debt(s) of Jintian
and undertake to provide the same when it is required
from any creditor; and (i) agrees that the Group is not
required to provide any corporate guarantee and any
collateral to such creditor(s) (the “Undertakings”).

Given the Undertakings provided by Mr. Sun, Mr. Sun
required the mutual control rights of Jintian and all
decisions of Jintian relating to the strategic financial and
operating decisions of any economic activity shall be made
by all the equity-holders unanimously with no change of
shareholdings in Jintian.
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33. INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE (Continued)

Pursuant to a mutual control agreement signed on 12
November 2021, all decisions of Jintian relating to business
operations require unanimous consent from all the equity
holders with no change of shareholdings, which resulting
in a loss of control of Jintian by the Group. Accordingly,
with effect from 12 November 2021, Jintian ceased to be a
subsidiary of the Group and the investment in Jintian was
reclassified as interest in a joint venture, which is jointly
controlled by the Group and Mr. Sun by virtue of the
contractual arrangement amongst equity holders.

Accordingly, the assets and liabilities of Jintian were
deconsolidated from the Group's consolidated statement
of financial position for the year ended 31 March 2022
and the interests in Jintian have been accounted for as a
joint venture using equity method at 31 March 2023 and
2022. The fair value of the 51% equity interests in Jintian
at the date on which the control was lost is regarded was
determined to be Nil based on the proportion of the
Group's equity interest in net liabilities of Jintian as the
cost on initial recognition of the investment in Jintian as a
joint venture.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the joint
venture is not material to the Group for the years ended
31 March 2023 and 2022 and no disclosure of its financial
information was considered necessary.

33. A—RegEsER (B

BIEN2021F11 A12B 2 ENHEE =
HlHeE HEBABERBEENR
TARKEMAESHFBEA—BRAE
B ESS  EERAKELE
HeHEMEHZE-Ait- 2B THA
REEMMBAR MREANKE
EWEFTIEARN —HBEERLEL
B ZeEERAERRARLE
BEERFBEACHNE N ZHHL
BHEH] - B2021511 B12B EK -

it B E2022F3A31HIEFE
cHNEERAGBH THEAEE
ZIRABUBARRAKRAEHAR MR
20234 202293 A31H RE B
RO REREARA—BAED
¥ e HN%BEL AFERKEE
fliEE BERIERASEREHE
BEFREMNERLOET T RVIAME
RRCHNEREA—HEELERN
PR AN o

RABEZRAE B E20235F %2022
FIANBLEFEEGELEHALH
WHArEEREFEERNEEL T
BEBUE-
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34.

35.

176

NET GAIN ON DECONSOLIDATION OF A
SUBSIDIARY

Year ended 31 March 2022

Upon loss of control in Jintian and reclassification of
Jintian to a joint venture during the year ended 31 March
2022 as disclosed in Note 33 to the consolidated financial
statements, details of net gain on deconsolidation of

34. BUEHGZEAR— BB AT 2

W= F R
B£2022F3HA31HLLFE
HE2022F3A31B IEEE WKL E
cHZEZEHERSHETDBELS—
Ma&EhE (NEAUBERRMN T
BT EE) & BUBGZRAE ARSHZ

Jintian are summarised as follows:

Wb B SRR A T -

HK$'000
T T
Property, plant and equipment ME BB RFE 48
Inventories FE 22,724
Trade receivables g 5 e FRIE 33,758
Other receivables oAt FE W IE 15
Cash and cash equivalents ReERREEEY 639
Trade payables =) AN E/ S (69,184)
Accruals and other payables FEET & A & H A B < 5R08 (9,926)
Lease liabilities HEBE (6,636)
Net liabilities at date of deconsolidation BUBSRE A NREHBI - BE T (28,562)
Non-controlling interests FEVERNHE 13,651
Release of exchange reserve P BRI H G 23
Net gain on deconsolidation of a subsidiary BUH#Z S AR—FEHBLARZ
W= (14,888)
Net cash outflow arising from BEEZEAERE—EHBAREL 2
deconsolidation of a subsidiary HEeRHFE (639)

DISCONTINUED OPERATION

35. ERIRERET

Manufacture and sales of frozen aquatic products
business

Upon deconsolidation of Jintian and reclassification of
Jintian to a joint venture during the year ended 31 March
2022 as disclosed in Notes 34 and 33 to the consolidated
financial statements respectively, the Group ceased
to carry on manufacture and sales of frozen aquatic
products business during the year ended 31 March
2022. Accordingly, the manufacture and sales of frozen
aquatic products business of the Group was classified as a
discontinued operation (the “"Discontinued Operation”).

The results of the Discontinued Operation have been
presented separately in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

CBK HOLDINGS LIMITED / ANNUAL REPORT 2023

SEREESRKERER

B E2022F3R318 IEFE - IREUH
mAEAESHEcHEN EA—
Mae & (MFEe T BEmRERMT
BARIIFER)Z AEBREE
202F3RNHIEFETERRAE
MEESRKEMES Bt N&E
EMEEMBEESRKERESD
A HOREKEER ([BERLL
REEK]) -

ERIEEXHIEBEREER
mhEMEERAREFZ-



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BB RME

For the year ended 31 March 2023 & ZE2023F3A31H LFE

35. DISCONTINUED OPERATION (Continued) 35. BRIEREEK (B)
Manufacture and sales of frozen aquatic products SERBESRKERER (B)
business (Continued)

The results of the Discontinued Operation for the year BRI E R BI 20223 A 31
ended 31 March 2022 are analysed as follows: BIEFEZEEDTWT :
2022
20224
Note HK$'000
B 5 THET
Revenue = 215,383
Cost of inventories sold BEEGFEKAK (215,336)
Gross profit EF 47
Other revenue, other gain and loss HEaWzm s Bl K EE 1,089
Employee benefit expenses BEBAFX (1,010)
Depreciation e (1,840)
Impairment loss of property, plant M- BE k&2 REER
and equipment (@) (14,742)
Impairment loss of right-of-use assets EREEEZRERE (a) (6,434)
Impairment loss of inventories rEZRERBRE (a) (21,982)
Administrative expenses TR 2 (1,591)
Finance costs A& B 9 (245)
Loss from operations EF Y % (46,708)
Impairment loss of amount due Bl —FRlaEhERIELZ
from a joint venture BIEEE (2,136)
Net gain on deconsolidation of a subsidiary EUR#R& AR —fEME Q7 34
B 7 WaF R 14,888
Impairment loss of goodwill BEZRERBR (702)
Loss before tax BRBLBIES 1B 10 (34,658)
Income tax expenses PSR XX (716)
Loss for the year FEBE (35,374)
Loss from the Discontinued Operation UTEEEBLHCARLEREXEK
for the year attributable to: FEBE:
Owners of the Company ZIN/NEIEZ Z =N (12,137)
Non-controlling interests FEE IR (23,237)
(35,374)
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35. DISCONTINUED OPERATION (Continued)

Manufacture and sales of frozen aquatic products
business (Continued)

(@)  Due to the failure of the electric power supply system to the cold (a)
storage facility of Jintian during the National Days Holidays in
China which resulted in deterioration of significant portion of the
frozen stock of Jintian, the Group recognised an one-off loss of
approximately HK$21,982,000 for the stock deterioration. Suffering
from failure of electric power supply system and in light of loss
incurred by Jintian, the management of the Group has recognised
impairment loss of approximately HK$14,742,000 and HK$6,434,000
against property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets,
respectively. Details of the failure of the electric power supply
system are set out in the Company’s announcement dated 11

October 2011.

The cash flow information of the Discontinued Operation

35. BRIEREEK (B)
YERHEHESRKERELE (8)

J'L

EZpS EF’IIFEEQF'?@EE 2T

Eﬂzﬁ'ﬂ EES D ﬁﬁﬁﬂi%@lfﬁ
B A5 /7/§FTEDDD§%F
REBREFSERR N

&5 38 921,982,000/ 7T ° fﬁtﬁA
iEE.LL’LﬂEEE/\/}LIEEEE&gE
Tﬂiﬁzéﬂaé& AEBERED

DRI E - FHE M & E K
ﬁ AEEEERBERSEY
14,742 000;%%5 7T }.6,434,000/%

TCoHE R < LB i B Y B 1S
?‘ﬁWK TE!,HEZ%ZO11¢1O)EJ
1MBRRE-

Elz\\%ﬂ:%« %%?&Ziﬁi/mgéﬂ'ﬁu

is as follows: T:
2022
2022
HK$'000
THET
Net cash from operating activities KEEEH S FH 648
Net cash from investing activities BB FR -
Net cash used in financing activities BMEESFTAREFER (140)
The loss per share information of the Discontinued ERIERERH 2 BREBERN
Operation is as follows: T
2022
2022%F
(adjusted)
(RAE)
Loss per share for the Discontinued Operation EREREXEBZBRER
Basic (HK$) EAR (BIT) (0.76)
Diluted (HK$) g (BT) (0.76)
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35.

36.

37.

DISCONTINUED OPERATION (Continued)

Manufacture and sales of frozen aquatic products
business (Continued)

The basic and diluted loss per share for the Discontinued
Operation are calculated by dividing the loss for the
year of the Discontinued Operation by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares for basic loss per share
computation and weighted average number of ordinary
shares for diluted loss per share computation respectively.
The number of shares for the year ended 31 March 2022
has been adjusted to reflect share consolidation during
the year ended 31 March 2023 and the rights issue
completed in June 2023 as set out in Notes 26(f) and 37
to the consolidated financial statements, respectively. The
denominators used are the same as those detailed in Note
14 to the consolidated financial statements.

DIVIDENDS
The directors of the Company do not recommend the
payment of any dividend for the years ended 31 March
2023 and 2022.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 6 March 2023, the Company proposed to implement
the rights issue on the basis of five rights shares for every
one existing share held on 16 May 2023 (the “Rights
Issue”), being the record date, at the subscription price of
HK$0.265 per rights share. The Rights Issue was approved
by the shareholders of the Company at the extraordinary
general meeting held on 3 May 2023. On 14 June 2023,
77,757,995 rights shares, with par value of HK$0.01 each,
were issued and allotted under the Rights Issue with net
proceeds of approximately HK$18.9 million after deducting
direct cost of approximately HK$1.7 million, which will be
charged to the Company’s equity under “Share premium”.
Details of the Rights Issue were disclosed in the Company’s
announcements dated 6 March 2023, 3 May 2023 and 13
June 2023, the Company's circular dated 14 April 2023 and
the Company'’s prospectus dated 17 May 2023.

35.

36.

37.

BRI EEER (8)
SERBEESRKERER (&)

ERIEREEB 2 SRERNLEE
EENDEFTFRERIEEEERKER
SRR AESRERNGBIE Y
LB INEF S8R AESREE
BB E 2 EBRNEFEGTE -
L ZE202293A318 L FE R &
HEEFAEURBRE £2023F3A4
3B EFEHEITHRMDE FUARR
2023F6 A FERK Ky IR (B4R & Bt
&R R M 5E26() M37FTE) - BT 2
DA M RERM 14550 EH
EICD

2
ARAREETEZERNERNEZ
20239 K2022F3A31H IEFER K

B o
/T

REHZEE

R2023F3 868 AR A EHFZR
202358168 (B2 e A H) B4
E—BRBEERMDERABRERKRKN
2 EEUREETRHERR7D0.265
BT ([HAR]) AR &R
A AR R A202345 A3H BTH
HEFRI K EHE A& - 1R2023F6 A 14
B &K EE0.01% L /77,757,995
AR AR AR 1D B AR R (AR 39T R e 3%
KNMBEBERANITEE R TE
TS RIBEFB1898EE LE
ARDE P RO EE] BT
HENFEEERARABEA
20234368 ~ 202355 A3H 2023
FOAIENAE AXRAIBHA
2023F4 148 M B K A~ R H E]
AB2023F5 A17HM R ER -
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Summary of Financial Information

MBERBE

The following is a summary of the published results and N TFAASEGIAETERFERND 3
of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five HZEREENBEHRZ:
financial years:

Years ended 31 March
BZ3ANBLEE
2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
2023% 20224 20214 2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER AT FET TEL THL

Results #i5
Revenue from continuing FELEER e
operations 30,040 27,302 12,634 43,024 92,099
Loss before tax from continuing &K & %3 2 BRBi AT
operations EE (24,975) (33,141) (10,195) (32,883) (18,839
Income tax expense FIERHAxX - - (111) - (1722)
Loss from a discontinued BRIHEEEKZER
operation - (35,374 - - -
Loss for the year FEBE (24,975) (68,515) (10,306) (32,883) (20,561)
Loss for the year attributable to: A\ T & EEEEEFE:
Owners of the Company ARAEEA (22,227 (40,299) (9,940) (32,883) (20,561)
Non-controlling interests R RS (2,748) (28,216) (366) - -
(24,975) (68,515) (10,306) (32,883) (20,561)
At 31 March
RW3A31A8
2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
20235 20224 20214F 20204 20195
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FTAET FTET FTAET FTET
Total assets BEE 21,359 36,733 37,284 48,322 46,920
Total liabilities BafE (23,650) (17,052) (11,075) (20,758) (6,473)
Net (liabilities) assets (BB BERE (2,291) 19,681 26,209 27564 60,447
Equity attributable to: ATRBEEGES:
Owners of the Company ARRIHEEA 3,596 22,820 24,375 27 564 60,447
Non-controlling interests RS (5,887) (3,139) 1,834 - -

(2,291) 19,681 26,209 27,564 60,447
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